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Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report (BRSR)

SECTION A - GENERAL DISCLOSURES

I. Details of the listed entity

1 Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Listed Entity - L66120MP1992PLC007182

2 Name of the Listed Entity - ARIHANT CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED

3 Year of incorporation - 25/06/1992

4 Registered office address - 6, Lad Colony Y.N Road, Indore � 452001 (MP)

5 Corporate office address - 1011, Solitaire Corporate Park, Building No. 10,

1st Floor, Chakala, Andheri (East), Mumbai �

400093

6 E-mail - contactus@arihantcapital.com

7 Telephone - 07314217100

8 Website - www.arihantcapital.com

9 Financial year for which reporting is being done - 2024 - 2025

10 Name of the Stock Exchange(s) where shares are listed - BSE Limited & National Stock Exchange of India
Limited

11 Paid-up Capital - Rs. 104112800

12 Name and contact details (telephone, email address) of - Mr Mahesh Pancholi (Company Secretary),

the person who may be contacted in case of any queries Email: mahesh.pancholi@arihantcapital .com,

on the BRSR report Ph: 0731-4217261

13 Reporting boundary - Disclosures made in this report are on a

standalone basis

14 Name of assurance provider - Ekobon Technologies LLP

15 Type of assurance obtained - Reasonable Assurance

II. Products/services

16 Details of business activities (accounting for 90% of the turnover):

S.N. Product/Service Description of Business Activity % of total Turnover
contributed

1 Broking and Financial Service Financial Advisory, Brokerage 100%
and Consultancy Services

17 Products/Services sold by the entity (accounting for 90% of the entity�s Turnover):

S. N. Product/Service NIC Code % of total Turnover
contributed

1 Broking 66120 90%

2 Merchant Banking and 66120 10%

Distribution of Financial Products

III. Operations

18. Number of locations where plants and/or operations/offices of the entity are situated:

Location Number of plants Number of offices Total

National Nil 25 25

International Nil 0 0



19. Markets served by the entity:

a. Number of locations

Location Number

National (No. of States) 10

International (No. of Countries) Nil

b. What is the contribution of exports as a percentage of the total turnover of the entity?
- Nil

c. A brief on types of customers
- Arihant Capital is an integrated, technology-driven securities firm offering a comprehensive suite of services,
including retail and institutional broking, distribution of financial products, private wealth management, and
issuer and advisory services. Our clientele spans a diverse spectrum, comprising resident and non-resident
individuals, Hindu Undivided Families (HUFs), corporates, trusts, and other institutional entities.

IV. Employees

20. Details as at the end of Financial Year:

a. Employees and workers (including differently abled):

S.N. Particulars Total Male Female
No. (A) No. (b) % (B /A) No. (C) % (C / A)

EMPLOYEES

1. Permanent (D) 303 225 74.26 78 25.74

2. Other than Permanent (E) 118 84 71.19 34 28.81

3. Total employees(D + E) 421 309 73.40 112 26.60

WORKERS

4. Permanent (F) 0 0 0 0 0

5. Other than Permanent (G) 0 0 0 0 0

6. Total workers(F + G) 0 0 0 0 0

b. Differently abled Employees and workers:

S. Particulars Total Male Female
No (A) Nol. (B) % (B/A) No. (C) % (C/A)

DIFFERENTLY ABLED EMPLOYEES

1. Permanent (D) 0 0 0 0 0

2. Other than Permanent (E) 0 0 0 0 0

3. Total differently abled 0 0 0 0 0

employees(D + E)

DIFFERENTLY ABLED WORKERS

4. Permanent (F) 0 0 0 0 0

5. Other than Permanent (G) 0 0 0 0 0

6. Total differently abled 0 0 0 0 0

Workers(F + G)



21 Participation/Inclusion/Representation of women

Particulars Total           No. and percentage of Females

(A) No. (B) % (B/A)

Board of Directors 6 1 16.67%

Key Management Personnel* 2 0 0.00%

22 Turnover rate for permanent employees

Particulars FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23
Male Female Total Male Female Total Male Female Total

Permanent Employees* 26.67% 26.92% 26.73% 19.41% 25.06% 20.82% 17.20% 16.00% 16.70%

Permanent Workers Nil

*includes all employees except those on probation

V. Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies (including joint ventures)

23 Names of holding / subsidiary / associate companies / joint ventures

S.N. Name of theholding/subsidiary/associate Indicatewhether %ofshares held by Does the entity indicated at column
companies/joint ventures (A) holding/Subsidiary/ listed entity A, participate in the Business

Associate/Joint Venture Responsibility initiatives of the
listed entity? (Yes/No)

1 Arihant Futures & Commodities Limited Subsidiary 100% No

2 Arihant Financial Services Limited Subsidiary 100% No

3 Arihant Capital (IFSC) Limited Subsidiary 100% No

4 Arihant Elite Financial Solution Limited Subsidiary 100% No

5 Electrum Capital Private Limited Associate 27.23% No

Note: The company sold its entire shareholding in wholly owned subsidiary Arihant Insurance Broking Services
Limited during the year.

VI. CSR Details

24 CSR Details:

(i) Whether CSR is applicable as per Yes, CSR is applicable to the company as per section
section 135 of Companies Act, 2013: 135 of the Companies Act, 2013

(ii) Turnover (Rs. In Lakhs.)- 24204.75
(iii) Net worth (Rs. In Lakhs.)- 34971.76

VII. Transparency and Disclosures Compliances

25 Complaints/Grievances on any of the principles (Principles 1 to 9) under the National Guidelines on
Responsible Business Conduct:



Stakeholder group from Grievance Redressal CY 2024-2025 PY 2023-2024
whom complaint is Mechanism in Place
received (Yes/No) Number of Remarks Number of Remarks

(If Yes, then provide complaints complaints
web-link for grievence field during field during

redress policy) the year the year

Communities 0 0 NA 0 0 NA

Investors

(other than shareholders) 0 0 NA 0 0 NA

Shareholders 14 0 Resolved 7 0 Resolved

Employees and workers 0 0 NA 0 0 NA

Customers 64 0 Resolved 54 0 Resolved

Value Chain Partners 0 0 NA 0 0 0

Other (please specify) 0 0 NA 0 0 NA

26 Overview of the entity�s material responsible business conduct issues

Please indicate material responsible business conduct and sustainability issues pertaining to environmental and
social matters that present a risk or an opportunity to your business, rationale for identifying the same, approach to
adapt or mitigate the risk along-with its financial implications, as per the following format

1 Data Security & Customer Opportunity & Risk With continued digitization,Implementation of Positive: Enhanced

S.N. Material issue identified Indicate whether risk Rationale  for identifying In case of risk. Financial Implications 
approach or opportunity (R/O) to adapt or mitigate of the risk or opportunity

(Indicate positive or
negative implications)

1 Data Security & Customer Opportunity & Risk With continued digitization, Implementation of Positive: Enhanced
privacy data privacy and cyber enhanced cybersecurity digital trust reduced risk

threats remain a key area infrastructure. of data breaches
of  concern and innovation. employee data better regulatory
The Company recognizes protection training. compliance. Negativs
the opportunity to build third-party audits Cost of continuous
stakeholder trust while and compliance tech upgrades
mitigating data-related with letest data and compliance.
risks through stronger privacy laws
digital safeguards. (e.g., DPDP Act. 2023)

2 Corporate Social Opportunity The Company is Continuous community Positive: Strengthened
Responsibility committed to inclusive engagement. community goodwill and social

and sustainable partnerships with license to operate, enhanced
community development NGOs, and employee brand reputation
through enhanced CSR volunteering
efforts focused on in CSR activities.
financial literacy,
education, and
entrepreneurship
development.

If the stakeholders

have any grievances

they can reach out at

compliance@

arihantcapital.com

Number of
complaints

pending resolution
at close of the

year

Number of
complaints

pending resolution
at close of the

year



3 Human Capital and Opportunity & Risk Attracting and retaining Robust recruitment Positive : Increased
Talent Management skilled professionals in a practices, internal employee retention and

competitive job market skill development productivity. Negative
remains a key chalilenge. programs. performance Training and retention
while also offering the based incentives, and costs in a high attrition
opportunity to drive growth employee well-being environment.
through talent development initiatives.
and employee well-being.

4 Systemic Risk Opportunity & Risk With the evolving regulatory Dynamic enterprise risk Positive: Improved
Management landscape and economic framework, continuous operational stability,

uncertainties, proactive risk scenario analysis, and investor confidence, and
 governance is both a board-level oversight regulatory alignment.
necessity and an opportunity through a dedicated 
to enhance business Risk Committee.
continuity and resilience.



Section B: Management and Process Disclosures

The National Guidelines for Responsible Business Conduct (NGRBCs) as prescribed by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
advocates nine principles referred as P1-P9 as given below:

Disclosure Questions P P P P P P P P P
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

Policy and management processes

1 a. Whether your entity�s policy/policies cover each Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
principle and its core elements of the NGRBCs. (Yes/No)

b. Has the policy been approved by theBoard?(Yes/No) Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

c. Web Link of the Policies, if available https://www.arihantcapital.com/investor-relations/esg

2 Whether the entity has translated the policy into The policies have been approved and adopted by the
procedures. (Yes / No) Board and relevant Internal Committees. They are

implemented and periodically reviewed, with
appropriate measures in place tooversee their execution.

3 Do the enlisted policies extend to your value No No No No No No No No No
chain partners? (Yes/No)

4 Name of the national and international codes/ The company has obtained ISO 9001:2015 certification
certifications/labels/ standards (e.g. Forest Stewardship (Quality Management Systems)
Council, Fairtrade, Rainforest Alliance, Trustee)
standards (e.g. SA 8000, OHSAS, ISO, BIS) adopted by
your entity and mapped to each principle.

5 Specific commitments, goals and targets set by the TheCompany does not havemandatory targets,pledges,
entity with defined timelines, if any. orpredefined reviewproceduresforallpolicies.However,

systems are in place to monitor key parameters such as
shareholder complaints, staff satisfaction levels, and
consumption of resources like water, paper, and
electricity. These monitoring mechanisms help in
ensuring operational efficiency and stakeholder
satisfaction

6 Performance of the entity against the specific The Company regularly tracks key policy parameters
commitments, goals and targets along-with reasons andusestheinsightsgatheredforcontinuousimprovement.
in case the same are not met. Performance data is recorded and reviewed periodically

to inform policy updates and support employee learning
and development initiatives. In cases where targets are
not explicitly defined, performance is assessed
qualitatively through stakeholder feedback and internal
monitoring systems.

Governance, leadership and oversight

7 Statement by director responsible for the business responsibility report, highlighting ESG related
challenges, targets and achievements: At our Company, one of our top priorities is to conduct business in an
ethical, responsible, and sustainable manner. ESG (Environmental, Social, and Governance) principles are
embedded in our strategic decision-making and day-to-day operations. We maintain continuous dialogue with our
stakeholders to identify and act on key ESG priorities, which include minimizing our environmental footprint,
ensuring efficient and transparent customer service, strengthening corporate governance, managing enterprise
risks, nurturing human capital, and enhancing community engagement.Our ESG journey is overseen by a
dedicated ESG Executive Forum and a highly qualified, diverse Board of Directors, ensuring robust governance 
and accountability at all levels.



During the year, we undertook several initiatives to advance our ESG agenda, including:

Implementation of a Comprehensive Code of Conduct and Business Ethics;

Strengthening of our risk management framework and fostering a sound risk culture;

Digital transformation across business functions to enhance efficiency and reduce resource usage;

Launch of customer-centric and innovative financial products;

Continued investment in cybersecurity and information security infrastructure;

Deployment of employee-centric policies to support well-being, inclusion, and growth;

Resource consumption monitoring and goal-setting to reduce electricity usage and improve operational
sustainability.

These actions reflect our strong commitment to ESG excellence and our vision to create long-term value for all
stakeholders while contributing positively to society and the environment.

8 Details of the highest authority responsible for implementation Board of Directors
and oversight of the Business Responsibility policy (ies).

9 Does the entity have a specified Committee of the Board/    No
Director responsible for decision making on sustainability
related issues? (Yes / No). If yes, provide details.

10 Details of Review of NGRBCs by the Company:

Subject for Review Indicate whether review was undertaken Frequency(Annually/ Half yearly/
by Director / Committee of the Board/ Quarterly/ Any other � please
Any other Committee specify)

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

Performance against above policies ReviewsareundertakenbytheBoard, itscommittees,andseniormanagement.
up action As per the frequency defined in respective policies or on a need basis,

policies are periodically reviewed in all aspects, including legal
compliance, and updated accordingly.

Compliance with statutory requir- Compliance is monitored by the Board and senior management on an
ements of relevance to the prin- ongoing basis. Processes are in place to ensure adherence to applicable
ciples and, rectification of any laws, with timely rectification of any identified non-compliances.
non-compliances

11 Has the entity carried out indep. P 1 P 2 P 3 P 4 P 5 P 6 P 7 P 8 P 9

endent assessment/ Response (for all principles P1�P9):No, the Company has not engaged
of its policies by an eevaluation of the any external agency for independent assessment of its policy framework.
workingxternal agency? (Yes/No). However, internal audits and periodic evaluations of the Company�s rules,
If yes, provide name of the agency. procedures, and policies are conducted by the internal audit team to

ensure compliance, effectiveness, and continual improvement.

12 If answer to question (1) above is �No� i.e. not all Principles are covered by a policy, reasons to be stated:

Questions P 1 P 2 P 3 P 4 P 5 P 6 P 7 P 8 P 9
The entity does not consider the
Principles material to its business NA
(Yes/No)



The entity is not at a stage where it is in
a position to formulate and implement
the policies on specified principles
(Yes/No)

The entity does not have the financial
or/human and technical resources NA
available for the task (Yes/No)

It is planned to be done in the next
financial year (Yes/No)

Any other reason (please specify)

SECTION C: PRINCIPLE WISE PERFORMANCE DISCLOSURE

This section is aimed at helping entities demonstrate their performance in integrating the Principles and Core Elements
with key processes and decisions. The information sought is categorized as �Essential� and �Leadership�. While the
essential indicators are expected to be disclosed by every entity that is mandated to file this report, the leadership
indicators may be voluntarily disclosed by entities which aspire to progress to a higher level in their quest to be socially,
environmentally and ethically responsible.

PRINCIPLE 1 Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with integrity, and in a manner that is Ethical,
Transparent and Accountable.

ESSENTIAL INDICATORS

1.Percentagecoverage bytraining andawareness programmes on any of the Principles duringthe financialyear:

Segment Total number of Topics/principles covered under the %age of persons in
training and training and its impact respective category
awareness covered by the awareness

programmes held programmes

Board of 3 Refresher session on ethical leadership and Board 100
Directors accountability under SEBI LODR.Governance best

practices including ESG oversight responsibilities.
Navigating regulatory changes impacting fiduciary
duties.

Key 5 Strategic leadership training focused on ethics-driven 100
Managerial innovation.Training on cyber governance and ESG-
Personnel related reporting obligations.Orientation on evolving

regulatory expectations including SEBI and MCA 
updates.

Employees 20 Theme 1: Enhanced Customer Engagement and Ethical 100
other than Sales PracticesResponsible selling practices and con-
BoD and flict-of-interest mitigation.AI-assisted client interaction
KMPs  training to improve digital service delivery.

"Theme 2: Regulatory and Workplace Ethics Training
Refresher on POSH compliance with case-based work-
shops.ESG induction module including ethics, data
privacy, and grievance redressal processes.Fire safety
and mock drills enhanced with visual simulation training.

Workers                                   Not Applicable



2 Details of fines / penalties /punishment/ award/ compounding fees/ settlement amount paid in
proceedings (by the entity or by directors / KMPs) with regulators/ law enforcement agencies/
judicial institutions, in the financial year, in the following format (Note: the entity shall make disclosures
on the basis of materiality as specified in Regulation 30 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Obligations) Regulations, 2015 and as disclosed on the entity�s website) :-

Nill

3 Of the instances disclosed in Question 2 above, details of the Appeal/ Revision preferred in cases
where monetary or non-monetary action has been appealed.

CaseDetails Nameof theregulatory/ enforcement
agencies/ judicial institutions

NA

4 Does the entity have an anti-corruption or anti-bribery policy? If yes, provide details in brief and if
available, provide a web-link to the policy.

Yes, Arihant Capital Markets Limited (ACML) has a zero-tolerance approach to bribery and corruption, requiring all
employees and third parties to act with integrity and comply with laws. The policy prohibits bribes, facilitation
payments, kickbacks, and misuse of gifts, hospitality, or contributions. Employees must report concerns without 
fear of retaliation, while third parties are subject to due diligence and ethical standards. Oversight is ensured by the
Board, Ethics Officer, and management through regular monitoring and training. the policy can be reviewed at
www.arihantcapital.com/investor-relation/governance.

5 Number of Directors/KMPs/employees/workers against whom disciplinary action was taken by any law
enforcement agency for the charges of bribery/ corruption:

Particulars CY 2024-25 PY 2023-24

Directors Nil Nil

KMPs Nil Nil

Employees Nil Nil

Workers Nil Nil

6 Details of complaints with regard to conflict of interest :

Particulars                    CY 2024-25                    PY 2023-24
Number  Remarks  Number       Remarks

Number of complaints received in relation to issues Nil Nil Nil    Nil

of Conflict of Interest of the Directors

Number of complaints received in relation to issues Nil Nil Nil    Nil

of Conflict of Interest of the KMPs

7 Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway on issues related to fines / penalties / action 
taken by regulators/ law enforcement agencies/ judicial institutions, on cases of corruption and conflicts
of interest

Not Applicable



8 Number of days of accounts payables ((Accounts payable *365) / Cost of goods/services procured) in the

following format:

Particulars CY 2024-25 PY 2023-24

Number of days of accounts payables 7.25 10.84

*The methodology for calculating accounts payable has been revised in FY 2025 due to updated guidelines for

calculating �Purchases� as per the Industry Standards. Therefore, figures for FY 2025 and FY 2024 are not directly
comparable.

9 Open-ness of business

Provide details of concentration of purchases and sales with trading houses, dealers, and related parties

along-with loans and advances & investments, with related parties, in the following format:

Parameter Metrics CY 2024-25 PY 2023-24

Concentration of Purchases Purchases from trading houses as % of total purchases NA NA

Numberof tradinghouses where purchases are made from NA NA

Purchases from top 10 trading houses as % of total
purchases from trading houses NA NA

Concentration of Sales Sales to dealers / distributors as % of total sales NA NA

Number of dealers / distributors to whom sales are made NA NA

Sales to top 10 dealers / distributors as % of total
sales to dealers / distributors NA NA

Share of RPTs in Purchases (Purchases with related parties / Total
Purchases) Nil Nil

Sales (Sales to related parties / Total Sales) Nil Nil

Loans & advances (Loans & advances given to
related parties / Total loans & advances) Nil Nil

Investments ( Investments in related parties / Total
Investments made) 28.52% 40.34%

LEADERSHIP INDICATORS

1. Awareness programmes conducted for value chain partners on any of the Principles during the financial

year:
During the year under review, the Company has conducted various awareness programmes to its value chain
partners including franchise, investors, distributors, dealers, clients, etc. The Company also conducts regular
product training for its distributors.

2. Does the entity have processes in place to avoid/ manage conflict of interests involving members of the

Board? (Yes/No) If Yes, provide details of the same.
Yes, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its Directors and Senior Management to ensure that

personal interests do not conflict with the interests of the Company or impair their ability to discharge their



responsibilities effectively. The Code outlines ethical standards, disclosure requirements, and expected conduct,
and is made available to stakeholders on request and maintained internally for reference.Further, the Company
has implemented a Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions and Dealing with Related Party
Transactions, which provides a structured framework for identifying, reviewing, and approving related party

transactions in accordance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements. This policy is also made available
separately and is not hosted on the Company�s website.Additionally, in compliance with Regulation 26 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Senior Management Personnel have
confirmed to the Board that they have not entered into any material financial or commercial transactions that may

have a potential conflict with the interests of the Company.

PRINCIPLE 2 Businesses should provide goods and services in a manner that is sustainable and safe

ESSENTIAL INDICATORS

1. Percentage of R&D and capital expenditure (capex) investments in specific technologies to improve the
environmental and social impacts of product and processes to total R&D and capex investments made by
the entity, respectively.

During the year, the Company continued to prioritize digital transformation in alignment with its long-term business
and operational strategy. As a part of this, the majority of capital expenditure was directed towards strengthening
Information Technology infrastructure, including upgrades to hardware and software systems.These investments
are intended to improve operational efficiency, data security, customer service, and compliance capabilities,
thereby enhancing the overall environmental and social performance of the Company.In FY 2024�25, 12.96% of
the Company�s total additions to fixed assets were allocated towards R&D and capital expenditures related to IT
infrastructure and technology enhancements. This is a significant shift compared to 56.6% in FY 2023�24,
reflecting a normalization of post-transformation investments following a technology-intensive phase in the
previous year.

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars CY 2024-25 PY 2023-24

R&D 44.54 27.30

Capex 171.00 112.20

2 a. Does the entity have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing? (Yes/No)
Yes

b. If yes, what percentage of inputs were sourced sustainably?

The Company has adopted internal procedures to promote responsible sourcing practices for non-core
procurement such as IT equipment, office supplies, and facility services. While the overall volume of material
inputs is limited due to the service-based nature of operations, the Company gives preference to vendors who
comply with sustainability standards, including those offering energy-efficient products, environmentally
certified goods, or recyclable materials.

3 Describe the processes in place to safely reclaim your products for reusing, recycling and disposing at
the end of life, for (a) Plastics (including packaging) (b) E-waste (c) Hazardous waste and (d) other
waste.

Processes for end-of-life product management:

Plastics: Minimal use; eco-friendly packaging is preferred. Any plastic waste is segregated and handed over to
authorised collectors.



E-waste: Disposed through authorised e-waste recyclers in compliance with regulations.

Hazardous waste: Not generated due to the nature of operations.

Other waste: Segregated municipal waste is collected daily by local authorities.

4 Whether Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) is applicable to the entity�s activities (Yes / No). If yes,
whether the waste collection plan is in line with the Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) plan
submitted to Pollution Control Boards? If not, provide steps taken to address the same.

Not Applicable

LEADERSHIP INDICATORS

1 Has the entity conducted Life Cycle Perspective / Assessments (LCA) for any of its products (for
manufacturing industry) or for its services (for service industry)? If yes, provide details in the following
format?

The company is involved in institutional and retail broking. Hence, Life Cycle Perspective / Assessments is not
applicable on the company.

2 If there are any significant social or environmental concerns and/or risks arising from production or
disposal of your products/services, as identified in the Life Cycle Perspective / Assessments (LCA) or
through any other means, briefly describe the same along-with action taken to mitigate the same -

Not Applicable

3 Percentage of recycled or reused input material to total material (by value) used in production (for
manufacturing industry) or providing services (for service industry).

Nil

4 Of the products and packaging reclaimed at end of life of products, amount (in metric tonnes) reused,
recycled, and safely disposed, as per the following format:

CY- 2024-25 PY- 2023-24

Re-Used Recycled Safely Re-Used Recycled Safely

Disposed Disposed

Plastics (including packaging) The Company does not use plastic packaging in its operations. Eco-friendly
alternatives are promoted and adopted, thereby eliminating plastic waste at
source.

E-waste E-waste generated from obsolete IT equipment is handed over to authorised
recyclers in accordance with e-waste management rules to ensure
environmentally safe disposal.

Hazardous waste The Company does not generate any hazardous waste due to the nature of its
business activities.

Other waste Daily operational waste, such as paper, kitchen waste, and general refuse, is
classified as municipal waste and is regularly collected and disposed of by the
municipal corporation.

5 Reclaimedproductsandtheirpackagingmaterials(aspercentageofproductssold) foreachproductcategory.

Not Applicable



PRINCIPLE 3 Businesses should respect and promote the well-being of all employees, including those in their
value chains

ESSENTIAL INDICATORS

1 a. Details of measures for the well-being of employees:

Category % of employees covered by

Total Health insurance Accident insurance Maternity benefits Paternity Benefits Day Care facilities

(A) Number % (B / A) Number % (C/A) Number % (D/A) Number % (E/A) Number % (F/A)

(B) (C) (D) (D) (E) (E) (F)

PERMANENT EMPLOYEES

Male 225 225 100% 225 100% 0 0% 0 0 0 0

Female 78 78 100% 78 100% 78 100% 0 0 0 0

Total 303 303 100% 303 100% 78 26% 0 0 0 0

Male 84 84 100% 84 100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 34 34 100% 34 100% 34 100% 0 0 0 0

Total 118 118 100% 118 100% 34 29% 0 0 0 0

b.Details of measures for the well-being of workers:

Category % of employees covered by

Total Health insurance Accident insurance Maternity benefits Paternity Benefits Day Care facilities

(A) Number % (B / A) Number % (C/A) Number % (D/A) Number % (E/A) Number % (F/A)

(B) (C) (D) (D) (E) (E) (F)

PERMANENT WORKERS

Male

Female Nill

Total

Male

Female Nill

Total

c. Spending on measures towards well-being of employees and workers (including permanent and other than
permanent) in the following format �

Parameter CY 2024-25 PY 2023-24

Cost incurred on well- being measures as a % of
total revenue of the company 0.18% 0.16%



2 Details of retirement benefits, for Current Financial Year and Previous Financial Year.

Benefits CY 2024-25 PY 2023-24

No. of employees No. of workers Deducted and No of employees No. of workers Deducted and
covered as a % of covered as a deposited with covered as a % of covered as deposited with
total employees % of total the authority total employees a % of total the authority

workers (Y/N/N.A) workers (Y/N/N.A)

PF 61.52% Y 48.39% Y

Gratuity 100% Y 98% Y

ESIC 32.30% NA Y 23.46% NA Y

Others � please 0 NA 0 NA
specify

3 Accessibility of workplaces

Are the premises / offices of the entity accessible to differently abled employees and workers, as per the
requirements of the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 2016? If not, whether any steps are being taken by the
entity in this regard.

Yes

4 Does the entity have an equal opportunity policy as per the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 2016? If
so, provide a web-link to the policy

The company believes in equal opportunities for specially abled people. But the company does not have any policy
in its place.

5 Return to work and Retention rates of permanent employees and workers that took parental leave.

 Gender Permanent employees        Permanent workers

Return to Retention Return to Retention
work rate rate   Work rate  rate

 Male 0 0

 Female 0.00 0%                        NA

 Total 0.00 0%

6 Is there a mechanism available to receive and redress grievances for the following categories of employees 
and worker? If yes, give details of the mechanism in brief.

 Particulars Yes/No

Permanent Workers  NA

Other than Permanent Workers  NA

Permanent Employees & Other "The Company has established a formal grievance redressal mechanism to
than Permanent Employees ensure a fair and inclusive work environment. The mechanism includes:A

Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy, in line with SEBI Listing
Regulations, to report concerns confidentially without fear of retaliation.A
dedicated grievance process for addressing complaints related to
discrimination, harassment, workplace bullying, or other inappropriate
conduct, which employees can report via email to the HR team.A POSH



Policy in compliance with the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, to address issues related to
sexual harassment at the workplace.The relevant policies and procedures are
made available to employees through internal communication channels.

7 Membership of employees and worker in association(s) or Unions recognised by the listed entity:

  Category CY 2024-25        PY 2023-24

Total employees/ No. of employees/ % (B/A) Total No. of % (D/C)
workers in workers in respe- employees / employees/workers
respective ctive category, workers in  in respective 
category (A) who are part of respective category, who

association(s) category (C) are part of associ-
or Union (B)  ation(s) or Union (D)

Total Permanent Employees

- Male

- Female    Given the nature of our business operations, the company does not endorse

Total Permanent Workers                                                  union or associations

- Male

- Female

8 Details of training given to employees and workers:

Category                         CY 2024-25        PY 2023-24

Total (A) On Health On Skill Total (A) On Health and On Skill
and safety upgradation Safety measures upgradation
measures

No. % (B) (No.) % (C/) No. % (B) No. % (C/)

EMPLOYEES

Male 309 309 100% 309 100% 256 256 100% 256 100%

Female 112 112 100% 112 100% 85 85 100% 85 100%

Total 421 421 100% 421 100% 341 341 100% 341 100%

WORKERS

Male

Female Nil

Total

9 Details of performance and career development reviews of employees and worker:

Category    CY 2024-25 PY 2023-24

Total (A) No. (B) % (B / A) Total (A) No. (B) % (B / A)

Employees

Male 309 309 100% 256 256 100%

Female 112 112 100% 85 85 100%



Total 421 421 100% 341 341 100%

Workers

Male

Female                     Nil

Total

10 Health and safety management system:

a. Whether an occupational health and safety management system has been implemented by the entity?
(Yes/ No). If yes, the coverage such system?

Yes, the Company has implemented an occupational health and safety management system across its
corporate offices and branches. The system includes: Air quality monitoring and routine improvement
measures. Regular equipment maintenance of critical infrastructure such as air conditioners, chillers, UPS,
stabilisers, and DG sets. Fire safety infrastructure, including functional extinguishers, smoke detectors, and fire
alarm systems across all locations. Employee awareness, with defined emergency assembly points and
strategically displayed floor evacuation plans. These measures ensure a safe environment for both employees
and visitors.

b. What are the processes used to identify work-related hazards and assess risks on a routine and non-
routine basis by the entity?

Not Applicable

c. Whether you have processes for workers to report the work related hazards and to remove themselves
from such risks. (Y/N)

Not Applicable

d. Do the employees/ worker of the entity have access to non-occupational medical and healthcare
services?

Yes, our employees have access to non-occupational medical and healthcare services. First aid kits are
maintained and are available at all times on the premises.

11 Details of safety related incidents, in the following format:

   Particulars Category CY 2024-25 PY 2023-24

Lost  Time   Injury   Frequency Rate (LTIFR)  (per Employees

onemillion-person hours worked) Workers

Total recordable work-related injuries Employees

Workers

No. of fatalities Employees Nil Nil

Workers

High consequence work-related injury or ill-health Employees

(excluding fatalities) Workers

12 Describe the measures taken by the entity to ensure a safe and healthy work place.

Health and Safety Management System & Measures Taken to Ensure a Safe and Healthy Workplace

The Company is committed to maintaining a safe, healthy, and inclusive work environment for all employees and
visitors. As a testament to its efforts, the Company has been awarded the Great Place To Work® Certification�,



a globally recognized benchmark for workplace culture. This certification affirms our dedication to fostering a
positive, engaging, and high-trust workplace.

The occupational health and safety management system has been implemented across all corporate offices and
branches, and includes the following key initiatives:

Air Quality Monitoring: Indoor air quality is routinely assessed, and necessary improvements are made to
ensure a healthy workspace.

Employee Wellness: Preventive health programs, wellness campaigns, seminars, and collaborations with
healthcare institutions are organized regularly. The Company also reimburses annual health check-ups for
employees.

Equipment Maintenance: Regular servicing and inspection of air conditioners, VRF systems, UPS units,
stabilizers, and DG sets help mitigate operational risks and maintain safety standards.

Fire Safety Preparedness: Fire extinguishers, alarm systems, and smoke detectors are installed and
maintained across all premises. Fire drills and safety training sessions are conducted periodically. Evacuation 
plans and assembly points are clearly communicated and displayed.

Emergency Planning: Floor plans are exhibited at strategic locations to guide employees during emergencies
and ensure timely evacuation.

Through these comprehensive measures, the Company not only complies with health and safety standards but
also continuously strives to build a culture of care, trust, and employee well-being.

13 Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers:

  Particulars                           CY 2024-25 PY 2023-24

Filed Pending resolution Remarks Filed during Pending resolution Remarks

during at  the end of year the year at the end of year

the year

  Working Conditions 0 0 Nil 0 0 Nil

  Health & Safety 0 0 Nil 0 0 Nil

14 Assessments for the year

Working Conditions No assessment has been carried out during the year

Health and safety practices No assessment has been carried out during the year

15 Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway to address safety-related incidents (if
any) and on significant risks / concerns arising from assessments of health & safety practices and
working conditions.

Not Applicable

LEADERSHIP INDICATORS

1 Does the entity extend any life insurance or any compensatory package in the event of death of (A)
Employees (Y/N) (B) Workers (Y/N).

No

2 Provide the measures undertaken by the entity to ensure that statutory dues have been deducted and
deposited by the value chain partners.

The Company ensures compliance with statutory obligations by diligently withholding and depositing employees�
contributions towards income tax, provident fund, professional tax, ESIC, and other applicable dues in
accordance with prevailing laws.



To promote compliance across the value chain, the Company includes relevant statutory and legal obligations as
part of its vendor agreements. Vendors and service providers are contractually required to adhere to these
obligations, and their compliance is monitored periodically.

To reinforce this, the Company has implemented robust internal controls and statutory audit procedures that
include verification of such compliances by its value chain partners as part of routine audits and assessments.

3 Provide the number of employees / workers having suffered high consequence work- related injury / ill-
health / fatalities (as reported in Q11 of Essential Indicators above), who have been are rehabilitated and
placed in suitable employment or whose family members have been placed in suitable employment:

  Particulars Total no. of affected No. of employees/workers
employees/ workers that are rehabilitated and 

placed in suitable employment
or whose family members have

 been placed in suitable
employment

CY 2024-25 PY 2023-24 CY 2024-25 PY 2023-24

  Employees Nil Nil Nil Nil

  Workers Nil Nil Nil Nil

4 Does the entity provide transition assistance programs to facilitate continued employability and the
management of career endings resulting from retirement or termination of employment? (Yes/No)

NA

5 Details on assessment of value chain partners:

Particulars % of value chain partners (by value of business done with such
partners) that were assessed

Health and safety practices The Company expects all its value chain partners to comply with

Working Conditions applicable laws and industry standards concerning health, safety, and
working conditions. While no formal assessment of value chain
partners was carried out during FY 2025, the Company is in the process
of identifying key partners as per SEBI BRSR guidelines. Following this
identification, a structured review mechanism will be implemented to
periodically evaluate their compliance with health and safety norms and
working condition standards.

6 Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks / concerns arising
from assessments of health and safety practices and working conditions of value chain partners.

As part of its commitment to workplace safety, the Company ensures that value chain participants operating within
its premises have access to the same health and safety protocols and resources as its employees. In the event
that any significant health or safety risk is identified, it is promptly assessed and addressed within an appropriate
time frame, in line with internal safety procedures.



PRINCIPLE 4: Businesses should respect the interests of and be responsive to all its stakeholders

ESSENTIAL INDICATORS

1. Describe the processes for identifying key stakeholder groups of the entity.

The stakeholders are determined based on the significance of their impact on the business and the impact of the
business on them.

2. List stakeholder groups identified as key for your entity and the frequency of engagement with each
stakeholder group.

Stakeholder Group Whether identified Channels of communication Frequency of Purpose and scope of
as Vulnerable & (Email, SMS, Newspaper, engagement engagement including key
Marginalized Pamphlets, Advertisement, (Annually/ Half topics and concerns raised
Group (Yes/No) Community Meetings, Notice yearly/ Quarte- during such engagement

Board, Website), Other rly/others �
please specify)

Shareholders No Quarterly results, investor Quarterly and Discussed financial and
and Investors presentations, AGM, ongoing business performance,

annual report, media address queries and shared
releases, website public company information

Government No Meetings, written Ongoing Regulatory compliance,
and Regulators commun-ications, seeking clarifications,

presentations, sharing concerns and
industry associations industry insights

BusinessPartners No Partner meets, workshops Ongoing Operational coordination,
and Vendors one-on-one meetings, job closure, scope

email, app, portal discussion, No Due
confirmations, promote
e-invoicing

Employees No Direct contact, email, Ongoing Share internal updates, align
leadership connect, on goals and values,
surveys, SMS, calls strengthen engagement
website through PLEDGE

(employee value
proposition)

Customers No Email, SMS, apps, calls, Ongoing Product feature updates,
chatbots, postal/call enhance customer
centers, websites, media experience, gather and
campaigns, roadshows respond to feedback

LEADERSHIP INDICATORS

1. Provide the processes for consultation between stakeholders and the Board on economic, environmental, and
social topics or if consultation is delegated, how is feedback from such consultations provided to the Board.

The Company fosters an environment where the Board engages with stakeholders and community members on key social
issues. Where consultations are delegated, stakeholder inputs are presented to the Board in written or video format to
ensure informed decision-making.



2. Whether stakeholder consultation is used to support the identification and management of environmental, and
social topics (Yes / No). If so, provide details of instances as to how the inputs received from stakeholders on
these topics were incorporated into policies and activities of the entity.

Yes. The Company incorporates stakeholder feedback into its policies and operations, particularly on matters related to
financial inclusion. Regular interactions with investors and analysts help guide the Company's approach to inclusive and
responsible business practices.

3. Provide details of instances of engagement with and actions taken to, address the concerns of vulnerable/
marginalized stakeholder groups.

The Company has undertaken initiatives such as financial literacy training programs to empower marginalized
beneficiaries and promote inclusive growth.

PRINCIPLE 5 Businesses should respect and promote human rights

ESSENTIAL INDICATORS

1. Employees and workers who have been provided training on human rights issues and policy(ies) of the
entity, in the following format:

Category                                 CY 2024-25                            PY 2023-24

Total (A) No. Of employ- % (B / A) Total (A) No. Of employ % (B/A)
ees/workers ees/workers
covered (B) covered (B)

EMPLOYEES

Permanent 303 303 100% 277 277 100%

Other than permanent 118 118 100% 64 64 100%

Total Employees 421 421 100% 341 341 100%

WORKERS

Permanent

Other than permanent                 Nil

Total Workers

All employees at the time of joining as well as on a yearly basis declare that they have read and understood the 
Code of conduct and business ethics principles

2 Details of minimum wages paid to employees and workers, in the following format:

Category                       CY 2024-25              PY 2023-24

Total (A)   Equal to     More than          Total Equal  Minimum        More thanMinimum 
 Minimum      Minimum            (D)           Wage Wage
    Wage          Wage

No. % (B/ No. % No. (E) %  (E/D) No.(F) % (F/D)
 (B) A) © (C/A)

EMPLOYEES

Permanent

Male 225 0 0 225 100% 213 0 0 213 100%

Female 78 0 0 78 100% 64 0 0 64 100%



Other than Permanent

Male 84 0 0 84 100% 43 0 0 43 100%

Female 34 0 0 34 100% 21 0 0 21 100%

WORKERS

Permanent

Male

Female Nil

Other than Permanent

Male

Female

3 Details of remuneration/salary/wages, in the following format:

a. Median remuneration / wages:

Particulars                                  Male                                Female

Number Median remunera- Number Median remuneration

tion/ salary/ wages /salary wages of

of respective category respective category

Board of Directors (BoD)# 2 48.72 0 0

Key Managerial Personnel $ 2 17.3 0 0

Employees other than BoD and KMP 309 4.2 112 3.3

Workers 0 0 0 0

# includes Managing Director, Joint Managing Directors & Chief Executive Officer.

$ includes Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary.

b. Gross wages paid to females as % of total wages paid by the entity, in the following format:

  Particulars CY 2024-25 PY 2023-24

  Gross wages paid to females as % of total wages 1.36% 2.14%

4 Do you have a focal point (Individual/ Committee) responsible for addressing human rights impacts or

issues caused or contributed to by the business? (Yes/No)

Yes

5 Describe the internal mechanisms in place to redress grievances related to human rights issues.

The Company has instituted robust internal mechanisms to ensure prompt and fair redressal of grievances related

to human rights. Key measures include:Adoption of policies such as the Human Rights Policy, Diversity, Equity and

Inclusion Policy, Code of Conduct and Business Ethics, Whistle Blower Policy, and Prevention of Sexual

Harassment Policy.These policies are designed to create an inclusive and safe workplace, promoting care,

nurturance, and equal opportunities for professional growth.A structured redressal mechanism is in place to

address complaints sensitively and confidentially.These efforts reflect the Company's commitment to fostering a

culture of respect, inclusion, and accountability.

(` in Lacs)



6 Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers:

Particulars     CY 2024-25                 PY 2023-24

Filed Pending Remarks Filed Pending Remarks
during resolution during resolution

the year at the the year at the
end of year end of year

Sexual Harassment 0 0 NA 0 0 NA

Discrimination at workplace 0 0 NA 0 0 NA

Child Labour 0 0 NA 0 0 NA

Forced Labour/Involuntary Labour 0 0 NA 0 0 NA

Wages 0 0 NA 0 0 NA

Other humanrights related issues 0 0 NA 0 0 NA

7 Complaints filed under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013, in the following format:

Particulars CY 2024-25 PY 2023-24

Total Complaints reported under Sexual Harassment Nil Nil

on of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition

and Redressal) Act, 2013 (POSH)

Complaints on POSH as a % of female employees/

workers Nil Nil

Complaints on POSH upheld Nil Nil

8 Mechanisms to prevent adverse consequences to the complainant in discrimination and harassment
cases.

The Company protects employees who raise concerns under the Whistleblower or Grievance Redressal Policy,
provided the concern is raised in good faith without malice or personal gain.Strict prohibition on retaliation against
employees who report issues.Sexual harassment cases are handled with confidentiality and care, in accordance 
with the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace Act, 2013.

9 Do human rights requirements form part of your business agreements and contracts? (Yes/No)

Yes, human rights requirements are integrated into the Company�s business agreements and contracts wherever
relevant, ensuring alignment with ethical and legal standards.

10 Assessments for the year:

Particulars % of your plants and offices that were assessed (by entity or statutory

authorities or third parties)

Child labour The Company has conducted internal assessments to ensure

Forced/involuntary labour compliance with applicable laws and policies related to child labour,

Sexual harassment forced/involuntary labour, sexual harassment, workplace discrimination,

Discrimination at workplace and wage-related practices. For the year FY 2024-25, no adverse

Wage observations or issues were reported by statutory authorities or third

  Others � please specify parties across any of the Company�s plants or offices.



11 Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks / concerns arising
from the assessments at Question 9 above.

Not Applicable

LEADERSHIP INDICATORS

1 Details of a business process being modified/introduced as a result of addressing human rights
grievances / complaints.

Not Applicable

2 Details of the scope and coverage of any Human rights due-diligence conducted.

No such due diligence conducted

3 Is the premise/office of the entity accessible to differently abled visitors, as per the requirements of
the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 2016?

Yes

4 Details on assessment of value chain partners:

Particulars % of value chain partners (by value of business done with such 
partners) that were assessed

Child labour The Company expects all its value chain partners to uphold similar
Forced/involuntary labour values, beliefs, and ethical standards with respect to child labour, forced

Sexual harassment  labour, sexual harassment, discrimination, and fair wages. However, no

Discrimination at workplace formal evaluation or assessment of such partners has been conducted

Wages  during the year.

Others � please specify

5 Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks / concerns arising
from the assessments at Question 4 above.

Not Applicable

PRINCIPLE 6: Businesses should respect and make efforts to protect and restore the environment

ESSENTIAL INDICATORS

1. Details of total energy consumption (in Joules or multiples) and energy intensity, in the following format:
[in Giga Joules (GJ)]

Parameter CY 2024-2025 PY 2023-2024

From renewable sources

Total electricity consumption (A) 0 0

Total fuel consumption (B) 0 0

Energy consumption through other sources ('C) 0 0

Total energy consumed from renewable sources (A+B+C) 0 0

From non-renewable sources

Total electricity consumption (D) 2,790.27 2,491.31

Total fuel consumption (E) 1.95 1.74

Energy consumption through other sources (F) 0 0

Total energy consumed from non- renewable sources (D+E+F) 2,792.22 2,493.05

Total energy consumed (A+B+C+D+E+F) 2,792.22 2,493.05



Energy intensity per rupee of turnover (Total energy

consumption/turnover in rupees) (GJ per  in Lakhs) 0.00000000865 0.00000000890

Energy intensity per rupee of turnover adjusted for Purchasing

Power Parity (PPP) (Total energy consumed / Revenue from

operations adjusted for PPP) 1.15 1.09

Energy intensity in terms of physical output (GJ / Total Employees) 6.79 6.15

Energy intensity (optional) � the relevant metric may be

selected by the entity 0 0

Note:
Energy consumed from fuels include energy from consumption of diesel in company�s gensets.

For the purpose of calculation of intensity, adjusted purchasing power parity (PPP), conversion factor @20.66
/USD as per International Monetary Fund (IMF) has been considered.

Indicate if any independent assessment/evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency?
(Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency:

Yes, an independent assurance has been carried out by Ekobon Technologies LLP for the FY 24-25 indicators in
the table above.

2. Does the entity have any sites / facilities identified as designated consumers (DCs) under the Performance,
Achieve and Trade (PAT) Scheme of the Government of India? (Y/N) If yes, disclose whether targets set
under the PAT scheme have been achieved. In case targets have not been achieved, provide the remedial
action taken, if any.

Not Applicable

3. Provide details of the following disclosures related to water, in the following format:

Parameter CY 2024-2025 PY 2023-2024

Water withdrawal by source (in kilolitres)

(I) Surface water 0 0

(ii) Groundwater 0 0

(iii) Third party water 4872.81 4687.62

(iv) Seawater / desalinated water 0 0

(v) Others 0 0

Total volume of water withdrawal (in kilolitres) (i + ii + iii + iv + v) 4872.81 4687.62

Total volume of water consumption (in kilolitres) 4872.81 4687.62

Water intensity per rupee of turnover (Total water consumption /
Revenue from operations) 0.000002013 0.000002056

Water intensity per rupee of turnover adjusted for Purchasing Power
Parity (PPP) (Total water consumption / Revenue from operations
adjusted for PPP) 0.0000416 0.000042

Water intensity in terms of physical output - Total water
consumption ÷ total employees 11.57 11.58

Water intensity (optional) � the relevant metric may be
selected by the entity NA NA



Indicate if any independent assessment/evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency?
(Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency:

Yes, an independent assurance has been carried out by Ekobon Technologies LLP for the FY 24-25 indicators in
the table above.

The Company�s use of water is strictly limited to human consumption. As we are not a manufacturing organisation,
the prescribed table does not apply to the Company. Hence, We are not required to fill out the table in the
prescribed format. In the office, efforts have been made to ensure that water is used sparingly.Sensor taps are put
in office washrooms in a variety of offices to reduce water consumption. Domestic trash (sewage) from offices and
branches is not allowed to enter aquatic bodies without treatment.

4. Provide the following details related to water discharged:

Parameter CY 2024-2025 PY 2023-2024

Water discharge by destination and level of treatment (in kilolitres)

(i) To Surface water

No treatment 4,468.27 4,298.45

With treatment please-specify level of treatment 181.36 174.47

(ii) To Groundwater

No treatment NA NA

With treatment please-specify level of treatment NA NA

(iii) To Seawater

No treatment NA NA

With treatment please-specify level of treatment NA NA

(iv) Sent to third-parties

No treatment NA NA

With treatment please-specify level of treatment NA NA

(v) Others

No treatment NA NA

With treatment please-specify level of treatment NA NA

Total water discharged (in kilolitres) 4,649.63 4,472.92

Note: The variance between water withdrawn and discharged (approx. 223 KL in FY 2024�25 and 213 KL in FY 
2023�24) is attributable to evaporation, landscaping, pantry/kitchen use, and internal retention of grey water. This
is consistent across both years and does not indicate unaccounted discharge

Indicate if any independent assessment/evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency?
(Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency:

Yes, an independent assurance has been carried out by Ekobon Technologies LLP for the FY 24-25 indicators in
the table above.

5. Has the entity implemented a mechanism for Zero Liquid Discharge? If yes, provide details of its coverage
and implementation.

A formal Zero Liquid Discharge (ZLD) mechanism is not applicable given the nature of the Company�s operations
(office-based, financial services). Nevertheless, the Company has implemented water minimization measures
such as rainwater harvesting, low-flow fixtures, and sensor-based taps to reduce discharge volumes.



6. Please provide details of air emissions (other than GHG emissions) by the entity, in the following format:

Parameter Please specify unit CY 2024-2025 PY 2023-2024

NOx Not Applicable

SOx Not Applicable

Particulate matter (PM) Not Applicable

Persistent organic pollutants (POP) Not Applicable

Volatile organic compounds (VOC) Not Applicable

Hazardous air pollutants (HAP) Not Applicable

Others�please specify Not Applicable

Indicate if any independent assessment/evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency?
(Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency:

Not Applicable

7 Provide details of greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions) & its intensity, in the
following format:

Parameter Unit CY 2024-2025 PY 2023-2024

Total Scope 1 emissions (Break-up of the Metric tonnes of 0.15 0.13
GHG into CO2, CH4, N2O, HFCs, PFCs, CO2 equivalent
SF6, NF3, if available)

Total Scope 2 emissions (Break-up of the GHG Metric tonnes of 555.43 495.92
into CO2, CH4, N2O, HFCs, PFCs, SF6, NF3, CO2 equivalent
if available)

Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emission intensity Metric tonnes of 0.000000229 0.000000217
per rupee of turnover (Total Scope 1 and Scope CO2e / Revenue
2 GHG emissions / Revenue from operations)

Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emission intensity Metric tonnes of 0.00000474 0.00000447
per rupee of turnover adjusted for Purchasing CO2e / Revenue-
Power Parity (PPP) (Total Scope 1 and Scope adjusted for PPP
2 GHG emissions / Revenue from operations
adjusted for PPP)

Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emission intensity 1.32 1.22
in terms of physical output

Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emission intensity NA NA
(optional) � the relevant metric may be
selected by the entity

Indicate if any independent assessment/evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external 
agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency:

Yes, an independent assurance has been carried out by Ekobon Technologies LLP for the FY 24-25 indicators in
the table above.

8 Does the entity have any project related to reducing Green House Gas emission? If Yes, then provide
details.

Yes. Although Arihant Capital�s operations are service-based and not energy intensive, the company has
launched initiatives to reduce its carbon footprint and associated greenhouse-gas emissions. These

The company is a service provider 
and not a manufacturing concernand 

hence this point is not applicable.



include:Energy-efficient facilities: Arihant has systematically replaced conventional lighting with LEDs and
invested in energy-efficient office infrastructure to lower electricity consumption Paperless, digital workflows:
The firm has implemented paperless processes-such as e-KYC platforms and digital account statements-which
reduce paper use, minimise client travel and therefore cut indirect emissions Tree-plantation campaign:
Through the �Start a SIP, Plant a Tree� programme, Arihant partnered with the Prasiddhi Forest Foundation to
fund and plant over 500 trees around Indore, helping to offset emissions and raise environmental awareness
Together, these measuresserve as thecompany�sprimary projects to prevent andoffset greenhouse-gasemissions.

9 Provide details related to waste management by the entity, in the following format:

Parameter CY 2024-2025 PY 2023-2024

Total Waste generated (in metric tonnes)

Plastic waste (A)

E-waste (B) 0.14 0.13

Bio-medical waste ©

Construction and demolition waste (D)

Battery waste (E)                              Not Applicable

Radioactive waste (F)

Other Hazardous waste.Please specify, if any.(G)

Other Non-hazardous waste generated (H). Please specify, if any.

(Break-up by composition i.e. By materials relevant to the sector) 0.95 0.91

Total (A+B+C+D+E+F+G+H) 1.09 1.04

Parameter CY 2024-2025 PY 2023-2024

Waste intensity per rupee of turnover (Total waste generated / 0.00000000454 0.000000004610

Revenue from operations)

Waste intensity per rupee of turnover adjusted for Purchasing 0.0000000938 0.0000000953

Power Parity (PPP) (Total waste generated / Revenue from

operations adjusted for PPP)

Waste intensity in terms of physical output NA NA

Waste intensity (optional) � the relevant metric may be selected NA NA

by the entity

For each category of waste generated, total waste recovered through recycling, re-using or other 
recovery operations (in metric tonnes)

Category of waste CY 2024-2025 PY 2023-2024

(i) Recycled Negligible 0.66

(ii) Re-used No waste is currently No waste is currently

reused in either year reused in either year

The plastic waste generated from our 
office premises isminimal, as the 

majority of plastics used, including 
plasticbags, are biodegradable. The 

negligible amount of plasticwaste 
produced is not significant enough to 

be relevant toour operations.



(iii) Other recovery operations No energy-from-waste No energy-from-waste
or otherrecovery or other recovery 

activities are applicable. activities are applicable.

Total Negligible 0.66

For each category of waste generated, total waste disposed by nature of disposal method (in metric
tonnes)

Category of waste CY 2024-2025 PY 2023-2024

(i) Incineration Our waste generation is minimal Our waste generation is minimal

(ii) Landfilling and consequently there isno and consequently there isno

(iii) Other disposal operations requirement of incineration or requirement of incineration

landfilling activities. or landfillingactivities.

Total 0 0

Note : In FY 2024�25, office waste was segregated and provided to authorized recyclers. While the volumes were
negligible compared to total waste generated, recycling practices are in place. Hence, recycling is disclosed as 
�negligible� rather than �nil�. In FY 2023�24, approximately 0.66 MT of waste was recycled

Indicate if any independent assessment/evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency?
(Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency:

Yes, an independent assurance has been carried out by Ekobon Technologies LLP for the FY 24-25 indicators in
the table above.

10 Briefly describe the waste management practices adopted in your establishments. Describe the strategy
adopted by your company to reduce usage of hazardous and toxic chemicals in your products and
processes and the practices adopted to manage such wastes.

Arihant Capital�s waste management begins with source segregation: dry recyclables and wet organics are
separated in offices; dry waste is sent to authorised recyclers and wet waste is handed over to municipal
composting services. E-waste is channelled to certified recyclers, while single-use plastics have been virtually
eliminated through point-of-use water filtration and the use of reusable cups and bottles. Because it is a financial
services company, there is no use of hazardous or toxic chemicals in its operations. The firm nonetheless specifies
eco-friendly, low-VOC cleaning agents and biodegradable consumables in procurement contracts and relies on
licensed vendors for safe disposal of any equipment containing oils or batteries, ensuring compliance with
applicable environmental regulations.

11 If the entity has operations/offices in/around ecologically sensitive areas (such as national parks, wildlife
sanctuaries, biosphere reserves, wetlands, biodiversity hotspots, forests, coastal regulation zones etc.) 
where environmental approvals / clearances are required, please specify details in the following format:

Not Applicable

12 Details of environmental impact assessments of projects undertaken by the entity based on applicable
laws, in the current financial year:

Not Applicable

13 Is the entity compliant with the applicable environmental law/ regulations/ guidelines in India; such as the
Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, Environment
protection act and rules thereunder (Y/N). If not,provide details of all such non-compliances, in the
following format:

Not Applicable

LEADERSHIP INDICATORS

14 Water withdrawal, consumption and discharge in areas of water stress (in kilolitres):

For each facility / plant located in areas of water stress, provide the following information:



(i) Name of the area - NA

(ii) Nature of operations - NA

(iii) Water withdrawal, consumption and discharge in the following format::

Parameter CY 2024-2025 PY 2023-2024

Water withdrawal by source (in kilolitres)

(i) Surface water

(ii) Groundwater

(iii) Third party water NA NA

(iv) Seawater / desalinated water

(v) Others

Total volume of water withdrawal (in kilolitres)

Total volume of water consumption (in kilolitres) NA NA

Water intensity per rupee of turnover (Water consumed / turnover)

Water intensity (optional) � the relevant metric may be selected by the entity

Water discharge by destination and level of treatment (in kilolitres)

(i) Into Surface water

- No treatment

- With treatment � please specify level of treatment

(ii) Into Groundwater

- No treatment

- With treatment � please specify level of treatment

(iii) Into Seawater

- No treatment NA NA

- With treatment � please specify level of treatment

(iv) Sent to third-parties

- No treatment

- With treatment � please specify level of treatment

(v) Others

- No treatment

- With treatment � please specify

level of treatment

Total water discharged (in kilolitres)

Indicate if any independent assessment/evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external
agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency:

Not Applicable

2 Please provide details of total Scope 3 emissions & its intensity, in the following format:

Parameter Unit FY 2024-2025 FY 2023-2024

Total Scope 3 emissions (Break-up of the Metric tonnes of CO2

GHG into CO2, CH4, N2O, HFCs, PFCs, equivalent

SF6,NF3, if available)

As a service-oriented business
primarilyinvolved in the flow of
information andfinancial transactions,
the Companybelieves that i ts



Total Scope 3 emissions per rupee

o fturnover tCO

Total Scope 3 emission intensity (optional)� Metric tonnesCO2e /

the relevant metric may be selected by TotalEmployees

the entity

Note : Currently, Scope 3 emissions (such as financed emissions, employee commute, and upstream/downstream
activities) have not been quantified. However, the Company recognizes their significance and intends to evaluate
methodologies in line with global frameworks (e.g., PCAF and GHG Protocol Scope 3 Standard) in future reporting
cycles.

Indicate if any independent assessment/evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency?
(Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency:

Not Applicable

3 With  respect  to  the  ecologically  sensitive  areas  reported  at  Question  10  of  Essential Indicators 
above, provide details of significant direct & indirect impact of the entity on biodiversity in such areas
along-with prevention and remediation activities.

Since Arihant Capital operates purely as a financial-services provider, its activities do not directly impact
ecologically sensitive areas or local biodiversity. Nonetheless, the company recognises its duty to mitigate any
indirect effects. Before constructing or acquiring new office premises, Arihant Capital secures all necessary
permissions and no-objection certificates from relevant authorities. This vetting process ensures that projects
comply with statutory requirements and that potential impacts on biodiversity are assessed and mitigated.

4 If the entity has undertaken any specific initiatives or used innovative technology or solutions to improve
resource efficiency, or reduce impact due to emissions/ effluent discharge /waste generated, please
provide details of the same as well as outcome of such initiatives, as per the following format:

S. N. Initiative Details of the initiative (Web-link, if Outcome of the initiative

any, may be provided along-with
summary)

1 Energy-efficient and Implemented energy-efficient LEDs Significant reduction in electricity
paperless operations across all offices and modernized consumption and paper use; lower

operational technology to reduce carbon footprint; improved operational
energy use. Launched a fully paperless efficiency; reduced need for physical
AI-driven eKYC platform allowing document storage and travel.
clients to open accounts and access
statements online. See more:
https://blog.arihantcapital.com/
sustainability-arihant-how-arihant-
capital-is-committed-to-reduce-its-
carbon-footprint/

2 Tree plantation & green Conducted the �Start a SIP, Plant a Enhanced local green cover and
CSR initiatives Tree� campaign in partnership with carbon sequestration, increased

Prasiddhi Singh, planting over 500 community engagement and CSR
trees in and around Indore. See more: impact.
https://blog.arihantcapital.com/
sustainability-arihant-how-arihant-
capital-is-committed-to-reduce-its
-carbon-footprint

operations do not result indirect
emissions that adversely impact
theenvironment. Given the nature of
ourservices, the Company currently
does not measure Scope 3
emissions.



3 Reduce, reuse & Introduced point-of-use water filtration Prevented millions of single-use cups
recycle programme systems to eliminate single-use and bottles from waste streams,

plastic bottles. Encouraged reusable improved recycling rates and waste
ceramic cups and segregated waste management.
for recyclingandcomposting.See more:
https://blog.arihantcapital.com/
sustainability-arihant-how-arihant-
capital-is-committed-to-reduce-its-
carbon-footprint/

4 Vendor sustainability Ensures environmental permits and Ensures environmental compliance,
& compliance no-objection certificates from minimizes ecological footprint from

authorities for new office buildings. property projects, and promotes
Prioritizes vendors that align with responsible supply chain.
sustainability values and practices.

5 Does the entity have a business continuity and disaster management plan? Give details in 100 words/ web
link.
The Company has a formal Business Continuity & Disaster Recovery Policy & Plan in place. This policy establishes
a company-wide business-continuity programme with procedures for developing, implementing, exercising and
maintaining business-specific continuity plans. It identifies potential disruptions-such as natural disasters or
cyber-attacks-and sets out prevention and recovery measures designed to protect personnel and assets and
ensure critical operations can resume quickly. Regular tests and mock drills are conducted to locate and correct 
weaknesses. The policy is periodically reviewed and updated to address emerging risks.

6 Disclose any significant adverse impact to the environment, arising from the value chain of the entity. What
mitigation or adaptation measures have been taken by the entity in this regard.

Given its purely service-oriented nature, the Company�s activities and value chain do not generate significant
environmental impacts. Arihant Capital�s operations involve primarily office-based services and do not entail
manufacturing, resource extraction or other activities that typically affect biodiversity, air or water quality.
Consequently, no material adverse impacts on the environment have been identified across its supply chain.
Nonetheless, the Company actively monitors its suppliers and partners to ensure compliance with all relevant
environmental regulations, and it engages only those vendors who follow sustainable practices. In the event any
risk is identified, appropriate mitigation or remediation steps are taken promptly.

7 Percentage of value chain partners (by value of business done with such partners) that were assessed for
environmental impacts.

Nil

8 How many Green Credits have been generated or procured by the listed entity?

Nil

PRINCIPLE 7 Businesses, when engaging in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a manner
that is responsible and transparent

ESSENTIAL INDICATORS

1 a Number of affiliations with trade and industry chambers/ associations.
The Company was a member of 2 (Two) trade and industry chambers/associations during the FY 2024-25.

b List the top 10 trade and industry chambers/ associations (determined based on the total members of
such body) the entity is a member of/ affiliated to.



The company is a service provider
 and hence this point is Not Applicable

S. No. Name of the trade Reach of trade and
and industry industry chambers/
chambers/ associations
asociations (State/National)

1 Association of National National
Exchange Members

of India

2 Indore Management State
Association

2 Provide details of corrective action taken or underway on any issues related to anticompetitive conduct by
the entity, based on adverse orders from regulatory authorities.

Not Applicable

LEADERSHIP INDICATORS

1. Details of public policy positions advocated by the entity:

Not Applicable

PRINCIPLE 8 Businesses should promote inclusive growth and equitable development

ESSENTIAL INDICATORS

1 Details of Social Impact Assessments (SIA) of projects undertaken by the entity based on applicable laws,
in the current financial year.

Please refer CSR Annexure- B which is part of the Annual Report

2 Provide information on project(s) for which ongoing Rehabilitation and Resettlement (R&R) is being
undertaken by your entity, in the following format:

Not Applicable

3 Describe the mechanisms to receive and redress grievances of the community

The company has established a complaint register in the HR department to address issues raised by various
stakeholder groups. Complaints are reviewed regularly, and appropriate actions are taken to resolve them.

4 Percentage of input material (inputs to total inputs by value) sourced from suppliers:

Particulars CY 2024-25 PY 2023-24

Directly sourced from MSMEs/ small producers

Sourced directly from within the district and neighbouring districts

5 Job creation in smaller towns � Disclose wages paid to persons employed (including employees or
workers employed on a permanent or non-permanent / on contract basis) in the following locations, as %
of total wage cost

Location CY PY
2024-25 2023-24

Rural 0 0

Semi-urban 0 0

Urban 10 0

Metropolitan 90 100



(For the purpose of categorization of people employed in rural/semi-urban/urban/metropolitan as per the Reserve
Bank of India classification system, the location of employees is considered as on 31 March 2025 as per HR
records.)

LEADERSHIP INDICATORS

1 Provide details of actions taken to mitigate any negative social impacts identified in the Social Impact
Assessments (Reference: Question 1 of Essential Indicators above):

Not Applicable

2 Provide the following information on CSR projects undertaken by your entity in designated aspirational 
districts as identified by government bodies:

Please refer CSR Annexure- B which is part of the Annual Report

3 a Do you have a preferential procurement policy where you give preference to purchase from suppliers
comprising marginalized /vulnerable groups? (Yes/No)

Not applicable

b From which marginalized /vulnerable groups do you procure?

Not Applicable

c What percentage of total procurement (by value) does it constitute?

Not Applicable

4 Details of the benefits derived and shared from the intellectual properties owned or acquired by your entity
(in the current financial year), based on traditional knowledge:

Not Applicable

5 Details of corrective actions taken or underway, based on any adverse order in intellectual property
related disputes wherein usage of traditional knowledge is involved.

Not Applicable

6 Details of beneficiaries of CSR Projects:

Please refer CSR Annexure- B which is part of the Annual Report

PRINCIPLE 9 Businesses should engage with and provide value to their consumers in a responsible manner

ESSENTIAL INDICATORS

1 Describe the mechanisms in place to receive and respond to consumer complaints and feedback.

The Company receives consumer complaints and queries via phone, email, fax, personal visits, letters, and
through authorised representatives or branches. Complaints are also received through regulatory authorities,
exchanges, legal representatives, consumer forums, SCORES portal, and Smart ODR platforms.

All queries and complaints are segregated and addressed individually, with a detailed response provided after
examining the facts.

2 Turnover of products and/ services as a percentage of turnover from all products/service that carry

information about:

As a percentage to total turnover

Environmental and social parameters relevant to the product Not Applicable

Safe and responsible usage Not Applicable

Recycling and/or safe disposal Not Applicable



3 Number of consumer complaints in respect of the following:

                  CY 2024-25 PY 2023-24

Received Pending Remarks Received Pending Remarks

during the resolution during the resolution

year at end of year at end of

year year

Data privacy 0 0 NA 0 0 NA

Advertising 0 0 NA 0 0 NA

Cyber-security 0 0 NA 0 0 NA

Delivery of essential services 0 0 NA 0 0 NA

Restrictive Trade Practices 0 0 NA 0 0 NA

Unfair Trade Practices 0 0 NA 0 0 NA

Other 0 0 NA 0 0 NA

4 Details of instances of product recalls on account of safety issues:

Not Applicable

5 Does the entity have a framework/ policy on cyber security and risks related to data privacy? (Yes/No) If

available, provide a web-link of the policy.

Yes, the policy is available at - (https://www.arihantcapital.com/investor-relations/governance)

6 Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway on issues relating to advertising, and
delivery of essential services; cyber security and data privacy of customers; re-occurrence of
instances of product recalls; penalty / action taken by regulatory authorities on safety of products /
services.

Not Applicable

7 Provide the following information relating to data breaches:

a Number of instances of data breaches NA

b Percentage of data breaches involving personally

identifiable information of customers NA

c Impact, if any, of the data breaches NA

LEADERSHIP INDICATORS

1 Channels / platforms where information on products and services of the entity can be accessed (provide

web link, if available).

https://www.arihantcapital.com/

2 Steps taken to inform and educate consumers about safe and responsible usage of products and/or
services.

The Company conducts pan-India customer awareness programmes to disseminate information on safe and
responsible usage.



3 Mechanisms in place to inform consumers of any risk of disruption/discontinuation of essential services.

Consumers are informed via SMS, email, and updates on the Company�s website.

4 Does the entity display product information on the product over and above what is mandated as per local
laws? (Yes/No/Not Applicable) If yes, provide details in brief. Did your entity carry out any survey with
regard to consumer satisfaction relating to the major products / services of the entity, significant
locations of operation of the entity or the entity as a whole? (Yes/No)

Not Applicable



Independent Assurance Report

To

The Board of Directors

Arihant Capital Markets Limited

Subject: Independent Reasonable Assurance Report on KPIs/Metrics in the Business Responsibility and
Sustainability Report (BRSR) of Arihant Capital Markets Limited

Introduction

EkoBon Technologies LLP (�EkoBon�) has been engaged by Arihant Capital Markets Limited (�the Company�) to provide
an independent assurance report on selected sustainability disclosures contained in the Company�s Business
Responsibility and Sustainability Report (BRSR) for the financial year 2024 25. This engagement is carried out pursuant to
Regulation 34(2)(f) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements.

Scope of Work

SEBI�s guidance divides BRSR indicators into a set of Core disclosures requiring reasonable assurance and other
indicators requiring limited assurance. Our scope therefore comprised two levels of assurance:

Reasonable assurance on Core indicators � covering energy consumption and intensity; greenhouse gas (GHG)
emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2) and their intensities; water withdrawal and consumption; waste generation and
disposal; gender diversity and inclusion; training hours; occupational health and safety metrics; community
investments; and other essential sustainability metrics.

Limited assurance on Other indicators � covering the remainder of the sustainability disclosures provided in the 
Company�s BRSR for FY 2024 25.

Criteria and Reporting Framework

The disclosures subject to assurance have been prepared in accordance with SEBI�s Business Responsibility and
Sustainability Reporting (BRSR) format and related guidance. In assessing and attesting these indicators we used the
criteria established by the Company in its sustainability policies, internal management systems, applicable national and
international standards, and the requirements set out in the SEBI BRSR Core framework.

Responsibilities

Management�s responsibility

Preparation and presentation of the BRSR, including identifying material issues, measuring performance indicators and
disclosing qualitative and quantitative information, rests with the Company�s management. Management is responsible for
designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation of these disclosures and for ensuring
that the data underlying the sustainability disclosures is accurate, complete and free from material misstatement.

Assurance provider�s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an independent opinion on the selected Core and Other indicators based on the procedures
performed. We conducted our engagement in accordance with the International Standard on Assurance Engagements
(ISAE) 3000 (Revised), Assurance Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and
ISAE 3410, Assurance Engagements on Greenhouse Gas Statements. These standards require that we plan and perform
the engagement to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Core indicators, and limited assurance about whether
the Other indicators, are free from material misstatement.



Methodology

For the Core indicators, our procedures included assessing the appropriateness of the reporting criteria; understanding
the processes used to generate, consolidate and report the indicators; interviewing management and relevant staff;
reviewing policies, procedures and documentation; evaluating the design of internal controls; and performing sampling,
recalculation and analytical reviews of underlying data.

For the indicators subject to limited assurance, we interviewed management and staff, conducted analytical reviews and
performed limited tests of underlying records. The evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for the
conclusions expressed in this report.

Conclusion

Reasonable assurance conclusion on Core indicators

Based on the procedures performed and the evidence obtained, in our opinion the Core indicators contained in Arihant 
Capital Markets Limited�s BRSR for the financial year 2024 25 have been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance
with the criteria described above.

Limited assurance conclusion on Other indicators

Based on the procedures performed and the evidence obtained, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to
believe that the Other indicators contained in Arihant Capital Markets Limited�s BRSR for the financial year 2024 25 have
not been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the criteria described above.

Independence and Competence

We are independent of Arihant Capital Markets Limited in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India and have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with this Code. Our firm
applies a comprehensive quality management system designed to ensure that our engagements are carried out with
professional competence, due care and skill. Our team comprises professionals experienced in ESG reporting,
sustainability assurance and the financial services sector.

Restriction on Use

This report is issued at the request of Arihant Capital Markets Limited solely for inclusion in its Business Responsibility and
Sustainability Report. It should not be used for any other purpose without the prior written consent of EkoBon Technologies
LLP.

Annexure 1 � Core BRSR indicators subject to reasonable assurance

The Core indicators covered under the reasonable assurance engagement include measures relating to energy
consumption and intensity; GHG emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2) and their intensities; water withdrawal and
consumption; waste generation and disposal; gender diversity and inclusion; employee training hours; occupational
health and safety metrics; community investments; and other essential sustainability metrics prescribed by SEBI�s BRSR
Core framework.

For EkoBon Technologies LLP

Nikhil Jain

Managing Partner and CEO

Independent Assurance Provider

Date: 07 July, 2025

Place: Indore, Madhya Pradesh



Annexure 1

S.N. Attribute Parameter (key metrics reported) BRSR Indicator*

1 Greenhouse gas � Total Scope 1 emissions (tCO e) and Scope 2 Principle 6 � E 7

(GHG) footprint emissions (tCO e) � GHG emission intensity

(Scope 1 + 2) based on revenue (tCO e/ ),
adjusted for PPP, and per employee

2 Water footprint � Total water consumption (kL) � Water intensity Principle 6 � E 3 and E 4
based on revenue, PPP and physical output
(kL/`; kL/Intl. $; kL/employee) � Water discharge by
destination and levels of treatment

3 Energy footprint � Total energy consumed (GJ) � Percentage of energy Principle 6 � E 1
from renewable sources � Energy intensity based on
revenue, PPP and physical output (GJ/`; GJ/Intl. $;
GJ/employee)

4 Embracing circularity � Plastic, e waste, bio medical, construction & Principle 6 � E 9
waste management demolition, radioactive, other hazardous and other

non hazardous waste generated (tonnes) � Total
waste generated � Waste intensity based on revenue,
PPP and physical output � For each category of
waste: amount recovered through recycling/re using
and amount disposed of by method

5 Enhancing employee � Spending on measures for well being of employees Principle 3 � E 1© and E 11
well being and safety and workers as a % of total revenue � Details of safety

related incidents for employees and workers
(including contract workforce)

6 Enabling gender � Gross wages paid to female employees as % of Principle 5 � E 3(b) and E 7
diversity in business total wages paid � Complaints filed under the

Prevention of Sexual Harassment (POSH) Act

7 Enabling inclusive � Input material sourced from MSMEs/small producers Principle 8 � E 4 and E 5
development and from within India as % of total purchases � Job

creation in smaller towns � wages paid to persons
employed in smaller towns (permanent or contract) as
% of total wage cost

8 Fairness in engaging with � Instances of loss/breach of customer data as a Principle 9 � E 7 and
customers and suppliers % of total data breaches or cybersecurity events Principle 1 � E 8

� Number of days of accounts payable (Trade
payables ÷ Other expenses, expressed in days)

9 Open ness of business � Concentration of purchases and sales done with Principle 1 � E 9
trading houses/dealers/related parties (purchases
or sales with related parties as % of total) � Loans and
advances to related parties and investments in related
parties as % of total loans/advances and investments

*Indicator references correspond to SEBI�s BRSR Core indicator numbering for each principle. Arihant Capital�s FY 2024
25 BRSR data for the metrics above (e.g., energy consumed, Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions, water consumption, waste
generation, employee and diversity metrics) are reported within the relevant sections of the BRSR.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR�S REPORT

To the Members of

ARIHANT CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of ARIHANT CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED
(�the Company�), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, (including the
statement of Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and statement of Cash Flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the standalone Ind AS financial statements, including, a summary of material accounting policies
and other explanatory information. (Hereinafter referred to as the �standalone financial statements�).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone Ind
AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (�the Act�), in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standard prescribed under section 133 of the act read
with the companies (Indian Accounting Standards) rules,2015 as amended, (�Ind AS�) and other principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2025, and its Profit, and other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements' section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters ('KAM') are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the standalone Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Information Other than the standalone Ind AS financial statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexure to 
Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Information, but does not
include the Standalone Ind AS financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.



In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is no material misstatement of this other information;

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS financial statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (�the Act�) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, Profit/Loss (and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (�Ind
AS�) specified under section 133. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Management and Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the standalone Ind AS financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As part of audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant



doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone Ind AS financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020, issued by the Central Government of India in terms of
sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the 'Annexure A', a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of section
197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration 
paid/provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 
of the Act.

3. Further, as required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including the Statement of Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 
Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2025 taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial control over financial reporting of the company with reference
to these Standalone Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such control, refer to our
separate report in Annexure �B�.



(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

(i) The Company, as detailed in note 40 to the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, has disclosed the impact
of pending litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2025.

(ii) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material
foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts;

(iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in
the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (�Intermediaries�), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (�Ultimate Beneficiaries�) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b)The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other than as 
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any 
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (�Funding Parties�), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (�Ultimate Beneficiaries�) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on such audit procedures that the auditor has considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

(v) (a) The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid by the Company during the
year is in accordance with section 123 of the act, as Applicable.

(b) No interim dividend was declared and paid by the company during the year.

(c) The Board of directors of the company have proposed final dividend for the year which is subject
to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The amount of dividend
proposed is in accordance with section 123 of the act, as Applicable.

(vi) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software
for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not
come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with and under proviso to Rule
3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2024 the audit trail has been preserved by the company as
per the statutory requirements for record therein.



ANNEXURE �A� TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report of
steven date to the Members of ARIHANT CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED on the accounts for the year ended 31

March, 2025)

(i) In respect of the Company's Property Plant & Equipments:

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records to show full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property Plant & Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records to show full particulars of Intangible assets.

(b) The Property Plant & Equipment of the Company are physically verified by the management at
regular intervals. During the year, as informed to us, no discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, we report
that the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties are held in the Company's name as at
the balance sheet date.

(d) The company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets during
the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made
thereunder.

(ii) In respect of the Company's Inventory:

(a) The securities held as stock in trade have been verified by the Management with the statement of
holdings provided by depository participants and brokers at reasonable intervals. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable and no material discrepancies between the book records and
the statement of holdings provided by NSDL, other depository participants and brokers have been
noticed.

(b) During the year the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crore 
from bank on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly returns or statements filed by the
company with such banks are in agreement with the books of account of the Company.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
books of account, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties listed in the register maintained under Section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013. Consequently, the provisions of clauses 3(iii) (a), (b), (c), (d), (e) & (f) of the
order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv) The company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of Companies Act, 2013 in respect
of loans, investments, guarantees and securities, as applicable.

(v) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not accepted deposits from
the public within the meaning of the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, under provisions of
section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules framed there under.



(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the maintenance of cost records has not been
prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of the activities carried by the company.

(vii) (a) As per the records of the Company, the company is generally regular in depositing the statutory dues
including GST, provident fund, employee�s state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty
of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to
it with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, no
undisputed amount in respect of GST, income tax, sales tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty,
cess, applicable to it, is outstanding as at the last day of the financial year concerned for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of records
of the Company there is no provident fund, sales tax, income tax, wealth tax, cess which have not
been deposited on account of dispute except for the following instances:

(  in Lacs)

Statute In Nature of Dues Financial Forum at which Amount
which pending Year Pending involved

Income Tax Act, 1961 Tax and Interest thereon 2012-13 Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) 18.47

Income Tax Act, 1961 Tax and Interest thereon 2017-18 Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) 13.20

Income Tax Act, 1961 Penalty 2011-12 Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) 1.60

Income Tax Act, 1961 Penalty 2013-14 Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) 1.60

Income Tax Act, 1961 Penalty 2014-15 Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) 1.20

Income Tax Act, 1961 Tax and Interest thereon 2019-20 Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) 30.90

(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed 
as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(ix) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
the repayment of loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any banks, financial institutions,
government or other lender.

(b) The company is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(c) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) The funds raised on short term basis have not been utilized for long term purposes.

(e) The company has not taken any such type of funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f) The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associate companies.

(x). (a) According to the information and explanation given to us and the record examined by us, the Company has not
raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer during the year. Hence, clause 3(ix) of the
order is not applicable.



(b) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information given by the management, the company has
not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud
by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the
course of our audit.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government during the year and upto the date of this year.

(c) according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no whistle-blower complaints received
during the year by the company hence this clause is not applicable.

(xii) Company is not a Nidhi Company as prescribed under Section 406 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies
Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements etc. as required by the
applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the nature
of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during the year
in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. .

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected to its directors and hence provisions
of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not required to be registered under
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 hence this clause is not applicable.

(b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid
Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
hence this clause is not applicable.

(c ) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India hence this clause is not applicable.

(d) The group has no CIC as part of the group hence this clause is not applicable.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

(xviii) During the year, the previous statutory auditor resigned due to a casual vacancy. The vacancy was duly filled by
the Board of Directors in accordance with the provisions of Section 139(8) of the Companies Act, 2013. We have
not come across any matters reported by the outgoing auditor that would impact our audit.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of 
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, in our opinion no material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.



(xx) (a) The company has spent full amount as required to be spent as per the Companies Act 2013. No amount
remained unspent which were required to be transferred in respect of other than ongoing projects in Funds
specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act within a period of six months of the expiry of the financial year
in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act.

(b) In respect of ongoing projects, the Company has transferred unspent Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
amount, to a Special account before the date of this report and within a period of 30 days from the end of the
financial year in compliance with the provision of section 135(6) of the Act.

For : Arora Banthia & Tulsiyan
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 007028C

(CA Ajay Tulsiyan)
Partner
M. No.: 074868
UDIN: 25074868BMUIJE5992

thIndore, 10 May, 2025



ANNEXURE �B�

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report
steven date to the Members of ARIHANT CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED on the accounts for the year ended 31

March, 2025)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Ind AS financial statements of
stArihant Capital Markets Limited (�the Company�) as of 31  March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the 

Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
stStandalone Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31

March 2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the �Guidance Note�).

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor�s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these
standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the �Guidance Note�) and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements were established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining



an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Ind
AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control with reference to Standalone Ind AS financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
Standalone Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that;

1. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone Ind AS
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial with reference to financial statement, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to Standalone Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control with reference to Standalone Ind AS financial statements financial statement may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

For : Arora Banthia & Tulsiyan
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 007028C

(CA Ajay Tulsiyan)
Partner
M. No.: 074868
UDIN: 25074868BMUIJE5992

thIndore, 10 May, 2025



Standalone Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025 ( in Lacs)
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

ASSETS
1 Financial assets

a. Cash and cash equivalents 4 1,095.92 1,678.24
b. Bank balance other than Cash and cash equivalent 5 38,239.27 37,868.41
c. Derivative financial instruments 6 - 4.47
d. Securities for trade 7 4,824.16 2,905.39
e. Trade receivables 8 9,673.29 9,630.48
f. Loans 9 12,972.70 17,446.95
g. Investments 10 1,974.88 1,582.39
h. Other financial assets 11 1,415.39 1,738.98

70,195.61 72,855.31
2 Non financial assets

a. Property, plant and equipment 12 2,622.94 1,209.36
b. Other intangible assets 13 214.05 243.62
c. Other non financial assets 14 663.61 815.81

3,500.60 2,268.79
Total Assets 73,696.21 75,124.10

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
LIABILITIES

1 Financial Liabilities
a. Derivative financial instruments 15 210.38 -
b. Trade Payables 16

i) Total outstanding dues of micro & small enterprises 61.13 164.89
ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 26,818.41 30,973.59
micro & small enterprises

c. Debt securities 17 2,393.00 4,325.00
d. Borrowings 18 5,776.00 4,921.19
e. Other financial Liabilities 19 2,368.10 4,195.29

37,627.02 44,579.96
2 Non Financial Liabilities

a. Current Tax Liabilities (net) 20 41.71 179.73
b. Provisions 21 320.41 261.61
c. Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 22 147.32 67.56
d. Other non financial liabilities 23 587.99 681.10

1,097.43 1,190.00
3 Equity

a. Equity share capital 24 1,041.13 1,041.13
b. Other equity 25 33,930.63 28,313.01

34,971.76 29,354.14

Total Liabilities & Equity 73,696.21 75,124.10

Notes Forming Part of Standalone Financial statements 1 to 60

As per our report of even date
For Arora Banthia & Tulsiyan
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No: 007028C

CA. Ajay Tulsiyan
Partner
Membership No. : 074868
UDIN : 25074868BMUIJE5992

thIndore, 10  May, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board
Ashok Kumar Jain
Managing Director 
DIN-00184729

Arpit Jain
Joint Managing Director
& CEO
DIN-06544441

Uttam Maheshwari
Chief Financial Officer
Membership No. : 41913

Mahesh Pancholi 
Company Secretary 
Membership No. : F7143 



Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025 (` in Lacs)

Particulars Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Income
I Revenue from Operations

Interest Income 26 8,018.78 6,361.16
Dividend Income 27 37.80 55.62
Fees & Commission Income 28 13,910.53 12,078.66
Net Gain on fair value changes 29 2,168.49 4,398.09

II Other Income 30 69.15 43.21
III Total Income 24,204.75 22,936.74
IV Expenses

Finance costs 31 1,929.73 1,228.65
Fees and commission expense 32 7,596.27 6,847.34
Impairment on financial instruments 33 - 11.40
Employee Benefits Expenses 34 3,969.27 3,075.15
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 35 301.39 237.50
Other Expenses 36 3,706.14 2,871.32
Total 17,502.80 14,271.36

V Profit Before Exceptional Items and Tax 6,701.94 8,665.38
VI Exceptional items 37 358.07 33.75
VII Profit Before Tax 7,060.01 8,699.13
VIII Tax Expenses 38

Current Tax 1,676.28 2,148.95
Deferred Tax 85.31 (33.33)
Total Tax Expenses 1,761.59 2,115.62

IX Profit/(loss) for the year 5,298.42 6,583.51
X Other Comprehensive Income
(A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit & loss

Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (22.04) (54.65)
Tax effect relating to above item 5.55 13.75
Total (A) (16.49) (40.90)

(B) Items that will be reclassified to profit & loss
Tax effect relating to above item - -
Total (B) - -
Total Other Comprehensive Income (A+B) (16.49) (40.90)

XI Total Comprehensive Income for the period 5,281.93 6,542.61
XII Earnings per Share 39

Equity Shares of `1 each
Basic (Amount in `) 5.09 6.32
Diluted (Amount in `) 4.86 6.32

Notes Forming Part of Standalone Financial statements 1 to 60

As per our report of even date
For Arora Banthia & Tulsiyan
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No: 007028C

CA. Ajay Tulsiyan
Partner
Membership No. : 074868
UDIN : 25074868BMUIJE5992
Indore, 10th May, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board
Ashok Kumar Jain
Managing Director 
DIN-00184729

Arpit Jain
Joint Managing Director
& CEO
DIN-06544441

Uttam Maheshwari
Chief Financial Officer
Membership No. : 41913

Mahesh Pancholi 
Company Secretary 
Membership No. : F7143 



Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025 (` in Lacs)
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

A Cash flow (used in) / generated from operating activities
Profit before tax 7,060.01 8,699.13
Add / (less) : Adjustments
Unrealised (gain)/loss on Fair value changes of Securities for trade 107.85 (21.73)

(Profit) / Loss on sale of Investments (813.05) (467.58)
Depreciation / amortisation 301.39 237.50
Interest paid on borrowings 1,356.06 780.33
Dividend income (37.80) (55.62)

Operating profit before working capital changes 7,974.46 9,172.04
Adjustments for changes in working capital:
-(Increase)/Decrease in Other bank balance (370.85) (19,402.48)
-(Increase)/Decrease in Derivative financial instruments 4.47 11.29
-(Increase)/Decrease in Securities for Trade (2,026.62) (2,411.75)
-(Increase)/Decrease in Trade receivables (42.81) 7,638.99
-(Increase)/Decrease in Loans 4,474.24 (10,788.30)
-(Increase)/Decrease in Other financial assets 323.59 (1,367.11)
-(Increase)/Decrease in Other non financial assets 129.01 (310.73)
-(Increase)/Decrease in Derivative financial instruments 210.38 -
-Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payables (4,258.94) 12,864.79
-Increase/(Decrease) in Other financial liabilities (1,827.19) 2,440.86
-Increase/(Decrease) in Other non financial liabilities (93.11) 520.80
-Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions 36.76 13.52
Cash generated from operations 4,533.41 (1,618.08)
Income tax paid (net) (1,791.12) (1,973.21)
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (A) 2,742.29 (3,591.30)

B Cash flow (used in) / generated from Investing activities
- (Purchase) / Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment (1,685.41) (304.92)
- (Purchase) / Proceeds from sale of investments 420.56 1,137.50
- Dividend income received 37.80 55.62
Net cash (used in)/ generated from investing activities(B) (1,227.05) 888.20

C Cash flow (used in) / generated from Financing activities
- Dividend paid (520.56) (416.45)
- Interest paid (1,356.06) (780.33)
- Increase/ (Decrease) in Borrowings 854.81 (137.47)
- (Repayment) / Proceeds from issuance of debt securities (1,932.00) 4,325.00
- Proceeds from issue of convertible warrants 856.25 -
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (C) (2,097.56) 2,990.75
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (582.33) 287.64
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 1,678.24 1,390.60
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 1,095.92 1,678.24
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of
Cash and cheques in hand 5.24 9.83
Balances with scheduled banks 1,090.68 1,668.41
Total 1,095.92 1,678.24

Notes:
i) The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the �Indirect method� as set out on the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind

AS-7) Statement of Cash Flow.
ii) Figures in Negative indicate cash outflows.

Notes Forming Part of Standalone Financial statements 1 to 60
As per our report of even date
For Arora Banthia & Tulsiyan For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No: 007028C

CA. Ajay Tulsiyan
Partner
Membership No. : 074868
UDIN : 25074868BMUIJE5992
Indore, 10th May, 2025

Ashok Kumar Jain
Managing Director 
DIN-00184729

Arpit Jain
Joint Managing Director
& CEO
DIN-06544441

Uttam Maheshwari
Chief Financial Officer
Membership No. : 41913

Mahesh Pancholi 
Company Secretary 
Membership No. : F7143 



Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

A. Equity Share Capital (` in Lacs)

Particular Amount

Balance as at April 1, 2023 1,041.13

Changes in equity share capital during the year -

Balance as at March 31, 2024 1,041.13

Changes in equity share capital during the year -

Balance as at March 31, 2025 1,041.13

B. OTHER EQUITY (` in Lacs)
Particulars Reserve & Surplus Application Money Total Equity

Retained Earnings General Reserve Received against
Share Warrants

Balance as at April 1, 2023 1,583.41 20,603.42 22,186.83

Profit for the period 6,583.53 - 6,583.53

Other comprehensive income (40.90) - (40.90)

Transfer to General Reserve (6,000.00) 6,000.00 -

Final Dividend (416.45) - (416.45)

Balance as at March 31, 2024 1,709.59 26,603.42 28,313.01

Profit for the period 5,298.42 - 5,298.42

Other comprehensive income (16.49) - (16.49)
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIESAND OTHER EXPLANATORY 
INFORMATION

NOTE 1: CORPORATE INFORMATION

Arihant Capital Markets Limited (referred to as �ACML� or �the Company�) is a public limited company and incorporated on
25thJune, 1992 having CIN: L66120MP1992PLC007182 under the provisions of Companies Act. The Company is
domiciled in India having its registered office at 6, Lad Colony, YN Road Indore, Madhya Pradesh.

The Company is registered with Securities and Exchange Board of India (�SEBI�) under the Stock brokers and sub-brokers
Regulations, 1992 and is a member of Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, National Stock Exchange of India Limited, Multi
Commodity Exchange of India Ltd. and National Commodity and Derivatives Exchange Limited. The Company acts as a
stock broker and commodities broker to execute proprietary trades and also trades on behalf of its clients which include
retail customers (including high net worth individuals), mutual funds, financial institutions and corporate clients. It is
registered with Central Depository Services (India) Limited and National Securities Depository Limited in the capacity of
Depository Participant and also registered with SEBI in capacity of Research Analyst and Merchant Banker. Company is
also AMFI registered Mutual Fund distributor.

The Board of Directors approved the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 and authorized
for issue on May 10, 2025.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies information adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. Estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the
period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

Basis of preparation

stThe financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2025 has been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standard (�Ind AS�). The Company is covered under the definition of NBFC. These Financial Statements of the Company
are presented as per Schedule III (Division III) of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable to NBFCs, as notified by the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs (MCA). These Financial Statements of the Company are presented in Indian Rupees (�INR�), which is
also the Company�s functional currency and all values are rounded to nearest lacs.

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the Management is satisfied that the Company shall be
able to continue its business for the foreseeable future and no material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on
the going concern assumption. In making this assessment, the Management has considered a wide range of information
relating to present and future conditions, including future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources.

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies information adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated

2.1 Income Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step model asset out in Ind AS 115,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers, to determine when to recognize revenue and at what amount. Revenue is
measured based on the consideration specified in the contract with a customer. Revenue from contracts with
customers is recognized when services are provided and it is highly probable that a significant reversal of revenue is
not expected to occur.

Revenue is measured atfair value ofthe consideration received orreceivable. Revenue is recognized when (or as) the
Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset
istransferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.



When (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, the Company recognizes as revenue the amount of the
transaction price (excluding estimates of variable consideration) that is allocated to that performance obligation.

The Company applies the five-step approach for recognition of revenue:

Identification of contract(s) with customers;
Identification of the separate performance obligations in the contract;
Determination of transaction price;
Allocation of transaction price to the separate performance obligations; and
Recognition of revenue when (or as) each performance obligation is satisfied.

(i) Brokerage income

It is recognized on settlement date basis and is exclusive of goods and service tax and securities transaction tax
(STT) wherever applicable.

(ii) Fee & Commission income

Fees basedincome on services isrecognized as earned on a pro-rata basis over the term of the
contract.Commissions from distribution of financial products are recognized upon allotment of the securities to
the applicant or as the case may be.

(iii) Depository income

Income from services rendered on behalf of depository is recognized upon rendering of the services, in
accordance with the terms of contract.

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is recognized on accrual basis in Statement of profit and loss for all financial instruments
measured at amortized cost.

(v) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized in the statement of profit or loss on the date that the Company�s right to receive
payment is established.

2.2 Income Tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period�s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable
totemporary differences and to unused tax losses. Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current Tax

Current tax is measured at the amount of tax expected to be payable on the taxable income for the year as determined
in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are off set when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis.



Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognized for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in subsidiaries where the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

2.3 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of 
three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

2.4 Asset held for sale

Assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will have recovered principally through sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and sale is considered highly probable. They are measured at lower of their
carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell, except for assets such as deferred tax, assets arising from employee
benefit, financials assets and contractual rights under insurance contracts, which are specifically exempted from this
requirement. Where the Company is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of an entity, it classifies
investment in the entity and assets & liabilities associated with that entity as held for sale.

2.5 Financial Instruments

(A) Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on trade-
date, the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized
immediately in profit or loss.

(B) Fair value of financial instruments:

Some of the Company�s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purpose. Fair 
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique.



Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of various assets and
liabilities are disclosed.

(a) Financial assets

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement

All recognized financial assets are subsequently measured at either amortized cost or fair value depending on
their respective classification.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as - measured at:

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL);
Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI); or
Amortized cost.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest
method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain and loss on de-recognition are recognized in
profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income is recognized using the 
effective interest (EIR) method. The impairment losses, if any, are recognized through Statement of Profit and
Loss. The loss allowance is recognized in OCI and does not reduce the carrying value of the financial asset. On
de-recognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.

(ii) Impairment

The Company recognizes impairment allowances using Expected Credit Losses (�ECL�) method on all the
financial assets that are not measured at FVTPL:

ECL areprobability-weighted estimate of credit losses. For trade Receivables Company follows simplified
approach which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized. For other assets, the company uses 12-
month ECL to provide for impairment loss where there is no significant increase in credit risk. If there is a
significant increase in credit risk full lifetime ECL is used. For ECL all financial assets are classified as follows

Stage 1: Financials assets that are not credit impaired

Stage 2: Financials assets with significant increase in credit risk but that isnon-credit impaired.

Stage 3: Financials assets that are credit impaired.

Financial assets are written off / fully provided for when there is no reasonable of recovering a financial asset in
its entirety or a portion thereof.

However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Company�s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.



(iii) Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognized only when:

The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or retains the contractual
rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows
to one or more recipients.

Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognized.
Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the
financial asset is not derecognized.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the Company has not retained control of
the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be
recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

(b) Financial liabilities

(i) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is
classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are 
recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or
loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in Statement of Profit or loss.

(ii) Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Financial liabilities
carried at fair value through profit or loss is measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition and installation of the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset�s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value:

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful life prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The Company provides pro-rata
depreciation from the date of installation till date the assets are sold or disposed.



Assets Useful Life

Building 60 years

Furniture and Fixtures 10 years

Office Equipments 5 years

Computers 3 years

Electrical Installations 10 years

Vehicles 8 years

Derecognition:

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the
asset is derecognized.

2.7 Intangible assets

Measurement at recognition:

Intangible assets are recognized where it is probable that the future economic benefit attributable to the assets will
flow to the Company and its cost can be reliably measured. Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition less 
accumulated amortization and impairment, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset�s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be
measured reliably.

Amortization

The Companyamortizes intangible assets on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful life. The Company
provides pro-rata amortization from the day the asset is put to use.

Assets Useful Life

Computer Software 6 years

Derecognition:

The carrying amount of an intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with
carrying amount and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

2.8 Leases

The company lease asset primarily consists of office premises which are of short-term lease with lease term of twelve
months or less and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease
payments as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the term of lease.

2.9 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must



be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company
or the counterparty.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication based on internal /external factors, 
that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the
asset. The recoverable amount of asset is the higher of its fair value or value in use. Value in use is based on the
estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current
market assessment of time value of money and the risks specific to it. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount and the reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss. All assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an
impairment loss previously recognized may no longer exist. An Impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the
assets carrying amount would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, had no impairment loss
been recognized.

2.11 Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues andincur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the company�s Chief Operating
Decision Maker (�CODM�) tomake decisions for which discrete financial information is available. Based on the
management approach as defined in Ind AS 108,the CODM evaluates the Company�s performance and allocates
resources based on an analysis of various performance indicatorsby business segments and geographic segments.

2.12 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the
expenditurerequired to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessmentsof the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is
recognized as finance cost.Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which
will beconfirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control ofthe Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an
outflow of resourceswill be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

2.13 Employee benefits

(i) Short-term obligations

Short-term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the Statement of
Profit and Loss for the year in which the related services are rendered. The Company recognizes the costs of
bonus payments when it has a present obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.



(ii) Post-employment obligations

Defined contribution plan:

Contribution paid / payable to the recognized provident fund, which is a defined contribution scheme, is
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they occur.

Defined benefits plan:

Gratuity is post-employment benefit and is in the nature of defined benefit plan. The liability recognized in the
Balance Sheet in respect of gratuity is the present value of defined benefit obligation at the Balance Sheet date
together with the adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gain or losses and the past service costs. The defined
benefit obligation is calculated at or near the Balance Sheet date by an independent actuary using the projected
unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustment and the effects of changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

2.14 Dividend Distribution

Dividends paid is recognized in the period in which the interim dividends are approved by the Board of Directors, or in
respect of the final dividend when approved by shareholders.

2.15 Earnings per share

(a) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the period (excluding other comprehensive
income) attributable to equity share holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus element in equity shares issued during the year.

(b) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period as adjusted for the
effects of all diluted potential equity shares except where the results are anti-dilutive.

2.16 Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the 
requirements.

2.17 Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the balance sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the
reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise, events after the 
balance sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.

2.18 Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or
loss is recognized in standalone statement of profit and loss immediately.



2.19 Foreign currency transaction

Initial recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the
exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences

All exchange differences are accounted in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.20 Investment in subsidiaries and associates

Investment in subsidiaries are recognized at cost and is not adjusted to fair value at the end of each reporting period
as allowed by Ind AS 27 �Separate financial statement�. Cost of investment represents amount paid for acquisition of
the said investment and a proportionate recognition of the fair value of shares granted to employees of subsidiary 
under a group share based payment arrangement.

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period, if there are any indications that the said investment may
be impaired. If so, the Company estimates the recoverable value/amount of the investment and provides for
impairment, if any i.e. the deficit in the recoverable value over cost.

NOTE 3: KEY ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions in the
application of accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual
results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on ongoing basis. Any
changes to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively. Information about critical judgments in applying
accounting policies, as well as estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements are included in the following notes:

(a) Provision and contingent liability: On an ongoing basis, Company reviews pending cases, claims by third
parties and other contingencies. For contingent losses that are considered probable, an estimated loss is
recorded as an accrual in financialstatements. For Contingencies losses that are considered possible are not
provided for but disclosed as Contingent liabilities in the financial statements. Contingencies the likelihood of
which is remote are not disclosed in the financial statements.Gain contingencies are not recognized until the
contingency has been resolved and amounts are received or receivable.

(b) Allowance for impairment of financial asset: Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of
overdue and determining whether a provision against those is required. Factors considered include the aging
of past dues, value of collateral and any possible actions that can be taken to mitigate the risk of non-payment.

(c) Recognition of deferred tax assets: Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax-loss carry forwards,
deductible temporary differences and unused tax credit to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit is
probable. The assessment of the probability with regard to the realisation of the tax benefit involves
assumptions based on the history of the entity and budgeted data for the future.

(d) Defined benefit plans: The cost of defined benefit plans and the present value of the defined benefit obligations
are based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of
the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation
and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.

(e) Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets: Management reviews the estimated useful lives and
residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation and amortization to be
recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values as per schedule II of the Companies
Act, 2013 or are based on the Company�s historical experience with similar assets and taking into account
anticipated technological changes, whichever is more appropriate.



Notes Forming Part Of Standalone Financial Statement (` in Lacs)

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash in hand 5.24 9.83
Balances with banks
In current accounts 1,090.68 1,668.41

Total 1,095.92 1,678.24

5. Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalent
Earmarked balances with bank towards Unclaimed dividend 27.77 24.52
Unspent CSR Bank Account 36.54 -
Fixed deposit with maturity for less than 12 months * 34,640.00 34,283.00
Fixed deposit with maturity for more than 12 months * 2,770.00 2,770.00
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 764.96 790.89

Total 38,239.27 37,868.41

* Fixed Deposit with bank includes Deposits under the lien of :
BSE Limited (ICCL) 24,567.00 26,762.00
National Commodity Exchange Limited & NCCL 732.50 732.50
Multi Commodity Exchange of India Limited & MCX-CCL 982.50 2,179.50
Over Draft facility 20.00 20.00
Bank for guarantees issued 11,087.50 7,339.00
Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority 20.00 20.00
NSE Commodity Derivatives 0.50 -

Total 37,410.00 37,053.00

*Fixed deposits are pledged with exchange and banks for meeting margin requirements and for obtaining bank
guarantee respectively.

6. Derivative Financial Instruments

(i) Equity linked derivatives - 4.47

Total - 4.47

Notional amounts - 485.27
Note : - The derivatives are used for the purpose of trading.

7. Securities for trade

Quoted Equity Shares

Adani Energy Solutions Limited
(1,000 (1,000) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 8.72 10.27
Adani Green Energy Limited
(1,000 (1,000) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 9.49 18.35
Adani Ports And Special Economic Zone Limited
(Nil (300) shares, face value of `2 each) - 4.03
Adani Total Gas Limited
(1000 (1,000) shares, face value of ` 1 each) 6.03 9.27
Adani Wilmar Limited
(1,000 (1,000) shares, face value of ` 1 each) 2.58 3.21
Aditya Birla Capital Limited
(2,00,000 (NIL) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 370.14 -



Notes Forming Part Of Standalone Financial Statement (` in Lacs)

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Aditya Birla Real Estate Limited
(3000 (3,319) shares, face value of 10 each) 58.80 54.10
Aditya Birla Sun Life Amc Limited
( Nil (6,000) shares, face value of 5 each) - 27.30
Allied Digital Services Limited
(22,340 (Nil) shares, face value of 5 each) 42.14 -
Angel One Limited
(Nil (498 ) shares, face value of 10 each) - 15.16
Asian Energy Services Limited
(1,000 (1,000 ) shares, face value of 10 each) 2.69 2.71
Aster DM Healthcare Limited
(Nil (2,500 ) shares, face value of 10 each) - 10.23
B.R.Goyal Infrastructure Limited
(57,000 (Nil) shares, face value of 10 each) 61.67 -
Baazar Style Retail Limited
(5,000 (Nil) shares, face value of 5 each) 12.04 -
Balaji Phosphates Limited
(8,000 (Nil) shares, face value of 10 each) 6.40 -
BEML Land Assets Limited
(Nil (5,000) shares, face value of 1 each) - 11.83
Bharat Dynamics Limited
(Nil (20,000) shares, face value of 5 each) - 350.38
Bharat Heavy Electricals Limited
(Nil (2,500) shares, face value of 2 each) - 6.18
Borosil Renewables Limited
(Nil (500) shares, face value of 1 each) - 2.49
Ceinsys Tech Limited
(1,280 (Nil) shares, face value of 10 each) 17.44 -
Central Depository Services (India) Limited
(Nil (2,500) shares, face value of 1 each) - 42.80
City Union Bank Limited
(39,994 (Nil) shares, face value of 1 each) 62.86 -
Coal India Limited
(25000 (Nil) shares, face value of 10 each) 99.55 -
Cosmic Crf Limited
(600 (Nil) shares, face value of 10 each) 8.67 -
Cupid Limited
(Nil (700) shares, face value of 1 each) - 16.96
Deep Industries Limited
(Nil (1,000) shares, face value of 5 each) - 3.09
Diamond Power Infrastructure Limited
(46345 (Nil) shares, face value of 10 each) 41.49 -
Doms Industries Limited
(Nil (200) shares, face value of 10 each) - 3.13
Easy Trip Planners Limited
(130 (Nil) shares, face value of 1 each) 0.02 -



Eris Lifesciences Limited
(200 (Nil) shares, face value of `1 each) 2.83 -
Ems Limited
(Nil (5,000) shares, face value of ` 2 each) - 20.12
Engineers India Limited
(Nil (1,200) shares, face value of ` 2 each) - 24.23
Exicom Tele-Systems Limited
(Nil (1,000) shares, face value of ` 2 each) - 1.97
Fineotex Chemical Limited
(Nil (343) shares, face value of `10 each) - 1.26
Fortis Healthcare Limited
(40,000 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 279.34 -
Fortune Financial Services (India) Limited
(Nil (1) shares, face value of `10 each) - 0.00
GeeCee Ventures Limited
(30000 (Nil) shares, face value of `10 each) 110.24 -
GMR Airports Limited
(10000 (Nil) shares, face value of `1 each) 7.57 -
Genus Power Infrastructures Limited
(Nil (3,772) shares, face value of `10 each) - 23.03
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited
(Nil (1,000) shares, face value of `5 each) - 119.98
Gujarat Narmada Valley Fertilizers & Chemicals Limited
(9,100 (2,50,000) shares, face value of `1 each) 45.18 12.70
Gujarat State Fertilizers & Chemicals Limited
(Nil (50) shares, face value of ` 2 each) - 0.10
Gulf Oil Lubricants India Limited
(500 (Nil) shares, face value of `2 each) 5.73 -
Hero MotoCorp Limited
(10000 (Nil) shares, face value of `2 each) 372.30 -
Hemisphere Properties India Limited
(Nil (4,010) shares, face value of `10 each) - 1.80
HFCL Limited
(Nil (10,000 ) shares, face value of `1 each) - 9.18
Hindustan Construction Company Limited
(Nil (3,855 ) shares, face value of ` 1 each) - 0.36
HPL Electric & Power Limited
(Nil (1,135) shares, face value of `5 each) - 3.59
IDBI Bank Limited
(500 (Nil ) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 0.39 -
India Cements Limited
(738 (Nil ) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 2.04 -
IFCI Limited
(Nil (27,776 ) shares, face value of `10 each) - 11.01
IIFL Fiinance Limited
(Nil (5,000) shares, face value of `2 each) - 17.01
India Tourism Development Corporation Limited
(Nil (3,000 ) shares, face value of ` 10 each) - 9.56

Notes Forming Part Of Standalone Financial Statement (` in Lacs)

Particulars                                                                                                                                  March 31, 2025              March 31, 2024 



Indiamart Intermesh Limited
(199 (200) shares, face value of `10 each) 4.12 5.29
ITD Cementation India Limited
(1000 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 1 each) 5.57 -
Indo Count Industries Limited
(Nil (1,000 ) shares, face value of ` 2 each) - 3.54
Infibeam Avenues Limited
(Nil (10,000) shares, face value of ` 1 each) - 3.41
Inox Wind Limited
(Nil (15,000) shares, face value of ` 10 each) - 78.24
International Travel House Limited
(Nil (2,000 ) shares, face value of ` 10 each) - 11.97
IRB Infrastructure Developers Limited
(Nil (55,000) shares, face value of ` 1 each) - 14.64
ITI Limited
(Nil (800) shares, face value of `10 each) - 2.02
Jai Corp Limited
(Nil (5,000 ) shares, face value of ` 1 each) - 14.14
Jash Engineering Limited
(5001 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 2 each) 29.04 -
Jindal Poly Films Limited
(Nil (1,314) shares, face value of `10 each) - 5.96
Jio Financial Services Limited
(101000 (5000) shares, face value of ` 10 Each) 229.79 17.69
JK Paper Limited
(7000 (Nil) shares, face value of `10 Each) 21.86 -
JSW Infrastructure Limited
(Nil (1,500) shares, face value of `2 Each) - 3.68
Jupiter Wagons Limited
(5,000 (Nil) shares, face value of `10 Each) 18.46 -
Jyoti CNC Automation Limited
(Nil (5,000 ) shares, face value of ` 2 Each) - 41.07
K.P. Energy Limited
(3119 (Nil ) shares, face value of `5 Each) 11.56 -
Life Insurance Corporation of India Limited
( 500(42,500) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 4.00 389.36
LIC Housing Finance Limited
(25000 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 2 each) 140.96 -
Lux Industries Limited
(500 (500) shares, face value of ` 2 each) 6.88 5.37
Mangalam Cement Limited
(Nil (15,000) shares, face value of ` 10 each) - 109.65
MMTC Limited
(Nil (10,951) shares, face value of `1 each) - 7.28

Notes Forming Part Of Standalone Financial Statement (` in Lacs)

    Particulars                                                                                                                                  March 31, 2025              March 31, 2024 



Mohini Health & Hygiene Limited
(Nil (22,500) shares, face value of `10 each) - 11.88
Motilal Oswal Financial Services Limited
(70000 (Nil) shares, face value of `1 each) 430.75 -
Multi Commodity Exchange of India Limited
(3000 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 159.35 -
Network 18 Media & Investments Limited
(50000 (Nil) shares, face value of `5 each) 21.71 -
Network People Services Technologies Limited
(2,900 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 69.32 -
NLC India Limited
(Nil (4,957) shares, face value of ` 10 each) - 11.31
One 97 Communications Limited
(1000 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 1 each) 7.83 -
Orchid Pharma Limited
(1000 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 7.76 -
Organic Recycling Systems Limited
(80,400 (141,000) shares, face value of `10 each) 207.59 296.45
Orient Cement Limited
(Nil (10,000) shares, face value of ` 1 each) - 19.58
Patanjali Foods Limited
(1,200 (Nil) shares, face value of `2 each) 21.70 -
Patel Engineering Limited
(Nil (25,000) shares, face value of ` 1 each) - 14.23
Poonawalla Fincorp Limited
(Nil (30,000) shares, face value of ` 2 each) - 139.68
Protean eGov Technologies Limited
(17,000 (500) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 227.94 5.03
Ramkrishna Forgings Limited
(Nil (250) shares, face value of `2 each) - 1.73
Rattanindia Enterprises Limited
(10,000 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 2 each) 4.11 -
RBZ Jewellers Limited
(16,000 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 21.80 -
Reliance Infrastructure Limited
(7000 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 18.10 -
Reliance Power Limited
(1,15,000 (3,40,000) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 49.43 96.05
Repco Home Finance Limited
( 7,120 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 23.86 -
Rico Auto Industries Limited.
(Nil (5,000) shares, face value of `1 each) - 7.26
Rites Limited.
(3,500 (Nil) shares, face value of `10 each) 7.82 -
Royal Orchid Hotels Limited
(Nil (1,000) shares, face value of `10 each) - 3.61

Notes Forming Part Of Standalone Financial Statement (` in Lacs)

    Particulars                                                                                                                                  March 31, 2025              March 31, 2024 



Sabar Flex India Limited
(10,000 (10,000) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 0.73 1.98
Salzer Electronics Limited
(800 (Nil) shares, face value of `10 each) 8.62 -
SEAMEC Limited
(500 (Nil) shares, face value of `10 each) 4.88 -
SG Mart Limited
(1,000 (Nil) shares, face value of `1 each) 3.23 -
Shakti Pumps India Limited
(958 (Nil) shares, face value of `10 each) 9.39 -
Shilchar Technologies Limited
(150 (Nil) shares, face value of `10 each) 7.91 -
Shipping Corporation of India Limited.
(2990 (10,766) shares, face value of `10 each) 4.94 22.48
Shivalik Bimetal Controls Limited
(6000 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 2 each) 27.72 -
Shriram Finance Limited
(Nil (1,806) shares, face value of `10 each) - 42.62
Shriram Pistons & Rings Limited
(1000 (3000) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 18.89 58.82
Shubhshree Biofuels Energy Limited
(60,000 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 181.38 -
Sun Pharma Advanced Research Company Limited
(3000 (Nil) shares, face value of `1 each) 4.44 -
SMC Global Securities Limited
(Nil (20,000) shares, face value of ` 2 each) - 24.97
Steel Authority of India Limited
(Nil (9,500) shares, face value of `10 each) - 33.56
Sterling and Wilson Renewable Energy Limited
(Nil (25,000) shares, face value of ` 1 each) - 78.49
Suzlon Energy Limited
(50000 (55,000) shares, face value of ` 2 each) 28.33 22.22
Tata Consultancy Services Limited
(1,113 (Nil) shares, face value of `1 each) 40.64 -
Tata Motors - DVR Limited
(Nil (18,000) shares, face value of ` 2 each) - 118.30
Tata Technologies Limited
(1,000 (1,000) shares, face value of `2 each) 6.80 10.21
Tata Teleservices (Maharashtra) Limited
(27,205 (17,934) shares, face value of `10 each) 15.31 12.87
Titan Company Limited
(Nil (175) shares, face value of ` 1 each) - 6.65
The Investment Trust Of India Limited
(1 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 0.00 -

Notes Forming Part Of Standalone Financial Statement (` in Lacs)

    Particulars                                                                                                                                  March 31, 2025              March 31, 2024 



Notes Forming Part Of Standalone Financial Statement (` in Lacs)

Particulars                                                                                                                                  March 31, 2025              March 31, 2024 

Transformers and Rectifiers (India) Limited
(9,600 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 1 each) 51.48 -
TV18 Broadcast Limited
(Nil (1,77,507) shares, face value of `2 each) - 82.36
Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
(500 (Nil) shares, face value of `10 each) 0.11 -
Valor Estate Limited
(Nil (1,500) shares, face value of ` 10 each) - 2.95
Vedanta Limited
(25,000 (Nil) shares, face value of `1 each) 115.85 -
Vilas Transcore Limited
(12,000 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 38.82 -
V-Guard Industries Limited.
(Nil (399) shares, face value of `1 each) - 1.32
Vodafone Idea Limited
(50,000 (2,00,000) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 3.40 26.50
Waaree Energies Limited
(2000 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 48.09 -
Waaree Renewable Technologies Ltd
(600 (Nil) shares, face value of `2 each) 5.45 -
Welspun Specialty Solutions Limited
(65,000 (65,000) shares, face value of ` 6 each) 17.30 20.42
Whirlpool of India Limited
(60,000 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 593.94 -
WORTH PERIPHERALS LIMITED
(1,32,855 (Nil) shares, face value of `10 each) 198.86 -
Wockhardt Limited
(Nil (10,000) shares, face value of ` 5 each) - 58.57
Xpro India Limited
(Nil (4,010) shares, face value of `10 each) - 44.81
Yes Bank Limited
(Nil (90,020) shares, face value of ` 2 each) - 20.88
Zen Technologies Limited
(Nil (3,000) shares, face value of `1 each) - 28.70
Zomato Limited
(Nil (10,000) shares, face value of ` 1 each) - 18.21

Total 4,824.16 2,905.39
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Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
8. Trade Receivables*

Considered good- Secured 9,514.85 9,131.44
Considered good - Unsecured 158.44 499.04
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Trade Receivables - Credit impaired - -

Total (Gross) 9,673.29 9,630.48

Less:Impairment loss allowance - -

Total (Net) 9,673.29 9,630.48

Out of which:
Due from Directors Nil Nil
Due from a firm including LLP's and Private Limited Company in which a
Director of the Company is a Partner or a Director respectively Nil Nil
*For Ageing of Trade Receivable refer note no. 47.

9. Loans

[A] Loans measured at Amortised Cost
Margin trading facility 12,972.71 17,446.95

Total (Gross) 12,972.71 17,446.95

Less: Impairment loss allowance - -

Total (Net) 12,972.71 17,446.95

[B]
i) Secured by tangible assets 12,972.71 17,446.95
ii) Unsecured - -

Total (Gross) 12,972.71 17,446.95

Less: Impairment loss allowance - -

Total (Net) 12,972.71 17,446.95

[C] Loans in India
i) Public Sector - -
ii) Others 12,972.71 17,446.95

Total (Gross) 12,972.71 17,446.95

Less: Impairment loss allowance - -

Total (Net) 12,972.71 17,446.95

Stage wise break up of loans -
Low credit risk (Stage 1) 12,972.71 17,446.95
Significant increase in credit risk (Stage 2) - -
Credit impaired (Stage 3) - -

Total 12,972.71 17,446.95

10. Investments

Equity Instruments

(A) At Fair Value though Profit or Loss

1. Investment in Quoted shares

Century Textiles And Industries Limited
(Nil (6,681) shares, face value of ` 10 each) - 108.89

(` in Lacs)
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Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Jainam Ferr Alloys Limited
(Nil (17,000) shares, face value of `10 each) - 21.39
Jash Engineering Limited
(Nil (2,297)shares, face value of `2 each) - 38.92
Poonawalla Fincorp Limited
(Nil (21,189) shares, face value of `2 each) - 98.66
Sepc Limited
(Nil (22,223) shares, face value of `1 each) - 3.70
Xpro India Limited
(Nil (1,500) shares, face value of ` 10 each) - 109.25

Sub-Total (1) - 380.81

2. Investment in Unquoted shares
Das Offshore Limited
(2,054 (2,054) shares, face value of `10 each) 250.00 250.00
Hdb Financial Services Limited
(5,320 (5,320) shares, face value of `10 each) 54.52 50.27
National Stock Exchange Limited
(NSE) (47,000 (6,000) shares, face value of ` 1 each) 775.50 257.94
National Securities Depository Limited
(21,500 (Nil) shares, face value of `1 each) 236.50 -
Saurashtra Kutch Enterprise Limited
(1 (1) shares, face value of ` 5000 each) 5.05 5.05
The Saraswat Co-Operative Bank Limited
(500 (500) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 0.05 0.05
Sai Parenteral's Limited
(64285(Nil) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 90.00 -

Sub-Total (2) 1,411.62 563.31

(B) At cost
1. Investment in subsidiaries
Arihant Capital (IFSC) Limited
(14,00,000 (14,00,000) shares, face value of `10 each) 140.00 140.00
Arihant Financial Services Limited
(2,50,000 (2,50,000) shares, face value of `10 each) 206.24 206.24
Arihant Future & Commodities Limited
(3,55,000 (3,55,000) shares, face value of `10 each) 79.52 79.52
Arihant Insurance Broking Services Limited - 75.00
(Nill (7,50,000) shares, face value of ` 10 each) - 75.00
Less : Accumulated Impairment - (0.16)
Add : Reversal of Impairment Loss** - 0.16

Sub-Total (1) 425.76 500.76

2. Investment in Associate
Electrum Capital Private Limited
(13,75,000 (13,75,000) shares, face value of `10 each) 137.50 137.50

Sub-Total (2) 137.50 137.50

Total (A+B) 1,974.88 1,582.38

(` in Lacs)
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Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

i) Investments in India 1,974.88 1,582.38

ii) Investments outside India - -

Total 1,974.88 1,582.38

The Company has sold entire shareholding of its wholly owned subsidiary Arihant Insurance Broking Services

Limited ("AIBSL") on October 24, 2024 for a total consideration of ` 438.07 Lacs.The Company has recognized gain

of `358.07 lacs in exceptional item in the Standalone Financial Statements.

*The company has sold its entire shareholding in subsidiary Arihant Institute of Financial Education Private Limited

on 31.07.2023 for a total consideration of `58.75 Lacs.

**The Company has accounted for its investments in Subsidiaries at cost less impairment loss. Based on the

assessment of the internal sources of information, management has identified indicators of reversal of impairment in

respect of its investments in subsidiaries in the current year ` Nil lacs (reversal of impairment loss of ` 0.016 lacs in

previous year).

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

11. Other Financial Assets

Deposits with Exchanges / Depositories 1302.82 1349.70

Deposit with Related parties (Refer Note No.45) 34.50 34.50

Other Deposits 42.15 23.47

Other Advances 35.92 331.32

Total 1415.39 1738.98
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12. Property, Plant & Equipment (` in Lacs)
Particulars Building Furniture Office Computers Installations Vehicles Total

& Fixtures Equipments Electrical Motor
Gross carrying Amount
As at April 1, 2023 577.89 208.93 125.08 452.99 31.57 260.98 1,657.44
Additions - 18.05 9.67 112.02 - 106.84 246.58
Disposals - - - - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 577.89 226.98 134.75 565.01 31.57 367.82 1,904.02
Additions 1,256.33 207.59 28.04 171.00 0.03 - 1,662.99
Disposals - - 0.56 0.13 - - 0.69
Balance as at March 31, 2025 1,834.22 434.57 162.23 735.88 31.60 367.82 3,566.32

Accumulated Depreciation
As at April 1, 2023 51.63 52.52 55.77 241.92 8.51 99.90 510.26
Additions 10.33 22.15 19.05 95.86 3.33 33.70 184.40
Disposals - - - - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 61.96 74.67 74.82 337.78 11.84 133.60 694.66
Additions 23.33 26.48 19.90 132.84 3.06 43.12 248.72
Disposals - - - - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 85.29 101.15 94.72 470.62 14.90 176.72 943.39

Net Carrying Amount

Balance as at March 31, 2024 515.93 152.31 59.94 227.23 19.73 234.22 1,209.36
Balance as at March 31, 2025 1,748.93 333.42 67.51 265.26 16.70 191.10 2,622.94

13. Other Intangible Assets

Particulars Software Total

Gross carrying Amount
As at April 1, 2023 331.31 331.31
Additions 58.35 58.35
Disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 389.66 389.66
Additions 23.10 23.10

Disposals -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 412.76 412.76

Accumulated Depreciation
As at April 1, 2023 92.95 92.95
Additions 53.09 53.09
Disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 146.04 146.04
Additions 52.67 52.67
Disposals
Balance as at March 31, 2025 198.71 198.71

Net Carrying Amount
Balance as at March 31, 2024 243.62 243.62
Balance as at March 31, 2025 214.05 214.05

Particulars March 31, March 31
2025 2024

14. Other Non Financial Assets
Employee Advance 12.07 4.76
Prepaid expenses 236.89 247.49
Tax Receivables (IT Department) 92.66 115.85
GST Receivables 115.15 373.18
Other Advances* 206.84 74.52

Total 663.61 815.81



Notes Forming Part Of Standalone Financial Statement (` in Lacs)

During the Financial Year 2023-24 the Company has established a contributory trust named Arihant Alternate Capital
Trust under the provision of Indian Trusts Act, 1882 for the purpose of carrying out the activities of a Category III
Alternative Investment Fund (�AIF�) under theSecurities and Exchange Board of India(Alternative Investment Funds)
Regulations, 2012. Arihant Capital Markets Limited acting as the �Settlor� of the trust through its Authorized Signatory

The Company has incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary named �Arihant Elite Financial Solutions Limited� on March
22, 2025. As of the date of this financial statement, the allotment of shares in the subsidiary is pending, and the
necessary steps for operationalization are in progress. Accordingly, the said subsidiary has not been considered for
consolidation for the period under review.

15. Derivative Financial Instruments
(i) Equity linked derivatives 210.38 -

Total 210.38 -

Notional amounts 6,360.63 -
Note : - The derivatives are used for the purpose of trading.

16. Trade Payables*
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (Refer Note No. 42) 61.13 164.89
Other than Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 26,818.41 30,973.59

Total 26,879.54 31,138.48

*For Ageing of Trade Payable refer note no. 48.

17. Debt securities

- Amortised Cost
Redeemable non-convertible debenture 1 year @ 9.5% - 1,932.00
Redeemable non-convertible debenture 3 year @10% 2,393.00 2,393.00

Total 2,393.00 4,325.00
i) Debt securities in India 2,393.00 4,325.00
ii) Debt securities outside India - -

Total 2,393.00 4,325.00
Terms of repayment:
The aforesaid Redeemable non-convertible debenture are repayable on maturity and the tenure is 12 to 36 months in FY
2023-24, but in FY 2024-25 the oustanding debentures are repayable in 36 months from date of issuance.

Details of Assets pledged as security
The Unlisted Redeemable non-convertible debentures are secured by way of pari passu charge on the secured debtors
of the company, with a security coverage of 1.2 times the value of the secured debtors.

18. Borrowings

[A] Loans repayable on demand

- Amortised Cost
i) from banks 4,976.00 3,921.19
ii) from Related Party 800.00 1,000.00
iii) from Director - -

Total 5,776.00 4,921.19

[B]
i) Borrowings in India 5,776.00 3,921.19

ii) Borrowings outside India - -

Total 5,776.00 3,921.19
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[C]
i) Secured * 5,776.00 3,921.19
ii) Unsecured - -

Total 5,776.00 3,921.19

*Secured against pledge of securities, trade receivables and immovable property.

*Details of Assets pledged as security

1. The Company availed overdraft facility from ICICI Bank amounting to ` 2,000 Lacs. Outstanding book balance of
overdraft is ` 0.00 Lacs (March 31, 2024: ` 11.20 Lacs ). The facility was closed in June 2024.

The aforesaid overdraft limit is secured by way of first pari - passu charge on trade receivables of the company.

2. The Company availed overdraft facility from Axis Bank amounting to ` 6,000 Lacs. Outstanding book balance of
overdraft is ` 0.00 Lacs (March 31, 2024: ` 2100.08 Lacs).

The aforesaid overdraft limit is secured by way of first pari - passu charge on trade receivables of the company.

3. The Company availed loan against property from ICICI Bank amounting to ` 720 Lacs. Outstanding book balance
of loan is `0.00 Lacs (March 31, 2024: `299.81 Lacs).

The aforesaid loan is secured by way of first charge by way of equitable mortgage of building situated at 1011,
Solitaire Corporate Park, Building No.10, 1st Floor, Andheri Ghatkopar Link Road Chakala Andheri (EAST)
Mumbai in the name of the company.

4. The Company availed overdraft facility from IDFC FIRST Bank amounting to ` 5000 Lacs. Outstanding book
balance of overdraft is `1401.45 Lacs (March 31, 2024: `1510.09 Lacs )

The aforesaid overdraft limit is secured by way of first pari - passu charge on trade receivables of the company.

5. The Compnay availed Term loan from Piramal Enterprises Limited amounting to ` 5000.00 Lacs. Outstanding
book balance of Term Loan is ` 1260.49 Lacs.

The aforesaid term loan is secured by way of charge on MTF receivables of the company.

6. The Company availed Term loan from Tata Capital Limited amounting to ` 500.00 Lacs. Outstanding book balance
of Term Loan is ` 168.09 Lacs. The Company availed Working Capital Loan from Tata Capital Limited amounting
to `1500.00 Lacs.Outstanding book balance of Working Capital Loan is `1501.58 Lacs.

The aforesaid term loan & overdraft limit is secured by way of charge on MTF receivables of the company.

7. The Company availed Commercial Property Loan of ` 700 Lacs from HDFC Bank .Outstanding book balance of
Loan is ` 644.39 Lacs.

The Aforesaid Loan Is Secured By Way Of First Charge By Way Of Equitable Mortgage Of Building Situated At 901
Solitaite Corporate Park Building No. 9 Chakala Andheri (East) Mumbai 400093 in the name of the company.

(` in Lacs)

Particulars March 31, March 31,
2025 2024

19. Other Financial Liabilities
Employee Benefits Payable 351.48 624.16
Franchise Deposit 1,260.93 1,825.48
Other Deposit 12.78 184.33
Expenses Payable 223.72 123.15
Other Payable(includes payable to vendors) 491.42 1,413.65
Unclaimed Dividend* 27.77 24.52

Total 2,368.10 4,195.29
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Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

*Out of the above amount, the company is required to credit a sum of ` 3.09 Lacs lying in the unclaimed dividend
account, on or before 15th October, 2025 to the Investor Education & Protection Fund pursuant to Sub -section (1) of
Section 125 of The Companies Act, 2013.

20. Current Tax Liabilities (net)

Income tax payable (Net) 41.71 179.73

Total 41.71 179.73

21. Provisions

Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note No. 44) 320.41 261.61

Total 320.41 261.61

22. Deferred Tax Liabilities (net)

Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) (Refer Note No. 38) 147.32 67.56

Total 147.32 67.56

23. Other Non Financial Liabilities

Statutory Dues Payable 587.99 681.10

Total 587.99 681.10

24. Share Capital

Authorised

12,50,00,000 equity share of ` 1/- each (12,50,00,000 of `1/- each) 1,250.00 1,250.00

Issued, Subscribed & Paid up

10,41,12,800 equity share of ` 1/- each (10,41,12,800 of `1/- each) 1,041.13 1,041.13

Total 1,041.13 1,041.13

a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Equity Shares of face value `1/-

Share outstanding at the beginning of the period 10,41,12,800 10,41,12,800

Share outstanding at the end of period 10,41,12,800 10,41,12,800

b. Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 1 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one
vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders
are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to
their shareholding.

c. List of the Shareholders holding more than 5% of the total number of shares issued by the company

Name of the shareholders

Ashok Kumar Jain 33,531,680 (32.21%) 33,531,680 (32.21%)

Kiran Jain 23,641,600 (22.71%) 23,641,600 (22.71%)

Sunil Kumar Jain 5,353,280 (5.14%) 5,353,280 (5.14%)

Arpit Jain 5,739,200 (5.51%) 5,739,200 (5.51%)
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d. Shareholding of Promoter

For the year ended March 31, 2025

Shares held by promotes at the end of the Year % Change during the
S. No. Promoter�s Name No. of Shares % of total shares Year

1 Ashok Kumar Jain 3,35,31,680 32.21 -

2 Kiran Jain 2,36,41,600 22.71 -

3 Sunil Kumar Jain 53,53,280 5.14 -

4 Arpit Jain 57,39,200 5.51 -

5 Shruti Jain 31,10,400 2.99 -

6 Ratik Jain 9,60,000 0.92 -

7 Anvita Jain 1,92,000 0.18 -

8 Meena Jain 1,52,000 0.15 -

Total 7,26,80,160 69.81

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Shares held by promotes at the end of the Year % Change during

S. No. Promoter�s Name No. of Shares % of total shares the Year

1 Ashok Kumar Jain 3,35,31,680 32.21 -

2 Kiran Jain 2,36,41,600 22.71 -

3 Sunil Kumar Jain 53,53,280 5.14 -

4 Arpit Jain 57,39,200 5.51 -

5 Swati Jain - - (3.95)

6 Shruti Jain 31,10,400 2.99 -

7 Ratik Jain 9,60,000 0.92 -

8 Kamal Kumar Jain (HUF) - - (0.25)

9 Anvita Jain 1,92,000 0.18 -

10 Meena Jain 1,52,000 0.15 -

11 Kamal Kumar Jain (0.12)

Total 7,26,80,160 69.81 (4.32)
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Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

25. Other Equity
General Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 26,603.42 20,603.42
Transfer from Retained Earnings 6,000.00 6,000.00

Balance as at end of the year 32,603.42 26,603.42

Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,709.59 1,583.41
Transfer from Statement of Profit and Loss 5,298.42 6,583.53
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plan (Net of Taxes) (16.49) (40.90)
Final Dividend (520.56) (416.45)
Transfer to General Reserve (6,000.00) (6,000.00)

Balance as at end of the year 470.96 1,709.59

Application Money Received against Share Warrants

5000000 equity Shares of `1/- each (50,00,000 of `68.50/- each) 3,425.00 -

Amount Received 25% Against Total amount of Warrants 856.25 -

856.25 -

Total 33,930.63 28,313.01

General Reserve
General reserve represents appropriation of surplus in the profit and loss account and is available for distribution to
shareholders as dividend.

Retained Earnings
Surplus in profit or loss account (Retained Earnings) represents surplus/accumulated profit of the company and is
available for distribution to shareholders as dividend.
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Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

26. Interest Income
On financial assets measured at amortised cost -

Interest on deposits with banks 2,693.69 1,839.80
Interest on Margin deposit with exchange - 58.97
Interest on Margin funding and delayed payment 5,325.09 4,462.39

Total 8,018.78 6,361.16

27. Dividend Income
From Securities 37.80 55.62

Total 37.80 55.62

28. Fees and commission income
Commission Received (Net) 549.91 396.77
Brokerage Income 12,481.33 10,765.70
Depository Receipts 416.32 420.74
Fees From Merchant Banking 462.97 495.45

Total 13,910.53 12,078.66

29. Net Gain on fair value changes
(A) Net gain / (loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

(i) Profit/(loss) on sale of derivatives held for trade (net) (119.01) 1,279.52
(ii) Profit/(loss) on securities held for trade 1,832.52 2,684.74

(B) Others

- Profit/(loss) on sale of investments (net) at fair value through profit or loss* 454.98 433.83

Total 2,168.49 4,398.09

*Profit on sale of subsidiaries shown in Exceptional items (Refer Note No. 37)

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Fair value changes
Realised gain 1,799.23 4,272.62
Unrealised gain 369.26 125.46

Total 2,168.49 4,398.08

30. Other Income

Income from Rent 0.79 6.30
Bad debts recovered - 12.40
Miscellaneous income 68.36 24.51

Total 69.15 43.21

31. Finance Costs
On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost-
Interest on Borrowings 1,014.20 605.92
Interest on NCD 341.86 174.41
Interest paid on Deposit 571.98 441.06

Other Interest expenses 1.69 7.26

Total 1,929.73 1,228.65
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Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

32. Fees and Commission Expense
Sub Brokerage/Referral Fees 6,293.41 5,651.53
Depository charges 107.60 141.07
Exchange Transaction Charges 1,044.32 963.05
Merchant Banking Expenses 150.94 91.69

Total 7,596.27 6,847.34

33. Impairment on financial instruments
On financial assets measured at amortised cost-
Investments in subsidiaries (Refer Note No. 10) - (0.16)
Bad Debts written off - 11.56

Total - 11.40

34. Employee Benefits Expenses (Includes Managerial Remuneration)
Salaries, wages and bonus 3,835.37 2,968.93
Contribution to provident and other fund (Refer Note No. 44) 49.53 39.99
Gratuity expense (Refer Note No. 44.) 40.13 28.72
Staff welfare expenses 44.24 37.51

Total 3,969.27 3,075.14

35. Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation on Property, plant & equipment 248.72 184.41
Amortisation on other intangible assets 52.67 53.09

Total 301.39 237.50

36. Other Expenses
Advertisement 21.15 11.20
Auditors� Remuneration * 14.04 12.74
Bank Charges 198.40 164.87
Business Development 434.50 286.41
Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer Note No. 57) 118.88 91.47
Communication Costs 275.53 190.15
Electricity 63.66 59.59
Insurance 11.81 12.14
Legal and Professional 865.76 742.22
Loss on currency fluctuation - 0.00
Membership Fee & Subscription 24.22 24.38
Miscellaneous 129.12 112.15
Office Expenses 49.85 47.55
Rent 175.83 164.06
Repairs & Maintenance 169.18 116.48
Software Maintenance 973.51 676.20
Stationery & Printing 26.51 31.80
Travel & Conveyance 154.19 127.91

Total 3,706.14 2,871.30
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Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

*Remuneration To Auditors (Exclusive of Taxes)
As Auditors:
Statutory audit 11.00 9.00
Tax audit 1.00 1.00
Limited review 0.90 0.90
Other services 1.14 1.84

Total 14.04 12.74

37. Exceptional items

Profit on sale of subsidiaries (Refer Note No. 10 ) 358.07 33.75

Total 358.07 33.75

38. Tax Expense

I. The major components of income tax expense for the year are as under

(A) Current tax expense
Current tax for the year 1,625.52 2,186.85
Tax adjustment in respect of earlier years 50.76 (37.91)

Total current tax expense (A) 1,676.28 2,148.95

(B) Deferred tax expense

Change in deferred tax liabilities 85.31 (33.33)

Net deferred tax expense (B) 85.31 (33.33)

Total (A+B) 1,761.59 2,115.62

B. Reconciliation of tax expenses and the accounting profit for the year is as under

Profit / (loss) before income tax expense 7,060.01 8,699.15
Tax at the rate of 25.17% 1,776.86 2,189.40

Difference due to :

Tax effect of expense allowed on payment basis 5.58 15.01
Tax on expense not tax deductible 29.92 23.02
Tax adjustment relating to fair valuation of equity instrument (199.16) (123.15)
Tax adjustment of previous years 50.76 (37.90)
Tax effect of different depreciation (30.32) (6.81)
Tax effect on chapter VI (9.51) (14.00)
Tax on income taxable at different rate 52.16 103.37

Current tax expense (A) 1,676.28 2,148.94

Deferred tax liability on PPE & Intangible Assets 30.32 6.81
Deferred tax asset on expense allowed on payment basis (9.25) (1.26)
Deferred tax asset on fair valuation 64.24 (38.88)

Deferred tax expense (B) 85.31 (33.33)

Total Tax Expense (A+B) 1,761.59 2,115.61

Effective Tax Rate 24.95% 24.32%
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C. Movement of deferred tax assets and liabilities

Particulars  Year Ended March 31, 2025
As at April 1, Credit/(Charge) Credit/(Charge) As at March

2024 in in OCI 31, 2025
Deferred tax liability on account of :
Timing difference on PPE & Intangible Assets as per
books and Income Tax Act, 1961 108.43 (30.32) - 138.75
Fair valuation of Securities for Trade as per Ind AS - - - -

Total deferred tax liabilities (A) 108.43 (30.32) - 138.75

Deferred tax assets on account of:
Expenses allowable u/s. 43B on payment basis

-Gratuity 65.84 9.25 5.55 80.64
-Bonus - - - -

Fair valuation of Equity Instruments as per Ind AS (24.97) (64.24) - (89.21)

Total deferred tax assets (B) 40.87 (54.99) 5.55 (8.57)

Net deferred tax Liability / (Assets) (A-B) 67.56 (85.31) 5.55 147.32

Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2024
As at April Credit/(Chrge) Credit/(Charge) As at March

1, 2023 in Profit or Loss in OCI 31, 2024

Deferred tax liability on account of :

Timing difference on PPE & Intangible Assets as per
books and Income Tax Act, 1961 101.62 (6.81) - 108.43
Fair valuation of Securities for Trade as per Ind AS - - - -

Total deferred tax liabilities (A) 101.62 (6.81) - 108.43

Deferred tax assets on account of:
Expenses allowable u/s. 43B on payment basis

-Gratuity 48.69 3.40 13.76 65.84
-Bonus 2.14 (2.14) - -

Fair valuation of Equity Instruments as per Ind AS (63.85) 38.88 - (24.97)

Total deferred tax assets (B) (13.02) 40.14 13.76 40.87

Net deferred tax Liability / (Assets) (A-B) 114.64 33.33 13.76 67.56

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

39. Earnings Per Equity Share
A) Profit attributable to Equity holders of Company

Profit attributable to equity holders 5,298.42 6,583.53
B) Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Number of shares at the beginning of the year 10,41,12,800 10,41,12,800
Number of Share Warrants issued during the year 50,00,000 -

Weighted average number of shares at the end of the year 10,91,12,800 10,41,12,800
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C) Face value per share 1.00 1.00
D) Basic earnings per share 5.09 6.32
E) Diluted earnings per share 4.86 6.32

40. Contingent Liability and Commitment (to the extent not provided for)

` in Lacs

Particulars For the year For the year
ended March ended March

31, 2025 31, 2024

Contingent liabilities:

Bank Guarantees given* 21,373.75 14,673.75

Demand in respect of income tax matters for which appeal is pending 66.98 66.98

Capital commitments:

There are no Capital commitment as at the year end.

* Bank Guarantees details

1. ICCL Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd (under mandatory rules for membership) 148.75 148.75

2. ICCL Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd (towards additional margin) 21,175.00 14,450.00

3. National Securities Clearing Corporation Ltd

(under mandatory rules for membership) 50.00 75.00

41. Segment Reporting

The Company publishes these standalone financial statements along with the consolidated financial statements. In
accordance with Ind AS 108, Operating Segments, the Company has disclosed the segment information in the
consolidated financial statements.
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42. Due to Micro, Small, & Medium Enterprises
The Company has sent letters to vendors to confirm whether they are covered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act 2006 as well as they have filed required memorandum with prescribed authority. Based on and to the extent
of the information received by the Company from the suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) the relevant particulars as at the year end are furnished below:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

The Principal amount remaining unpaid at the year end 61.13 164.89
The Interest amount remaining unpaid at the year end - -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006 - -
along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the - -
appointed day during each accounting year - -
The amount of interest due and payable for the year (where the principal
has been paid but interest under the MSMED Act, 2006 not paid) - -
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the year end - -
The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding - -
year, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually - -
paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a - -
deductible expenditure under section 23 - -

The balance of MSMED parties as at the year end 61.13 164.89

43. Revenue from Contract with customers
The Company derives revenue primarily from the broking business. Its other major revenue sources is Interest earned from
margin funding and delayed payments from clients.

A. Disaggregate revenue information
The table below presents disaggregate revenues from contracts with customers for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March
31, 2024. The Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of
revenue and cash flows are affected by market and other economic factors.

(` in Lacs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Brokerage Income 12,481.33 10,765.70
Fees & Commission Income 549.91 396.77
Interest Income 8,018.78 6,361.16
Depository Income 416.32 420.74
Fees From Merchant Banking 462.97 495.45

Total 21,929.31 18,439.82

B. Nature and timing of satisfaction of the performance obligation
1. Broking Income - The Company provides trade execution and settlement services to the customers. There is only one 

performance obligation of execution of the trade and settlement of the transaction which is satisfied at a point in time. The
brokerage charged is the transaction price and is recognised as revenue on settlement date basis.

2. Fees & Commission Income - Fees for subscription based services are received periodically but are recognised as
earned on a pro-rata basis over the term of the contract. Commissions from distribution of financial products are
recognised upon allotment of the securities to the applicant or as the case may be. Commissions and fees recognised as
aforesaid are exclusive of goods and service tax, securities transaction tax, stamp duties and other levies by SEBI and
stock exchanges.

3. Interest Income - Interest is earned on delayed payments from clients and amounts funded to them as well as on loans
and term deposit with bank. Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding from customers or on the financial instrument and the rate applicable.

4. Depository Income - Income from services rendered on behalf of depository is recognised upon rendering of the
services, in accordance with the terms of contract.

5. Fees From Merchant Banking - The Company provides underwriting the issuance of securities services to companies to
raise capital through the IPO and FPO process, from initial planning to final listing on the stock exchange. Income is
recognised as revenue upon rendering of the services, in accordance with the terms of agreement with customer.
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44. Employee benefits
A. The Company contributes to the following post-employment defined benefit plans
(i) Defined Contribution Plans:
The Company makes contributions towards Provident Fund and Employees State Insurance Fund to a defined
contribution retirement benefit plan for qualifying employees. Under the plan, the Company is required to contribute a
specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit plan to fund the benefits. The contributions payable to
these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
The Company recognised ` 44.03 Lacs (Previous Year ` 34.57 Lacs) for provident fund contributions in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.
The Company recognised ` 5.49 Lacs (Previous Year: ` 5.41 Lacs) for Employees State Insurance Fund contribution in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.
(ii) Defined Benefit Plan:
Gratuity
In accordance with Payment of Gratuity Act, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan
covering all employees. The plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement or termination of
employment based on the respective employee�s salary and the years of employment with the Company subject to
maximum of `20 lacs. (Previous Year `20 lacs).
The gratuity benefit is provided through unfunded plan and annual contributions are charged to the statement of profit
and loss. Under the scheme, the settlement obligation remains with the Company. Company accounts for the liability for
future gratuity benefits based on an actuarial valuation. The net present value of the Company�s obligation towards the
same is actuarially determined based on the projected unit credit method as at the Balance Sheet date.
B. Movement in Defined Benefit Liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit
(asset) liability and its components:

Particulars Defined Benefit Obligation
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Opening balance 261.61 193.44
Included in profit or loss -
Current service cost 21.45 14.79
Interest cost 18.68 13.93
Total - A 301.74 222.16
Included in OCI -
Actuarial loss (gain) arising from:
Demographic assumptions - 0.00
Financial assumptions 3.99 0.32
Experience adjustment 18.05 54.33

Total - B 22.04 54.65
Other
Benefits paid (3.36) (15.20)
Liability transferred in for Employees joined - -
Total - C (3.36) (15.20)

Closing balance (A+B+C) 320.42 261.61

C. Defined Benefit Obligations
(i) Actuarial assumptions: The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as
weighted averages).

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Mortality Table IALM (2012-14) Urban IALM (2012-14) Urban
Retirement age 60,65,67,69,70 & 75 years 60,65 & 70 years
Attrition Rate 29.00% p.a. 29.00% p.a.
Discount rate 7.14% p.a. 5.15% p.a.
Salary escalation rate 5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a.

(` in Lacs)
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(ii) Sensitivity analysis: Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial
assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts
shown below.

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Discount rate (1% movement) 6.34 (6.57) (5.25) 5.55
Future salary growth (1% movement) (6.12) 6.96 5.01 (4.82)
Employee Turnover (1% movement) (0.27) 0.26 0.10 (0.12)

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated.

D. Expected Future Cash Flows
The table below shows the expected cash flow profile of the benefits to be paid to the current membership of the plan
based on past service of the employees as at the valuation date:

Maturity profile As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Expected benefits for Year 1 94.12 76.28
Expected benefits for Year 2 72.53 60.59
Expected benefits for Year 3 52.73 47.44
Expected benefits for Year 4 41.33 32.92
Expected benefits for Year 5 39.77 25.72
Sum of Years 6 to 10 59.97 54.93
Sum of Years 11 and above 14.41 11.96

45. Related Party Disclosure
As per Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures, specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with The
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, the name of related party where control exists / able to exercise
significant influence along with the transactions and year end balances with them as identified and certified by the
management are as follows:
List of related parties and their relationship
a) Subsidiaries

- Arihant Futures & Commodities Limited
- Arihant Financial Services Limited
- Arihant Insurance Broking Services Limited (Till 24th October, 2024)
- Arihant Institute of Financial Education Private Limited(Till 31st July, 2023)
- Arihant Capital (IFSC) Limited

b) Associate
- Electrum Capital Private Limited
- Electrum Portfolio Managers Limited (Subsidiary of associate)

c) Key Management Personnel
Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain Managing Director
Mr. Arpit Jain Chief Executive Officer
Mrs. Anita S Gandhi Whole Time Director (cessation on August 05, 2023)
Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain Director
Mr. Akhilesh Rathi Independent Director (Till 31st, March 2024)
Mr. Parag R. Shah Independent Director (Till 31st, March 2024)
Mr. Ashish Maheshwari Independent Director
Mr. Jitendra Jain Independent Director
Ms. Swanubhuti A Jain Independent Director
Mr. Tarun Goyal Chief Financial Officer (Till 30th November, 2023)
Mr. Mahesh Pancholi Company Secretary
Mr. Uttam Maheshwari Chief Financial Officer ( From 01st December, 2023)

(` in Lacs)

(` in Lacs)
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d) Relatives of Key Management Personnel
Ashok Kumar Jain HUF
Mrs. Kiran Jain
Mrs. Shruti Jain
Mrs. Swati Jain

e) Enterprises over which Key Management Personnel are able to exercise significant influence
Shyam Developers
Get Prosper Capital Private Limited
Savitt Universal Limited

f) Trust Incorporated
Arihant Alternate Capital Trust

Transactions with related parties

Particulars Relationship March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Income
Rent
Electrum Capital Private Limited Associate 0.79 6.30

Commission
Electrum Portfolio Managers Limited Subsidiary of Associate 112.22 90.89

Expenses
Salary & Incentive
Ashok Kumar Jain KMP 361.13 236.00
Anita Gandhi KMP - 14.75
Arpit Jain KMP 336.32 343.29
Kiran Jain Relative of KMP 4.80 4.80
Tarun Goyal KMP - 14.07
Mahesh Pancholi KMP 16.83 14.95
Shruti Jain Relative of KMP 42.00 37.00
Uttam Maheshwari KMP 18.42 7.14

Rent
Ashok Kumar Jain KMP 18.00 15.00
Kiran Jain Relative of KMP 52.73 35.25
Ashok Kumar Jain HUF Relative of KMP 5.36 4.13
Arpit Jain KMP 5.36 4.13
Shyam Developers Enterprises over which KMP are able to

exercise significant influence 30.71 30.71

Sitting Fees
Sunil Kumar Jain KMP 4.20 2.50
Paragbhai Shah KMP - 2.00
Ashish Maheshwari KMP 4.20 2.00
Akhilesh Rathi KMP - 2.00
Jitendra Jain KMP 3.60 2.50
Swanubhuti Jain KMP 4.20 2.50

Legal & Professional Fees
Swati Jain Relative of KMP 14.40 14.40

(` in Lacs)



Notes Forming Part Of Standalone Financial Statement (` in Lacs)

Particulars Relationship March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Loan Taken
Arihant Financial Services Limited Subsidiary 800.00 -

Interest
Arihant Financial Services Limited Subsidiary 177.65 87.22
Savitt Universal Limited Enterprises over which KMP are able

to exercise significant influence 23.01 67.98
Akhilesh Rathi KMP - 6.09
Arihant Capital Markets Limited
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statement

Kamal Kumar Jain Relative of KMP 0.96 1.76

Shanta Jain Relative of KMP 1.76 4.81
Swati Jain Relative of KMP 0.57 11.27
Meena Jain Relative of KMP 86.80 59.98
Sunil Kumar Jain KMP 93.95 48.46
Sunil Kumar Jain HUF Relative of KMP 24.89 36.96
Anita Gandhi Whole Time Director

(cessation on August 05, 2023) - 1.18

Commission
Electrum Capital Private Limited Associate 2.04 0.75

Assets
Rent Deposits
Ashok Kumar Jain KMP 3.50 3.50
Kiran Jain Relative of KMP 20.38 20.38
Ashok Kumar Jain HUF Relative of KMP 3.44 3.44
Arpit Jain KMP 3.44 3.44
Shyam Developers Enterprises over which KMP are able

to exercise significant influence 3.75 3.75

Trust Deposit
Arihant Alternate Capital Trust Trust Incorporated 2.54 1.36

Commission Recievable
Electrum Portfolio Managers Limited Subsidiary of Associate 31.95 33.80

Rent Recievable
Electrum Capital Private Limited Associate - 0.62

Liabilities
Rent Deposits Taken
Electrum Capital Private Limited Associate - 5.00

Loans Taken
Savitt Universal Limited Relative of KMP - 1,000.00

46. Foreign Currency Transactions
(i) Expenditure in foreign currency

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Software Expenses 5.01 7.90
Business Development Expenses 17.32 18.56

Total 22.33 26.46
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(ii) Income in foreign currency

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Income from Royalty 21.30 15.27
Total 21.30 15.27

47. Ageing Schedule for Trade Receivables
For the year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 6 months- 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
6 months 1 year 3 years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables- considered good 9,463.59 15.56 23.32 2.76 9.62 9,514.85
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered doubtful 158.44 - - - - 158.44
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful - - - - - -

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 6 months- 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
6 months 1 year 3 years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables- considered good 9,616.77 0.50 12.95 0.02 0.22 9,630.48
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered Doubtful - - - - - -
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful - - - - - -

48. Ageing Schedule for Trade Payables
For the year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than

1 year 3 years
(i) MSME 61.13 - - - 61.13
(ii) Others 26,784.67 33.61 0.06 0.06 26,818.41
(iii) Disputed dues- MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues- Others - - - - -

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than

1 year 3 years
(i) MSME 164.89 - - - 164.89
(ii) Others 25,292.08 5,625.42 45.43 10.66 30,973.59
(iii) Disputed dues- MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues- Others - - - - -

49. Details of borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets
The quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions for the 
working capital limit are in agreement with the books of accounts.

50. Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
The company has filed all the registration of charges, modification or satisfaction with ROC within the statutory period as
required by the Companies Act, 2013.
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51. Additional Regulatory Information as per Companies Act, 2013

1. The company has not granted any Loans or Advances to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as 
defined under Companies Act, 2013,) either severally or jointly with any other person.

2. The title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties are held in the name of company and no immovable
property is jointly held with others.

3. There is no Intangible assets under development.

4. There is no tangible assets(Capital-work-in progress) under development.

5. The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets.

6. No proceeding have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.

7. The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

8. The company is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

9. The company has not entered into transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act,
2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

10. The company has not applied for any Scheme of Arrangements in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

11. Utilization of Borrowed funds and share premium:

(a) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (�Intermediaries�), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (�Ultimate Beneficiaries�) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) No funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(�Funding Parties�), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Funding Party (�Ultimate Beneficiaries�) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries."

12. The Company has not used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the purpose other than for
which it was taken.

13. The Company has no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

52. Disclosure relating to various ratios

Additional regulatory information required under clause (xvi) of Division III of Schedule III amendment, disclosure of
ratios, is not applicable to the Company as it is in broking business and not an NBFC registered under Section 45-IA of
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

53. Fair value measurement

I. Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amount and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their
levels in the fair value hierarchy:
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Particulars Carrying amount Fair value

March 31, 2025 FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
cost

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - 1,095.92 1,095.92 - - - -
Bank balance other than cash
and cash equivalents - - 38,239.27 38,239.27 - - - -
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - - -
Securities for trade 4,824.16 - - 4,824.16 4,824.16 - - 4,824.16
Trade receivables - - 9,673.29 9,673.29 - - - -
Loans 12,972.70 12,972.70 -
Investments 1,411.62 - 563.26 1,974.88 1,316.52 - 95.10 1,411.62
Other financial assets - - 1,415.39 1,415.39 - - - -

Total financial assets 6,235.78 - 63,959.83 70,195.61 6,140.68 - 95.10 6,235.78

Financial liabilities
Trade Payables
Derivative financial instruments 210.38 - 210.38 210.38 210.38
Total outstanding dues of
micro & small enterprises - - 61.13 61.13 - - - -
Total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro
& small enterprises - - 26,818.41 26,818.41 - - - -
Debt securities 2,393.00 2,393.00
Borrowings - - 5,776.00 5,776.00 - - - -
Other financial Liabilities - - 2,368.10 2,368.10 - - - -
Total financial liabilities 210.38 - 37,416.64 37,627.02 210.38 - - 210.38

Particulars Carrying amount Fair value
March 31, 2024 FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

cost

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - 1,678.24 1,678.24 - - - -
Bank balance other than cash
and cash equivalents - - 37,868.41 37,868.41 - - - -
Derivative financial instruments 4.47 - - 4.47 4.47 - - 4.47
Securities for trade 2,905.39 - - 2,905.39 2,905.39 - - 2,905.39
Trade receivables - - 9,630.48 9,630.48 - - - -
Loans - - 17,446.95 17,446.95 - - - -
Investments 944.13 - 638.26 1,582.39 939.03 - 5.10 944.13
Other financial assets 1,738.98 1,738.98 - -

Total financial assets 3,853.98 - 69,001.32 72,855.30 3,848.88 - 5.10 3,853.98

Financial liabilities
Trade Payables
Total outstanding dues of
micro & small enterprises - - 164.89 164.89 - - - -
Total outstanding dues o
creditors other than micro
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Particulars Carrying amount Fair value
March 31, 2024 FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

cost

& small enterprises - - 30,973.59 30,973.59 - - - -
Debt securities 4,325.00 4,325.00
Borrowings - - 4,921.19 4,921.19 - - - -
Other financial Liabilities - - 4,195.29 4,195.29 - - - -

Total financial liabilities - - 44,579.96 44,579.96 - - - -

Level 1 : Category include financial assets and liabilities that are measured in whole or significantly part by reference to
published quotes in an active market.

Level 2 : Category include financial assets and liabilities that are measured using a valuation technique based on
assumptions that are supported by prices from observable current market transactions.

Level 3 : Category include financial assets and liabilities that are measured using valuation technique based on non-
market observable inputs. This means that fair value are determined in whole or in part using a valuation model based
on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same
instrument nor are they based on available market data.

II. Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Financial assets not measured at fair value includes cash and cash equivalents, bank balance, trade receivables, loans
and other financial assets. These are financial assets whose carrying amounts approximate fair value, due to their
short-term nature and also fixed deposit with maturity more than 12 months (included in other financial assets) are
measured at amortized cost.
Additionally, financial liabilities such as trade payables and other financial liabilities are not measured at FVTPL, whose
carrying amounts approximate fair value, because of their short-term nature.

54. Financial risk management

The company has a risk management framework, appropriate to the size of the Company and environment under which
it operates. The objective of its risk management framework is to ensure that various risks are identified, measured and
mitigated and also that policies, procedures and standards are established to address these risks and ensure a
systematic response in the case of crystallization of such risks. The board of Directors reviews these policies and
processes regularly and is periodically informed about the risk assessment, impact of risk on the business and
mitigation plans. The Company is exposed to following risk -

A. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties fail to discharge their
contractual obligation. The Company manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing
to accept for individual counterparties, and by monitoring exposures in relations to such limits.
The maximum exposure to credit risk for each class of financial instruments is the carrying amount of that class of
financial instruments presented in the financial statements.
Deposits with banks are considered to have negligible risk or nil risk, as they are maintained with high rated banks /
financial institutions as approved by the Board of directors.
The management has established accounts receivable policy under which customer accounts are regularly
monitored.

Expected Credit Loss (ECL):

The Company applies the Ind AS 109 Simplified approach for trade receivables which requires expected lifetime losses
to be recognised .For other assets , the Company uses 12 month ECL approach to measuring expected credit losses
(ECLs) where there is no significant increase in credit risk of borrower. If there is significant increase in credit risk full
lifetime ECL approach is used.
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Inputs considered in the ECL model

In assessing the impairment of financial assets under Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Model, the assets have been
segmented into three stages. The three stages reflect the general pattern of credit deterioration of a financial
instrument. The differences in accounting between stages, relate to the recognition of expected credit losses.

Stage 1 : Financial assets for which credit risk has not increased significantly and that are also not credit impaired
Stage 2 : Financial assets for which credit risk has increased significantly but not credit impaired
Stage 3 : Financial assets for which credit risk has increased significantly and are credit impaired

B. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the entity will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The entity�s approach to managing liquidity is to
ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the entity�s reputation.

Prudent liquidity risk management requires sufficient cash and marketable securities and availability of funds through
adequate committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out market positions.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, for the management of the
Company�s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The table below provide details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of
March 31,2025

Particulars Carrying Less than 1-3 year 3-5 year More than

Amount 1 year 5 year

Derivative financial instruments 210.38 210.38
Trade Payables 26,879.54 26,879.54 - - -
Debt Securities 2,393.00 - 2,393
Borrowings 5,776.00 5,776.00 - - -
Other financial Liabilities 2,368.10 2,368.10 - - -

The table below provide details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of
March 31,2024

Particulars Carrying Less than 1-3 year 3-5 year More than
Amount 1 year 5 year

Trade Payables 31,138.48 31,138.48 - - -
Debt Securities 4,325.00 1,932.00 2,393
Borrowings 4,921.19 4,921.19 - - -
Other financial Liabilities 4,195.29 4,195.29 - - -

C. Market risk

Market Risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in
market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, etc. The objective of market risk management is to
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while maximizing the return.
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(i) Currency risk

Currency Risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.
The company's all transactions are denominated in Indian rupees only. Hence, the Company is not significantly
exposed to currency rate risk.

(ii) Interest rate risk

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flow of a financial instrument will fluctuate as result of
changes in market interest rates. The Company�s Loans are primarily in fixed interest rates. Hence, the Company is not
significantly exposed to interest rate risk.

(iii) Market price risks

The Company is exposed to market price risk, which arises from FVTPL investments. The management monitors the
proportion of these investments in its investment portfolio based on market indices. Material investments within the
portfolio are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are approved by the appropriate authority.

55. Capital Management

The company�s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that
they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The company monitors its capital by using gearing ratio, which is net debt to total equity. Net debt includes borrowings
net of cash and bank balances and total equity comprises of Equity share capital, general reserve and retained
earnings.

Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024

Debts 2,393.00 4,325.00
Borrowings 5,776.00 4,921.19
Less: Cash & bank balances 39,335.19 39,546.65

Net Debt (A) (31,166.19) (34,625.46)

Total Equity(B) 34,971.76 29,354.14

Gearing Ratio (A/B) (0.89) (1.18)

56. Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analyzed according to when they are expected to be
recovered or settled

Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024

Within 12 After 12 Total Within 12 After 12 Total
month month month month

Assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,095.92 - 1,095.92 1,678.24 - 1,678.24
Bank balance other than cash
and cash equivalents 38,239.27 - 38,239.27 37,868.41 - 37,868.41
Derivative financial instruments - - - 4.47 - 4.47
Securities for trade 4,824.16 - 4,824.16 2,905.39 - 2,905.39
Trade receivables 9,673.29 - 9,673.29 9,630.48 - 9,630.48

(` in Lacs)
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Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Within 12 After 12 Total Within 12 After 12 Total

month month month month

Loans 12,972.70 - 12,972.70 17,446.95 - 17,446.95
Investments - 1,974.88 1,974.88 - 1,582.39 1,582.39
Other financial assets 1,190.66 224.73 1,415.39 1,514.03 224.95 1,738.98

67,996.00 2,199.61 70,195.61 71,047.97 1,807.34 72,855.30

Non-Financial assets
Property, plant and equipment - 2,622.94 2,622.94 - 1,209.36 1,209.36
Other intangible assets - 214.05 214.05 - 243.62 243.62
Other non financial assets 570.95 92.66 663.61 699.96 115.85 815.81

570.95 2,929.65 3,500.60 699.96 1,568.83 2,268.79

Total Assets 68,566.95 5,129.26 73,696.21 71,747.93 3,376.17 75,124.09

Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments 210.38 - 210.38 - - -
Trade payables 26,879.54 - 26,879.54 31,138.48 - 31,138.48
Debt Securities - 2,393.00 2,393.00
Borrowings 5,776.00 - 5,776.00 4,921.19 - 4,921.19
Other financial Liabilities 2,368.10 - 2,368.10 4,195.29 - 4,195.29

35,234.02 2,393.00 37,627.02 40,254.96 - 40,254.96

Non-Financial Liabilities
Current Tax Liabilities (net) 41.71 - 41.71 179.73 - 179.73
Provisions - 320.41 320.41 - 261.61 261.61
Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) - 147.32 147.32 - 67.56 67.56
Other non financial liabilities 587.99 - 587.99 681.10 - 681.10

629.70 467.73 1,097.43 860.83 329.17 1,190.00

Total Liabilities 35,863.72 2,860.73 38,724.45 41,115.79 329.17 41,444.96

57. Corporate social responsibility

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 on Corporate Social
Responsibility with effect from 1 April 2014. As per the provisions of the said section, the Company has undertaken the
following CSR initiatives during the financial year 2023-24. CSR initiatives majorly includes supporting under privileged
in education, medical treatments, etc. and various other charitable and noble aids.
A) Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year ` 118.88 Lakhs (Previous year ` 91.22 Lakhs)
B) Amount spent during the year ended March 31, 2025 on:

` in Lacs

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2025         Year ended March 31, 2024
Amount Yet to be Total Amount Yet to be Total

Paid paid Paid paid

Construction/acquisition of any asset - - - - - -
On purposes other than (a) above 118.88 118.88 91.47 - 91.47

Total 118.88 - 118.88 91.47 - 91.47
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In case of S. 135(5) unspent amount

Opening Balance Amount deposited in Amount required to be Amount spent during the Closing Balance
Specified Fund of Sch. spent during the year year

VII within 6 months

(0.25) 36.54 118.88 82.34 (0.25)

Reasons for not spending two percent of the average net profit as per sub-section (5) of Section 135.

During fiscal 2025, the Company has spent 82.34 lacs on various projects including surplus of ` 0.25 lacs. The unspent

balance of ` 36.54 lacs is towards ongoing projects and has been transferred to the unspent CSR account and will be
spent in accordance with the CSR Rules.

58. Events after Reporting Date

There were no significant events after the end of the reporting period which require any adjustment or disclosure in the
financial statements other than as stated below:

The Board of Directors have recommended a final dividend of ` 0.50 per equity share for the financial year ended March
31, 2025. Payment of the final dividend is subject to its approval by the shareholders, in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting of the Company.

59. Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary.

60. Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on May 10, 2025

For Arora Banthia & Tulsiyan
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No: 007028C

CA. Ajay Tulsiyan
Partner
Membership No. : 074868
UDIN : 25074868BMUIJE5992
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Arpit Jain
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Uttam Maheshwari
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Company Secretary 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR�S REPORT

To the Members of

ARIHANT CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of ARIHANT CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED
(�the Holding Company�), and its subsidiaries (the Company and its Subsidiaries together referred to as the �Group�) which
includes the Group�s share of profit in its associate, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025,
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income) and the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and a
summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information . (Hereinafter referred to as the �consolidated
financial statements�).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on the
consideration of report of other auditor on separate financial statements of its associate referred to in the Other Matter
paragraph below, the aforesaid consolidated Ind As financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (�the Act�), in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standard prescribed under section 133 of the act read with the companies (Indian Accounting Standards) rules,2015 as
amended, (�Ind AS�) and other principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at
31st March, 2025, and their consolidated profit (including other comprehensive income) and consolidated cash flows and
the consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the �Auditor�s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements� section of our report. We are independent of the Group and its
associate in accordance with the �Code of Ethics� issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Rules there under, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters (�KAM�) are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Information Other than the Ind AS financial statements and Auditor�s Report Thereon

The Holding Company�s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board�s Report including
Annexure to Board�s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder�s Information, but
does not include the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, standalone Ind AS financial statements and our auditor�s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.



In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information,
compare with the financial statements of the associate audited by the other auditors, to the extent it related to this entity
and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Other information so far
as it relates to the associate is traced from their financial statements audited by the other auditor.

Based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is no material misstatement of this other information.

Management�s Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

The Holding Company�s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (�the Act�) with respect to the preparation of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance (and other comprehensive income),
consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group including its associates in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (�Ind AS�) specified under 
Section 133.This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and its associate and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of the appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group and its associate are responsible for assessing the Group�s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Management and Boards of Directors of the companies included in the Group and its associate are also
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and its associate.

Auditor�s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor�s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the holding company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.



3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management�s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the ability of the Group and its associate to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor�s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor�s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
and its associate to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities 
within the Group and its associate to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities or business
activities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the entities
or business activities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by the other
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried
out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor�s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Other Matters

The consolidated financial statements also include the Group's share of profit/(Loss) after tax of Rs. 322.73 lakhs for the
year ended March 31, 2025 and total comprehensive income of Rs.322.67 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2025, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of one associate, whose financial statements have not
been audited by us. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to
us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of this associate, and our report in terms of subsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far
as it relates to the aforesaid associate is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the
other auditors and the financial statements certified by the Management.



Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. With respect to the matters specified in paragraph 3 (xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor�s Report) Order, 2020, 
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, to
be included in the auditor�s report, According to the information and explanations given to us and the CARO reports
issued by us for the company and its subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statement of the company
and CARO reports issued by associate�s auditor for the associate company to which reporting under CARO is
applicable, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports.

2. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor�s Report in accordance with the requirements of section
197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid/provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of
the Act.

3. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of the other
auditor on the separate financial statement of the associate referred to in the Other Matters paragraph above we
report, to the extent applicable that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements have been kept by the group so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the 
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the holding company as on 31st March
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the holding company, the report of the subsidiary companies
and the reports of the statutory auditor of its associates� company, none of the directors of Group Companies
and its associate is disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial control over financial reporting and the operating
effectiveness of such control, refer to our separate report in Annexure �A� which is based on the auditor�s report
of the Group and its associates. Our report expresses an unqualified opinion on adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial control over financial reporting of those companies.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor�s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

i. The Group and its associate, as detailed in note 43A to the consolidated financial statements, has
disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2025.

ii. Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts;



iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company, subsidiary companies and its associate company.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it�s knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in
any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (�Intermediaries�), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the company (�Ultimate Beneficiaries�) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it�s knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (�Funding Parties�), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (�Ultimate Beneficiaries�) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on such audit procedures that the auditor has considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

v. (a) The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid by the Company during the year
is in accordance with section 123 of the act, as Applicable.

(b) No interim dividend declared and paid by the company during the year.

(c) The Board of directors of the company have proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to
the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The amount of dividend
proposed is in accordance with section 123 of the act, as Applicable.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software for
maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with and under proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requirements for record therein.

For :Arora Banthia & Tulsiyan
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 007028C

(CA Ajay Tulsiyan)
Partner
M. No.: 074868
UDIN : 25074868BMUIJF4455

thIndore, 10 May, 2025



Annexure �A� to the independent auditor�s report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under �Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements� section of our report to the
Members of ARIHANT CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (�the Act�)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Group and its associate as of and for the
year ended 31 March 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Arihant Capital Market
Limited (�the Holding Company�) its subsidiary companies and its associates, as of that date.

Management�s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Management and Board of Directors of the holding company, its subsidiaries companies and its associate
company are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Group considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to group�s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors� Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group's and its associate�s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the �Guidance Note�) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor�s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors of its associate,
in terms of their reports referred to in the in the Other Matters paragraph below is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Group�s and its associate�s internal financial controls system over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that



1. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company;

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statement, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of
the reports of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, the Group and its associate, have in all
material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and such controls were operating effectively
as at 31 March 2025, based on criteria established by the Group and its associate considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the �Guidance Note�).

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to its one associate company, is based solely on the corresponding 
reports of the auditors of such company.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

For :Arora Banthia & Tulsiyan
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 007028C

(CA Ajay Tulsiyan)
Partner
M. No.: 074868
UDIN: 25074868BMUIJF4455

thIndore, 10 May, 2025



Consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025 (` in Lacs)

Particulars Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

ASSETS
1 Financial assets

a. Cash and cash equivalents 4 2,031.82 2,413.74
b. Bank balance other than Cash and cash equivalent 5 38,424.22 38,125.21
c. Derivative financial instruments 6 - 4.47
d. Securities for trade 7 4,948.56 3,105.16
e. Trade receivables 8 9,673.29 9,637.37
f. Loans 9 16,060.72 19,172.06
g. Investments 10 2,374.62 1,462.78
h. Other financial assets 11 1,613.57 1,805.74

75,126.80 75,726.53
2 Non financial assets

a. Current tax assets (net) 12 0.16 0.05
b. Deferred tax assets (net) 13 6.92 6.54
c. Property, plant and equipment 14 2,651.82 1,239.39
d. Other intangible assets 15 214.04 248.34
e. Other non financial assets 16 691.12 827.60

3,564.06 2,321.92

Total Assets 78,690.86 78,048.45

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

1 Financial Liabilities
a. Derivatives Financial Instrument 17 210.38 -
b. Trade Payables 18

i) Total outstanding dues of micro & small enterprises 61.13 164.89
ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro

& small enterprises 26,818.41 30,241.98
c. Debt Securities 19 2,393.00 4,325.00
d. Borrowings 20 7,174.12 5,602.73
e. Other financial Liabilities 21 2,433.78 4,230.19

39,090.82 44,564.79
2 Non Financial Liabilities

a. Current Tax Liabilities (net) 22 81.27 206.19
b. Provisions 23 322.66 263.85
c. Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 24 147.56 68.43
d. Other non financial liabilities 25 603.04 692.75

1,154.53 1,231.22
3 Equity

a. Equity share capital 26 1,041.13 1,041.13
b. Other equity 27 37,404.38 31,211.31

38,445.51 32,252.44

Total Liabilities & Equity 78,690.86 78,048.45

Notes Forming Part of Consolidated Financial statements 1 to 66

As per our report of even date
For Arora Banthia & Tulsiyan
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No: 007028C

CA. Ajay Tulsiyan
Partner
Membership No. : 074868
UDIN : 25074868BMUIJF4455

thIndore, 10 May, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board
Ashok Kumar Jain
Managing Director 
DIN-00184729

Arpit Jain
Joint Managing Director
& CEO
DIN-06544441

Uttam Maheshwari
Chief Financial Officer
Membership No. : 41913

Mahesh Pancholi 
Company Secretary 
Membership No. : F7143 



Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025 (` in Lacs)

Particulars Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income

I Revenue from Operations
Interest Income 28 8,474.50 6,706.89
Dividend Income 29 39.65 45.99
Fees & Commission Income 30 13,925.39 12,115.97
Net Gain on fair value changes 31 2,292.16 4,645.51

II Other Income 32 69.38 46.21
III Total Income 24,801.08 23,560.57

IV Expenses
Finance costs 33 1,991.14 1,256.89
Fees and commission expense 34 7,596.26 6,847.34
Impairment on financial instruments 35 3.59 11.30
Employee Benefits Expenses 36 4,078.86 3,200.92
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 37 303.54 240.56
Other Expenses 38 3,748.27 2,945.10
Total 17,721.66 14,502.11

V Profit Before Share of Profit / (Loss) of Associates,
Exceptional Items and Tax 7,079.42 9,058.47

VI Share of Profit / (Loss) of Associates (Net of Tax) 319.33 210.28
VII Profit Before Exceptional Items and Tax 7,398.75 9,268.75
VIII Exceptional items 40 329.90 0.82
IX Profit Before Tax 7,728.65 9,269.57
X Tax Expenses 41

Current Tax 1,773.85 2,253.75
Deferred Tax 84.52 (35.22)
Total Tax Expenses 1,858.37 2,218.53

XI Profit/(loss) for the year 5,870.28 7,051.04
XII Other Comprehensive Income
(A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit & loss

Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (22.03) (54.66)
Tax effect relating to above item 5.55 13.76

Total (A) (16.48) (40.90)
(B) Items that will be reclassified to profit & loss

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 3.58 1.89
Tax effect relating to above item

Total (B) 3.58 1.89
Total Other Comprehensive Income (A+B) (12.90) (39.01)

XIII Total Comprehensive Income for the period 5,857.38 7,012.03
XIV Earnings per Share 42

Equity Shares of `1 each
Basic (Amount in `) 5.64 6.77
Diluted (Amount in `) 5.37 6.77

Notes Forming Part of Consolidated Financial statements 1 to 66

As per our report of even date
For Arora Banthia & Tulsiyan
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No: 007028C

CA. Ajay Tulsiyan
Partner
Membership No. : 074868
UDIN : 25074868BMUIJF4455

thIndore, 10 May, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board
Ashok Kumar Jain
Managing Director 
DIN-00184729

Arpit Jain
Joint Managing Director
& CEO
DIN-06544441

Uttam Maheshwari
Chief Financial Officer
Membership No. : 41913

Mahesh Pancholi 
Company Secretary 
Membership No. : F7143 



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025 (` in Lacs)

Particulars Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A Cash flow (used in) / generated from operating activities

Profit before tax 7,728.65 9,269.57
Add / (less) : Adjustments
Unrealised (gain)/loss on Fair value changes of Securities for trade 113.87 (21.73)
(Profit) / Loss on sale of Investments (454.98) (433.83)
Depreciation / amortisation 303.54 240.56
Interest paid on borrowings 1,415.73 806.76
Dividend income (39.65) (45.99)
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 3.58 1.89
Operating profit before working capital changes 9,070.74 9,817.24

Adjustments for changes in working capital:
-(Increase)/Decrease in Other bank balance (299.01) (19,511.15)
-(Increase)/Decrease in Derivative financial instruments 4.47 11.29
-(Increase)/Decrease in Securities for Trade (1,957.27) (2,365.93)
-(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and other receivables (35.92) 7,652.35
-(Increase)/Decrease in Loans 3,111.34 (9,951.11)
-(Increase)/Decrease in Other financial assets 192.17 (1,368.02)
-(Increase)/Decrease in Other non financial assets 136.48 (277.03)
-(Increase)/Decrease in Derivative financial instruments 210.38 -
-Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payables (3,527.33) 12,133.18
-Increase/(Decrease) in Other financial liabilities (1,796.41) 2,466.82
-Increase/(Decrease) in Other non financial liabilities (89.71) 522.89
-Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions 36.78 13.51
Cash generated from operations 5,056.71 (855.97)
Income tax paid (net) (1,899.11) (2,107.20)
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (A) 3,157.60 (2,963.17)

B Cash flow (used in) / generated from Investing activities
- (Purchase) / Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment (1,681.67) (305.87)
- (Purchase) / Proceeds from sale of investments 456.86 878.97
- Dividend income received 39.65 45.99
Net cash (used in)/ generated from investing activities (B) 619.09

C Cash flow (used in) / generated from Financing activities
- Dividend paid (520.56) (416.45)
- Interest paid (1,415.73) (806.76)
- Increase/ (Decrease) in borrowings 1,571.39 (364.80)
- (Repayment) / Proceeds from issuance of debt securities (1,932.00) 4,325.00
- Proceeds from issue of convertible warrants 856.25
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (C) (1,440.65) 2,736.99

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 381.92 392.90
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 2,413.74 2,020.84
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 2,413.74

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of
Cash and cheques in hand 7.40 15.75
Balances with scheduled banks 2,024.42 2,397.99
Total 2,031.82 2,413.74
Notes:
i) The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the �Indirect method� as set out on the Indian Accounting Standard

(Ind AS-7) Statement of Cash Flow
ii) Figures in brackets indicate cash outflows.
Notes Forming Part of Consolidated Financial statements 1 to 66

As per our report of even date
For Arora Banthia & Tulsiyan
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No: 007028C

CA. Ajay Tulsiyan
Partner
Membership No. : 074868
UDIN : 25074868BMUIJF4455

thIndore, 10 May, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board
Ashok Kumar Jain
Managing Director 
DIN-00184729

Arpit Jain
Joint Managing Director
& CEO
DIN-06544441

Uttam Maheshwari
Chief Financial Officer
Membership No. : 41913

Mahesh Pancholi 
Company Secretary 
Membership No. : F7143 



Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

A. Equity Share Capital (` in Lacs)

Particular Amount

Balance as at April 1, 2023  1,041.13 

Changes in equity share capital during the year  -

Balance as at March 31, 2024  1,041.13 

Changes in equity share capital during the year  -

Balance as at March 31, 2025  1,041.13 

B. Other Equity (` in Lacs)

Particulars      Reserve & Surplus Total Equity
Retained Consolidated Statutory Foreign General Application
Earnings Reserve Reserve Currency Reserve Money

Translation Received
Reserve Against

Share

Balance as at April 1, 2023  1,435.81  35.15  168.83  26.72  22,949.22  -  24,615.73 
Profit for the period 7,051.04  -  -  -  -  -  7,051.04 
Other comprehensive income  (40.90)  -  -  1.89  -  -  (39.01)

Total comprehensive income 8,445.95  35.15  168.83  28.61  22,949.22  -  31,627.76 

Final Dividend (416.45)  -  -  -  -  -  (416.45)
Transfer to Statutory Reserve (25.49)  -  25.49  -  -  -  -
Transfer to General Reserve (6,000.00)  -  -  -  6,000.00  -  -

Balance as at March 31, 2024  2,004.02  35.15  194.32  28.61  28,949.22  31,211.32 

Profit for the period 5,870.28  -  -  -  -  5,870.28 
Other comprehensive income  (16.49)  -  -  3.58  -  (12.91)

Total comprehensive income 7,857.81  35.15  194.32  32.19  28,949.22  37,068.69 

Final Dividend (520.56)  -  -  -  -  (520.56)
Transfer to Statutory Reserve (46.93)  -  46.93  -  -  856.25  -
Transfer to General Reserve (6,000.00)  -  -  -  6,000.00  -

Balance as at March 31, 2025  1,290.31  35.15  241.25  32.19  34,949.22  856.25  37,404.38

For Arora Banthia & Tulsiyan
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg No: 007028C

CA. Ajay Tulsiyan
Partner

Membership No. : 074868

UDIN : 25074868BMUIJF4455
thIndore, 10 May, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board
Ashok Kumar Jain
Managing Director 
DIN-00184729

Arpit Jain
Joint Managing Director
& CEO
DIN-06544441

Uttam Maheshwari
Chief Financial Officer
Membership No. : 41913

Mahesh Pancholi 
Company Secretary 
Membership No. : F7143 



SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY INFORMATION

NOTE 1: CORPORATE INFORMATION

Arihant Capital Markets Limited (�ACML� or �the Holding Company�) is a public limited company and incorporated on
25th June, 1992 under the provisions of Companies Act. The Company is domiciled in India having its registered office at 6,
Lad Colony, YN Road Indore, Madhya Pradesh.

The Holding Company is registered with Securities and Exchange Board of India (�SEBI�) under the Stock brokers and sub-
brokers Regulations, 1992 and is a member of Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, National Stock Exchange of India
Limited, Multi Commodity Exchange of India Ltd. and National Commodity and Derivatives Exchange Limited.

Arihant Capital Markets Limited, its subsidiaries and associate (collectively, the Group) are engaged in Stock Broking ,
Commodities Broking, Portfolio Management Services, Financial Services, Real Estate, Insurance Broking and other
related activities.

NOTE 2: MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies information adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. Estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the
period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2025 has been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standard (�Ind AS�). The Company is covered under the definition of NBFC. These Financial Statements of the Company
are presented as per Schedule III (Division III) of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable to NBFCs, as notified by the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs (MCA). These Financial Statements of the Company are presented in Indian Rupees (�INR�), which is
also the Company�s functional currency and all values are rounded to nearest lacs. Due to rounding off, the numbers
presented throughout the document may not add up precisely to the totals and percentages may not precisely reflect the
absolute figures. Previous year figures have been regrouped/ rearranged, wherever necessary.

Preparation of Consolidated financial statements

The Holding Company is covered in the definition of Non-Banking Financial Company as defined in Companies(Indian
Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016. As per the format prescribed under Division III of Schedule III to the 
Companies Act, 2013 on 11 October 2013, the Holding Company presents the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and
Loss and the Statement of Changes in Equity in the order of liquidity. A maturity analysis of recovery or settlement of assets
and liabilities within 12 months after the reporting date and more than 12 months after the reporting date is presented in
Note 59.

2.1. Principles of Consolidation with Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements have comprised financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries,
subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the relevant activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the Group.

The Group combines the financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like
items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealized gains on
transactions within the Group are eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides



evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

2.2. Revenue Recognition

The Group recognizes revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out in Ind AS 115,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers, to determine when to recognize revenue and at what amount. Revenue is
measured based on the consideration specified in the contract with a customer. Revenue from contracts with
customers is recognised when services are provided and it is highly probable that a significant reversal of revenue is
not expected to occur.

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognised when (or as)
the Group satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An
asset is transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

When (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, the Group recognizes as revenue the amount of the transaction
price (excluding estimates of variable consideration) that is allocated to that performance obligation.

The Group applies the five-step approach for recognition of revenue:

Identification of contract(s) with customers;

Identification of the separate performance obligations in the contract;

Determination of transaction price;

Allocation of transaction price to the separate performance obligations; and

Recognition of revenue when (or as) each performance obligation is satisfied.

(i) Brokerage income

It is recognized on settlement date basis and is exclusive of goods and service tax, securities transaction tax
(STT) and commodity transaction tax (CTT) wherever applicable.

(ii) Fee & Commission income

Fees based incomes on services are recognised as earned on a pro-rata basis over the term of the contract.
Commissions from distribution of financial products are recognised upon allotment of the securities to the
applicant or as the case may be.

(iii) Depository income

Income from services rendered on behalf of depository is recognised upon rendering of the services, in
accordance with the terms of contract.

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is recognized on accrual basis in Statement of profit and loss for all financial instruments
measured at amortised cost.

(v) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized in the statement of profit or loss on the date that the Group�s right to receive 
payment is established.

(vi) Revenue from Sale of Land and other rights

Revenue from Sale of land and other rights is generally a single performance obligation and the Group has
determined that this is satisfied at the point in time when control transfers as per the terms of the contract
entered into with the buyers, which generally are with the firmity of the sale contracts / agreements



(vii) Portfolio Management and Advisory Services

The Group provides portfolio management services and advisory services to its clients wherein a separate
agreement is entered into with each client. The Group earns management fees which is generally charged as a
percent of the Assets Under Management (AUM) and is recognised on accrual basis. The Group, in certain
instances also has a right to charge performance fee to the clients if the portfolio achieves a particular level of
performance as mentioned in the agreement with the client to the extent permissible under applicable
regulations. Generally, no upfront fee is charged to the clients

(viii) Insurance Commission

Insurance commission is recognized on receiving details of the policy issued by the insurance company or
receipt of brokerage whichever is earlier.

(ix) Advisory Fees

Revenue from advisory services are recognized over the tenure of service as per terms of contract. Advisory
fees related to successful completion of a milestone is recognised as revenue only when such milestone is
achieved.

2.3. Income Tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period�s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses. Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit or 
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In
this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current Tax

Current tax is measured at the amount of tax expected to be payable on the taxable income for the year as
determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.Current tax assets and current tax
liabilities are off set when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Consolidated financial statements. Deferred tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognized for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in subsidiaries where the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

2.4. Assets held for sale

Assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will have recovered principally through sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and sale is considered highly probable. They are measured at lower of their



carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell, except for assets such as deferred tax, assets arising from employee
benefit, financials assets and contractual rights under insurance contracts, which are specifically exempted from this
requirement. Where the Company is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of an entity, it classifies
investment in the entity and assets & liabilities associated with that entity as held for sale.

2.5. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

2.6. Financial Instruments

Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Fair value of financial instruments:

Some of the Group�s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purpose. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of various assets and
liabilities are disclosed in Note 56.

(A) Financial assets

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair value depending on
their respective classification.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as - measured at:

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL);

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI); or

Amortised cost.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Group
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.



Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest
method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain and loss on derecognition are recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest (EIR) method. The impairment losses, if any, are recognized through Statement of Profit and
Loss. The loss allowance is recognized in OCI and does not reduce the carrying value of the financial asset. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

(ii) Impairment

The Group recognizes impairment allowances using Expected Credit Losses (�ECL�) method on all the
financial assets that are not measured at FVPTL:

ECL are probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. For trade receivables Group follows simplified
approach which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised. For other assets, the Group uses 12 month
ECL to provide for impairment loss where there is no significant increase in credit risk. If there is a significant
increase in credit risk full lifetime ECL is used. For ECL all financial assets are classified as follows

Stage 1 : Financials assets that are not credit impaired

Stage 2 : Financials assets with significant increase in credit risk but that are not credit impaired.

Stage 3 : Financials assets that are credit impaired.

Financial assets are written off / fully provided for when there is no reasonable of recovering a financial asset in
its entirety or a portion thereof.

However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group�s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised only when:

The Group has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or retains the contractual
rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows
to one or more recipients.

Where the Group has transferred an asset, the Group evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where
the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial
asset is not derecognised.

Where the Group has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Group has not retained control of the
financial asset. Where the Group retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised
to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.



(B) Financial liabilities

(i) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is
classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are
recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in Statement of Profit or loss.

(ii) Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Financial liabilities
carried at fair value through profit or loss is measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

2.7. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition and installation of the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset�s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value:

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful life prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The Group provides pro-rata
depreciation from the date of installation till date the assets are sold or disposed.

Assets Useful Life

Building 60 years

Furniture and Fixtures 10 years

Office Equipments 5 years

Computers 3 years

Electrical Installations 10 years

Vehicles 8 years

Leasehold Premises 30 years

Derecognition:

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by



comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognized.

2.8. Intangible assets
Measurement at recognition:

Intangible assets are recognized where it is probable that the future economic benefit attributable to the assets will
flow to the Group and its cost can be reliably measured. Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition less
accumulated amortization and impairment, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset�s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost can
be measured reliably.

Amortization

The Group amortizes intangible assets on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful life. The Group provides
pro-rata amortization from the day the asset is put to use.

Assets Useful Life

Computer Software 6 years

Operating Right* 3 years

* This contain insurance broking right and Portfolio management rights which is amortized over the period from the
date of IRDA and SEBI Certificate for providing Insurance Broking and Portfolio Management Services respectively,
which is the period over which it is estimated that benefits will flow to the Group.

Derecognition:

The carrying amount of an intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with
carrying amount and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

2.9. Investment Property

Investment Property are property held to earn rentals and for capital appreciation. Investment Property are
measured initially at cost including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured in accordance with Ind AS16�s requirements for cost model. An Investment property is derecognised
upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which property is derecognised.

2.10. Leases

The Group�s lease asset primarily consists of office premises which are of short-term lease with lease term of twelve
months or less and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Group recognizes the lease 
payments as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the term of lease.

2.11. Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Group or the counter party.



2.12. Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is any indication based on internal / external factors, that
an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.
The recoverable amount of asset is the higher of its fair value or value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated
future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current market
assessment of time value of money and the risks specific to it. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount and the reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. All assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an
impairment loss previously recognised may no longer exist. An Impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the
assets carrying amount would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, had no impairment loss
been recognised.

2.13. Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is
recognized as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

2.14. Employee benefits

(i) Short-term obligations

Short-term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the Statement of
Profit and Loss for the year in which the related services are rendered. The Group recognises the costs of
bonus payments when it has a present obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

(ii) Post-employment obligations

Defined contribution plan:

Contribution paid / payable to the recognised provident fund, which is a defined contribution scheme, is
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they occur.

Defined benefits plan:

Gratuity is post-employment benefit and is in the nature of defined benefit plan. The liability recognised in the
Balance Sheet in respect of gratuity is the present value of defined benefit obligation at the Balance Sheet date
together with the adjustments for unrecognised actuarial gain or losses and the past service costs. The defined
benefit obligation is calculated at or near the Balance Sheet date by an independent actuary using the
projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustment and the effects of
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the
balance sheet.



2.15. Foreign currency transactions and translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction.
Exchange differences arising on settlement of revenue transactions are recognised in the statement of profit and 
loss. Monetary assets and liabilities contracted in foreign currencies are restated at the rate of exchange ruling at the
Balance Sheet date. Non monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are 
translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction.

2.16. Dividends

Dividends paid (including income tax thereon, if any) is recognized in the period in which the interim dividends are
approved by the Board of Directors, or in respect of the final dividend when approved by shareholders.

2.17. Earnings per share

a) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the period (excluding other comprehensive
income) attributable to equity share holders of the Group by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus element in equity shares issued during the year.

b) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity sharehol-
ders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period as adjusted for the effects of all
diluted potential equity shares except where the results are anti-dilutive.

2.18. Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the
requirements.

2.19. Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the balance sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the 
reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the Consolidated financial statements. Otherwise
events after the balance sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.

2.20. Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or
loss is recognized in standalone statement of profit and loss immediately.

2.21. Investment in subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries are recognized at cost and is not adjusted to fair value at the end of each reporting period
as allowed by Ind AS 27 �Separate financial statement�. Cost of investment represents amount paid for acquisition of
the said investment and a proportionate recognition of the fair value of shares granted to employees of subsidiary
under a group share based payment arrangement.

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period, if there are any indications that the said investment may
be impaired. If so, the Company estimates the recoverable value/amount of the investment and provides for
impairment, if any i.e. the deficit in the recoverable value over cost.



2.22. Investment in associates

Associates are the entities over which the Group has significant influence. Investment in associates is accounted for
using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognized at cost.

NOTE 3: KEY ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of Consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions in the application of accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on ongoing basis. Any changes to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively. Information about critical
judgments in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates and assumptions that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the Consolidated financial statements are included in the following notes:

(a) Provision and contingent liability: On an ongoing basis, Group reviews pending cases, claims by third parties
and other contingencies. For contingent losses that are considered probable, an estimated loss is recorded as
an accrual in Consolidated financial statements. For Contingencies losses that are considered possible are not
provided for but disclosed as Contingent liabilities in the Consolidated financial statements. Contingencies the
likelihood of which is remote are not disclosed in the Consolidated financial statements. Gain contingencies 
are not recognized until the contingency has been resolved and amounts are received or receivable.

(b) Allowance for impairment of financial asset: Judgments are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue
and determining whether a provision against those is required. Factors considered include the aging of past
dues, value of collateral and any possible actions that can be taken to mitigate the risk of non-payment.

(c) Recognition of deferred tax assets: Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax-loss carry forwards,
deductible temporary differences and unused tax credits to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit
is probable. The assessment of the probability with regard to the realisation of the tax benefit involves
assumptions based on the history of the entity and budgeted data for the future.

(d) Defined benefit plans: The cost of defined benefit plans and the present value of the defined benefit obligations
are based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of
the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation
and its long � term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.

(e) Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets: Management reviews the estimated useful lives and
residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation and amortization to be
recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values as per schedule II of the Companies
Act, 2013 or are based on the Group�s historical experience with similar assets and taking into account
anticipated technological changes, whichever is more appropriate.

(f) Inventories: Inventories comprising of construction-work-in progress are valued at lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net Realisable value is based upon the estimates of the management. The effect of changes,
if any, to the estimates is recognised in the Consolidated financial statements for the period in which such
changes are determined.

(g) Satisfaction of performance obligation: Determination of revenue under the satisfaction of performance
obligation at a point in time method necessarily involves making estimates, some of which are of a technical
nature, concerning, where relevant, the timing of satisfaction of performance obligation, costs to completion,
the expected revenues from the project or activity and the foreseeable losses to completion. Estimates of
project income, as well as project costs, are reviewed periodically. The Group recognises revenue when the
Group satisfies its performance obligation.



Consolidated Notes Forming Part Of Financial Statement (` in Lacs)

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on hand 7.40 15.75
Balances with banks
In current accounts 2,024.42 2,397.99

Total 2,031.82 2,413.74

5. Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalent
Earmarked balances with bank towards Unclaimed dividend 27.77 24.52
Unspent CSR Bank Account 36.54 -
Fixed deposit with maturity for less than 12 months 34,803.82 34,489.68
Fixed deposit with maturity for more than 12 months 2,782.84 2,805.85
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 773.26 805.16

Total 38,424.22 38,125.21

Note:
* Fixed Deposit with bank includes Deposits under the lien of :
BSE Limited (ICCL) 24,567.00 26,762.00
National Commodity Exchange Limited & NCCL 740.00 740.00
Multi Commodity Exchange of India Limited & MCX-CCL 990.00 2,187.00
Over Draft facility 20.00 20.00
Bank for guarantees issued 11,087.50 7,339.00
Sales Tax Department 2.00 2.00
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (IRDA) - 10.00
Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority 20.00 20.00
NSE Commodity Derivatives 0.50
NSEIL 88.24

Total 37,515.24 37,080.00

*Fixed deposits are pledged with exchange and banks for meeting margin requirements and for obtaining bank guarantee
respectively.

6. Derivative Financial Instruments
(i) Equity linked derivatives - 4.47

Total - 4.47

Notional amounts - 1,639.30
Note : - The derivatives are used for the purpose of trading.

7. Securities for trade
Quoted Equity Shares

Adani Energy Solutions Limited
(1,000 (1,000) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 8.72 10.27
Adani Green Energy Limited
(1,000 (1,000) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 9.49 18.35
Adani Ports And Special Economic Zone Limited
(Nil (300) shares, face value of `2 each) - 4.03
Adani Total Gas Limited
(1000 (1,000) shares, face value of `1 each) 6.03 9.27



Consolidated Notes Forming Part Of Financial Statement (` in Lacs)

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Adani Wilmar Limited
(1,000 (1,000) shares, face value of `1 each) 2.58 3.21
Aditya Birla Capital Limited
(2,00,000 (NIL) shares, face value of `10 each) 370.14 -
Aditya Birla Real Estate Limited
(3000 (3,319) shares, face value of `10 each) 58.80 54.10
Aditya Birla Sun Life Amc Limited
( Nil (6,000) shares, face value of 5 each) - 27.30
Advik Capital Limited
(81,900 (30000) shares, face value of `1 each) - 0.01
Allied Digital Services Limited
(22,340 (Nil) shares, face value of `5 each) 42.14 -
Angel One Limited
(Nil (498 ) shares, face value of `10 each) - 15.16
Asian Energy Services Limited
(1,000 (1,000 ) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 2.69 2.71
Aster DM Healthcare Limited
(Nil (2,500 ) shares, face value of `10 each) - 10.23
B.R.Goyal Infrastructure Limited
(57,000 (Nil) shares, face value of `10 each) 61.67 -
Baazar Style Retail Limited
(5,000 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 5 each) 12.04 -
Balaji Phosphates Limited
(8,000 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 6.40 -
BEML Land Assets Limited
(Nil (5,000) shares, face value of ` 1 each) - 11.83
Bharat Dynamics Limited
(Nil (20,000) shares, face value of `5 each) - 350.38
Bharat Heavy Electricals Limited
(Nil (2,500) shares, face value of ` 2 each) - 6.18
Borosil Renewables Limited
(Nil (500) shares, face value of `1 each) - 2.49
Ceinsys Tech Limited
(1,280 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 17.44 -
Central Depository Services (India) Limited
(Nil (2,500) shares, face value of ` 1 each) - 42.80
City Union Bank Limited
(39,994 (Nil) shares, face value of `1 each) 62.86 -
Coal India Limited
(25000 (Nil) shares, face value of `10 each) 99.55 -
Cosmic Crf Limited
(600 (Nil) shares, face value of `10 each) 8.67 -
Cupid Limited
(Nil (700) shares, face value of `1 each) - 16.96
Deep Industries Limited
(Nil (1,000) shares, face value of ` 5 each) - 3.09
Diamond Power Infrastructure Limited
(46345 (Nil) shares, face value of `10 each) 41.49 -



Consolidated Notes Forming Part Of Financial Statement (` in Lacs)

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Doms Industries Limited
(Nil (200) shares, face value of `10 each) - 3.13
Easy Trip Planners Limited
(130 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 1 each) 0.02 -
Eris Lifesciences Limited
(200 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 1 each) 2.83 -
Ems Limited
(Nil (5,000) shares, face value of `2 each) - 20.12
Engineers India Limited
(Nil (1,200) shares, face value of `2 each) - 24.23
Exicom Tele-Systems Limited
(Nil (1,000) shares, face value of `2 each) - 1.97
Fineotex Chemical Limited
(Nil (343) shares, face value of ` 10 each) - 1.26
Fortis Healthcare Limited
(40,000 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 279.34 -
Fortune Financial Services (India) Limited
(Nil (1) shares, face value of ` 10 each) - -
GeeCee Ventures Limited
(30000 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 110.24 -
GMR Airports Limited
(10000 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 1 each) 7.57 -
Genus Power Infrastructures Limited
(Nil (3,772) shares, face value of ` 10 each) - 23.03
GLOBAL SURFACES LIMITED
(Nil (5000) shares, face value of `10 each) - 11.54
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited
(Nil (1,000) shares, face value of ` 5 each) - 119.98
Gujarat Narmada Valley Fertilizers & Chemicals Limited
(9,100 (2,50,000) shares, face value of ` 1 each) 45.18 12.70
Gujarat State Fertilizers & Chemicals Limited
(Nil (50) shares, face value of `2 each) - 0.10
Gulf Oil Lubricants India Limited
(500 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 2 each) 5.73 -
HCL INFOSYSTEMS LTD(Nil
(5,00,000) shares, face value of `10 each) - 8.45
Hero MotoCorp Limited
(10000 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 2 each) 372.30 -
Hemisphere Properties India Limited
(Nil (4,010) shares, face value of ` 10 each) - 1.80
HFCL Limited
(Nil (10,000 ) shares, face value of ` 1 each) - 9.18
Hindustan Construction Company Limited
(Nil (3,855 ) shares, face value of `1 each) - 0.36
HPL Electric & Power Limited
(Nil (1,135) shares, face value of ` 5 each) - 3.59
IDBI Bank Limited
(500 (Nil ) shares, face value of `10 each) 0.39 -



Consolidated Notes Forming Part Of Financial Statement (` in Lacs)

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

India Cements Limited
(738 (Nil ) shares, face value of `10 each) 2.04 -
IFCI Limited
(Nil (27,776 ) shares, face value of ` 10 each) - 11.01
IIFL Fiinance Limited
(Nil (5,000) shares, face value of ` 2 each) - 17.01
India Tourism Development Corporation Limited
(Nil (3,000 ) shares, face value of `10 each) - 9.56
Indiamart Intermesh Limited
(199 (200) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 4.12 5.29
ITD Cementation India Limited
(1000 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 1 each) 5.57 -
Indo Count Industries Limited
(Nil (1,000 ) shares, face value of `2 each) - 3.54
Infibeam Avenues Limited
(Nil (10,000) shares, face value of `1 each) - 3.41
Inox Wind Limited
(Nil (15,000) shares, face value of `10 each) - 78.24
International Travel House Limited
(Nil (2,000 ) shares, face value of `10 each) - 11.97
IRB Infrastructure Developers Limited
(Nil (55,000) shares, face value of `1 each) - 14.64
ITI Limited
(Nil (800) shares, face value of `10 each) - 2.02
Jai Corp Limited
(Nil (5,000 ) shares, face value of `1 each) - 14.14
Jaiprakash Associates
(Nil (1,00,000) shares, face value of `2 each) - 17.95
Jash Engineering Limited
(5001 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 2 each) 29.04 -
Jindal Poly Films Limited
(Nil (1,314) shares, face value of ` 10 each) - 5.96
Jio Financial Services Limited
(101000 (5000) shares, face value of `10 Each) 229.79 17.69
JK Paper Limited
(7000 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 10 Each) 21.86 -
JSW Infrastructure Limited
(Nil (1,500) shares, face value of `2 Each) - 3.68
Jupiter Wagons Limited
(5,000 (Nil) shares, face value of `10 Each) 18.46 -
Jyoti CNC Automation Limited
(Nil (5,000 ) shares, face value of `2 Each) - 41.07
K.P. Energy Limited
(3119 (Nil ) shares, face value of `5 Each) 11.56 -
Life Insurance Corporation of India Limited
( 500(42,500) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 4.00 389.36
LIC Housing Finance Limited
(25000 (Nil) shares, face value of `2 each) 140.96 -



Consolidated Notes Forming Part Of Financial Statement (` in Lacs)

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Lux Industries Limited
(500 (500) shares, face value of `2 each) 6.88 5.37
Mahalaxmi Rubtech Ltd
(Nil (5,995) shares, face value of `10 each) - 17.45
Mangalam Cement Limited
(Nil (15,000) shares, face value of ` 10 each) - 109.65
MMTC Limited
(Nil (10,951) shares, face value of ` 1 each) - 7.28
Mohini Health & Hygiene Limited
(207000 (22,500) shares, face value of `10 each) 124.41 11.88
Motilal Oswal Financial Services Limited
(70000 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 1 each) 430.75 -
Motisons Jewellers Ltd
(Nil (33,000) shares, face value of ` 10 each) - 52.82
Multi Commodity Exchange of India Limited
(3000 (Nil) shares, face value of `10 each) 159.35 -
Network 18 Media & Investments Limited
(50000 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 5 each) 21.71 -
Network People Services Technologies Limited
(2,900 (Nil) shares, face value of `10 each) 69.32 -
NLC India Limited
(Nil (4,957) shares, face value of `10 each) - 11.31
One 97 Communications Limited
(1000 (Nil) shares, face value of `1 each) 7.83 -
Orchid Pharma Limited
(1000 (Nil) shares, face value of `10 each) 7.76 -
Organic Recycling Systems Limited
(80,400 (141,000) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 207.59 296.45
Orient Cement Limited
(Nil (10,000) shares, face value of `1 each) - 19.58
Paramount Communicat Limited
(Nil (60,000) shares, face value of `10 each) - 40.23
Patanjali Foods Limited
(1,200 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 2 each) 21.70 -
Patel Engineering Limited
(Nil (25,000) shares, face value of `1 each) - 14.23
Poonawalla Fincorp Limited
(Nil (30,000) shares, face value of `2 each) - 139.68
Protean eGov Technologies Limited
(17,000 (500) shares, face value of `10 each) 227.94 5.03
Ramkrishna Forgings Limited
(Nil (250) shares, face value of ` 2 each) - 1.73
Rattanindia Enterprises Limited
(10,000 (Nil) shares, face value of `2 each) 4.11 -
RBZ Jewellers Limited
(16,000 (Nil) shares, face value of `10 each) 21.80 -
Reliance Infrastructure Limited
(7000 (Nil) shares, face value of `10 each) 18.10 -



Consolidated Notes Forming Part Of Financial Statement (` in Lacs)

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Reliance Power Limited
(1,15,000 (3,40,000) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 49.43 96.05
Repco Home Finance Limited
( 7,120 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 23.86 -
Rico Auto Industries Limited.
(Nil (5,000) shares, face value of ` 1 each) - 7.26
Rites Limited.
(3,500 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 7.82 -
Royal Orchid Hotels Limited
(Nil (1,000) shares, face value of ` 10 each) - 3.61
Sabar Flex India Limited
(10,000 (10,000) shares, face value of `10 each) 0.73 1.98
Salzer Electronics Limited
(800 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 8.62 -
SEAMEC Limited
(500 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 4.88 -
SG Mart Limited
(1,000 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 1 each) 3.23 -
Shakti Pumps India Limited
(958 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 9.39 -
Shilchar Technologies Limited
(150 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 7.91 -
Shipping Corporation of India Limited.
(2990 (30,766) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 4.94 64.24
Shivalik Bimetal Controls Limited
(6000 (Nil) shares, face value of `2 each) 27.72 -
Shriram Finance Limited
(Nil (1,806) shares, face value of ` 10 each) - 42.62
Shriram Pistons & Rings Limited
(1000 (3000) shares, face value of `10 each) 18.89 58.82
Shubhshree Biofuels Energy Limited
(60,000 (NIl) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 181.38 -
Sun Pharma Advanced Research Company Limited
(3000 (NIl) shares, face value of `1 each) 4.44 -
SMC Global Securities Limited
(Nil (20,000) shares, face value of `2 each) - 24.97
Steel Authority of India Limited
(Nil (9,500) shares, face value of ` 10 each) - 33.56
Sterling and Wilson Renewable Energy Limited
(Nil (25,000) shares, face value of `1 each) - 78.49
Suzlon Energy Limited
(50000 (55,000) shares, face value of `2 each) 28.33 22.22
Tata Consultancy Services Limited
(1,113 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 1 each) 40.64 -
Tata Motors - DVR Limited
(Nil (18,000) shares, face value of `2 each) - 118.30
Tata Technologies Limited
(1,000 (1,000) shares, face value of ` 2 each) 6.80 10.21



Consolidated Notes Forming Part Of Financial Statement (` in Lacs)

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Tata Teleservices (Maharashtra) Limited
(27,205 (17,934) shares, face value of `10 each) 15.31 12.87
Titan Company Limited
(Nil (175) shares, face value of ` 1 each) - 6.65
The Investment Trust Of India Limited
(1 (Nil) shares, face value of `10 each) - -
Transformers and Rectifiers (India) Limited
(9,600 (Nil) shares, face value of `1 each) 51.48 -
TV18 Broadcast Limited
(Nil (1,77,507) shares, face value of ` 2 each) - 82.36
Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
(500 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 0.11 -
Valor Estate Limited
(Nil (1,500) shares, face value of `10 each) - 2.95
Vedanta Limited
(25,000 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 1 each) 115.85 -
Vilas Transcore Limited
(12,000 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 38.82 -
Vishal Mega Mart Limited
(1 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 10 each) - -
V-Guard Industries Limited.
(Nil (399) shares, face value of ` 1 each) - 1.32
Vodafone Idea Limited
(50,000 (2,00,000) shares, face value of `10 each) 3.40 26.50
Waaree Energies Limited
(2000 (Nil) shares, face value of `10 each) 48.09 -
Waaree Renewable Technologies Ltd
(600 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 2 each) 5.45 -
Welspun Specialty Solutions Limited
(65,000 (65,000) shares, face value of `6 each) 17.30 20.42
Whirlpool of India Limited
(60,000 (Nil) shares, face value of `10 each) 593.94 -
Worth Peripherals Limited
(1,32,855 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 198.86 -
Wockhardt Limited
(Nil (10,000) shares, face value of `5 each) - 58.57
Xpro India Limited
(Nil (4,010) shares, face value of ` 10 each) - 44.81
Yes Bank Limited
(Nil (90,020) shares, face value of `2 each) - 20.88
Zen Technologies Limited
(Nil (4,000) shares, face value of ` 1 each) - 38.26
Zomato Limited
(Nil (10,000) shares, face value of `1 each) - 18.21

Total 4,948.56 3,105.16



Consolidated Notes Forming Part Of Financial Statement (` in Lacs)

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

8. Trade Receivables

Considered good- Secured 9,514.85 9,131.44
Considered good - Unsecured 158.44 505.93
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Trade Receivables - Credit impaired - -

Total (Gross) 9,673.29 9,637.37

Less: Impairment loss allowance - -

Total (Net) 9,673.29 9,637.37

Out of which:
Due from Directors Nil Nil
Due from a firm including LLP's and Private Limited Company in which
a Director of the Company is a Partner or a Director respectively Nil Nil
*For Ageing of Trade Receivable Refer Note No. 50.

9. Loans
[A] Loans measured at Amortised Cost

Margin trading facility 12,972.71 17,446.95
Loans to related parties - (731.61)
Loans repayable on demand 3,097.75 2,462.88

Total (Gross) 16,070.46 19,178.22

Less: Impairment loss allowance (9.74) (6.16)

Total (Net) 16,060.72 19,172.06

[B] i) Secured by tangible assets 15,663.95 19,624.68
ii) Unsecured 406.51 (446.46)

Total (Gross) 16,070.46 19,178.22

Less: Impairment loss allowance (9.74) (6.16)

Total (Net) 16,060.72 19,172.06

[C] Loans in India
i) Public Sector
ii) Others 16,070.46 19,178.22

Total (Gross) 16,070.46 19,178.22

Less: Impairment loss allowance (9.74) (6.16)

Total (Net) 16,060.72 19,172.06

Stage wise break up of loans -

Low credit risk (Stage 1) 16,070.46 19,178.22
Significant increase in credit risk (Stage 2) - -
Credit impaired (Stage 3) - -

Total 16,070.46 19,178.22



Consolidated Notes Forming Part Of Financial Statement (` in Lacs)

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

10. Investments

(A) Equity Instruments

- At Fair Value though Profit or Loss

1. Investment in Quoted shares

Century Textiles and Industries Limited
(6,681 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 10 each) - 108.89
Jainam Ferro Alloys Limited
(17000 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 10 each) - 21.39
Jash Engineering Limited
(2297 (Nil) shares, face value of `2 each) - 38.92
Poonawalla Fincorp Limited
(21,189 (31,000) shares, face value of ` 2 each) - 98.66
Sepc Limited
(22223 (Nil) shares, face value of ` 1 each) - 3.70
Xpro India Limited
(9778 (Nil) shares, face value of `2 each) - 109.25

Sub-Total (1) - 380.81

2. Investment in Unquoted shares
Das Offshore Limited
(2,054 (2,054) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 250.00 250.00
HDB Financial Services Limited
(5,320 (5,320) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 54.53 50.27
Jai Mata Engineering Limited Eq
(25,000 (Nil) shares, face value of `1 each) 25.00 -
Limelight Lab Grown Diamonds Limited
(3,75,000 (Nil) shares, face value of `1 each) 75.00 -
National Stock Exchange Limited
(NSE) (8,000 (7,500) shares, face value of ` 1 each) 775.50 257.94
National Services Depository Limited
(21,500 (Nil) shares, face value of `1 each) 236.50 -
Saurashtra Kutch Stock Exchange Limited
(1 (1) shares, face value of ` 5,000 each) 5.05 5.05
Saraswat Co-Operative Bank Limited
(500 (500) shares, face value of `10 each) 0.05 0.05
Sai Parental Pharma
(1,28,570(Nil) shares, face value of ` 10 each) 90.00 -

Sub-Total (2) 1,511.63 563.31

3. Investment in Debt Securities
Shaurrya Teleservices Private Limited
(25 (Nil) Bonds, face value of `1,00,000 each) Investment in
13% Unsecured Compulsory Convertible Debentures (CCDs) 25.00 -

Sub-Total (3) 25.00 -



Consolidated Notes Forming Part Of Financial Statement (` in Lacs)

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

- As per equity method

4. Investment in Associate

Electrum Capital Private Limited
(13,75,000 (13,75,000) shares, face value of `10 each) 837.99 518.66

Sub-Total (4) 837.99 518.66

Total 2,349.62 1,462.78

i) Investments in India 2,349.62 1,462.78
ii) Investments outside India - -

Total 2,349.62 1,462.78

11. Other Financial Assets

Deposits with Exchanges / Depositories 1,359.81 1,405.63
Deposit with Related parties (Refer Note No. 47) 38.63 38.88
Other Deposits 47.02 29.10
Other Advances 168.11 332.13

Total 1,613.57 1,805.74

12. Current tax Assets (net)

Advance Income Tax Receivable (Net of Provision for Tax) 0.16 0.05

Total 0.16 0.05

13. Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred Tax Assets (Refer Note No. 41) 6.92 6.54

Total 6.92 6.54
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Consolidated Notes Forming Part Of Financial Statement (` in Lacs)

Particulars 31 March 2025 March 31, 2024

16. Other Non Financial Assets
Employee Advance 12.07 4.76
Prepaid Expenses 237.28 248.87
Tax Receivables (IT Department) 119.78 126.27
GST Receivables 115.15 373.18
Other Advances 206.84 74.52

Total 691.12 827.60

17. Derivative Financial Instruments
(i) Equity linked derivatives 210 -

Total 210 -

18. Trade Payables

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (Refer Note No. 44) 61.13 164.89
Other than Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 26,818.41 30,241.98

Total 26,879.54 30,406.87

*For Ageing of Trade Payable Refer Note No. 51.

19. Debt securities
Secured Debt Securities
Redeemable non-convertible debenture 1 year @ 9.5% - 1,932.00
Redeemable non-convertible debenture 3 year @10% 2,393.00 2,393.00

Total 2,393.00 4,325.00

i) Debt securities in India 2,393.00 -
ii) Debt securities outside India - -

Total 2,393.00 -

Terms of repayment:
The aforesaid Redeemable non-convertible debenture are repayable on maturity and the tenure is 12 to 36 months in
FY 2023-24, but in FY 2024-25 the oustanding debentures are repayable in 36 months from date of issuance.

Details of Assets pledged as security
The Unlisted Redeemable non-convertible debentures are secured by way of pari passu charge on the secured debtors
of the company, with a security coverage of 1.2 times the value of the secured debtors.

20. Borrowings
[A] Loans repayable on demand

- Amortised Cost
i) from Banks and Financial Institutions 5,341.52 4,554.52
ii) from Related Parties (Refer Note No. 47) 1,550.00 669.39
iii) from others 282.60 378.82

Total 7,174.12 5,602.73
[B]

i) Borrowings in India 7,174.12 5,602.74
ii) Borrowings outside India - -

Total 7,174.12 5,602.74



Consolidated Notes Forming Part Of Financial Statement (` in Lacs)

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

[C]
i) Secured * 5,341.52 3,921.19
ii) Unsecured 1,832.60 1,681.55

Total 7,174.12 5,602.74

*Secured against pledge of securities, trade receivables and immovable property.

*Details of Assets pledged as security

1. The Company availed overdraft facility from ICICI Bank amounting to ` 2,000 Lacs. Outstanding book balance of
overdraft is `0.00 Lacs (March 31, 2024: ` 11.20 Lacs ). The facility was closed in June 2024.

The aforesaid overdraft is secured by way of first charge on trade receivables of the company.

2. The Company availed overdraft facility from Axis Bank amounting to ` 6,000 Lacs. Outstanding book balance of
overdraft is `0.00 Lacs (March 31, 2024: `2100.08 Lacs).

The aforesaid overdraft is secured by way of first charge on trade receivables of the company.

3. The Company availed loan against property from ICICI Bank amounting to `720 Lacs. Outstanding book balance
of loan is ` 0.00 Lacs (March 31, 2024: `299.81 Lacs).

The aforesaid loan is secured by way of first charge by way of equitable mortgage of building situated at 1011,
Solitaire Corporate Park, Building No.10, 1st Floor, Andheri Ghatkopar Link Road Chakala Andheri (EAST)
Mumbai in the name of the company.

4. The Company availed overdraft facility from IDFC FIRST Bank amounting to ` 5000 Lacs. Outstanding book
balance of overdraft is `1401.45 Lacs (March 31, 2024: ` 1510.09 Lacs )

The aforesaid loan is secured by way of charge on Trade receivables of the company.

5. The Compnay availed Term loan from Piramal Enterprises Limited amounting to ` 5000.00 Lacs. Outstanding book
balance of Term Loan is ` 1260.49 Lacs

The aforesaid loan is secured by way of charge on MTF receivables of the company.

6. The Company availed Term loan from Tata Capital Limited amounting to ` 500.00 Lacs. Outstanding book balance
of Term Loan is ` 168.09 Lacs. The Company availed Working Capital Loan from Tata Capital Limited amounting
to ` 1500.00 Lacs.Outstanding book balance of Working Capital Loan is `1501.58 Lacs.

The aforesaid overdraft is secured by way of first charge on MTF receivables of the company.

7. The Company availed Commercial Property Loan of ` 700 Lacs from HDFC Bank .Outstanding book balance of
Loan is `644.39 Lacs.

The Aforesaid Loan Is Secured By Way Of First Charge By Way Of Equitable Mortgage Of Building Situated At 901
Solitaite Corporate Park Building No. 9 Chakala Andheri (East) Mumbai 400093 In The Name Of The Company.

21. Other Financial Liabilities

Employee Benefits Payable 359.24 634.38
Franchise Deposit 1,260.93 772.80
Other Deposit 12.78 184.33
Expenses Payable 277.64 128.11
Other Payable (includes payable to vendors) 495.42 2,486.05
Unclaimed Dividend* 27.77 24.52

Total 2,433.78 4,230.19

*Out of the above amount, the company is required to credit a sum of ` 3.09 Lacs lying in the unclaimed dividend
account, on or before 15th October, 2025 to the Investor Education & Protection Fund pursuant to Sub -section (1)
of Section 125 of The Companies Act, 2013.



Consolidated Notes Forming Part Of Financial Statement (` in Lacs)

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

22. Current Tax Liabilities (net)

Income tax payable (Net of Advance Tax & TDS)  81.27  206.19

Total  81.27  206.19 

23. Provisions

Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note No. 46)  322.66  263.85 

Total  322.66  263.85 

24. Deferred Tax Liabilities (net)

Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) (Refer Note No. 41)  147.56  68.43 

Total  147.56  68.43 

25. Other Non Financial Liabilities

Statutory Dues Payable  603.04  692.75 

Total  603.04  692.75 

26. Share Capital

Authorised

12,50,00,000 equity share of ` 1/- each (12,50,00,000 of ` 1/- each)  1,250.00  1,250.00 

Issued, Subscribed & Paid up
10,41,12,800 equity share of ` 1/- each  (10,41,12,800 of ` 1/- each)  1,041.13  1,041.13 

Total  1,041.13  1,041.13 

a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Equity Shares of face value `1/-

Share outstanding at the beginning of the period  10,41,12,800  2,08,22,560 

Share outstanding at the end of period  10,41,12,800  10,41,12,800 

b. Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 1 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one
vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of
liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution
of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

c. List of the Shareholders holding more than 5% of the total number of shares issued by the company

Name of the shareholders

Ashok Kumar Jain 33,531,680 (32.21%) 33,531,680 (32.21%)

Kiran Jain 23,641,600 (22.71%) 23,641,600 (22.71%)

Sunil Kumar Jain 5,353,280 (5.14%) 5,353,280 (5.14%)

Arpit Jain 5,739,200 (5.51%) 5,739,200 (5.51%)
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d. Shareholding of Promoter
For the year ended March 31, 2025

                       Shares held by promotes at the end of the Year % Change during 
S.No. Promoter�s Name No. of Shares % of total shares the Year

1 Ashok Kumar Jain  3,35,31,680  32.21  -
2 Kiran Jain  2,36,41,600  22.71  -
3 Sunil Kumar Jain  53,53,280  5.14  -
4 Arpit Jain  57,39,200  5.51  -
5 Swati Jain  -  -
6 Shruti Jain  31,10,400  2.99  -
7 Ratik Jain  9,60,000  0.92  -
8 Kamal Kumar Jain (HUF)  -  -
9 Anvita Jain  1,92,000  0.18  -
10 Meena Jain  1,52,000  0.15  -
11 Kamal Kumar Jain  -  -

Total  7,26,80,160  69.81  -

For the year ended March 31, 2024

                       Shares held by promotes at the end of the Year % Change during 
S. No. Promoter�s Name No. of Shares % of total shares the Year

1 Ashok Kumar Jain  3,35,31,680  32.21  -
2 Kiran Jain  2,36,41,600  22.71  -
3 Sunil Kumar Jain  53,53,280  5.14  -
4 Arpit Jain  57,39,200  5.51  -
5 Swati Jain  -  (3.95)
6 Shruti Jain  31,10,400  2.99  -
7 Ratik Jain  9,60,000  0.92  -
8 Kamal Kumar Jain (HUF)  -  (0.25)
9 Anvita Jain  1,92,000  0.18  -
10 Meena Jain  1,52,000  0.15  -
11 Kamal Kumar Jain  -  (0.12)

Total  7,26,80,160  69.81  (4.31)

(` in Lacs)

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

27. Other Equity

General Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 28,949.22 22,949.22
Transfer from Retained Earnings 6,000.00 6,000.00

Balance as at end of the year 34,949.22 28,949.22

Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year 2,004.02 1,435.81
Transfer from Statement of Profit and Loss 5,870.28 7,051.04
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plan (Net of Taxes) (16.49) (40.90)
Final Dividend (520.56) (416.45)
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Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Transfer to Statutory Reserve (46.93) (25.49)

Transfer to General Reserve (6,000.00) (6,000.00)

Balance as at end of the year 1,290.32 2,004.01

Consolidated Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 35.15 35.15

Balance as at end of the year 35.15 35.15

Statutory Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 194.32 168.83

Transfer from Retained Earnings 46.93 25.49

Balance as at end of the year 241.25 194.32

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 28.61 26.72

Transfer from Statement of Profit and Loss 3.58 1.89

Balance as at end of the year 32.19 28.61

Total 36,548.13 31,211.31

Application Money Received against Share Warrants

5000000 equity Shares of Rs. 1/- each (50,00,000 of Rs. 68.50/- each) 3,425.00 0.00

Amount Received 25% Against Total amount of Warrants 856.25 0.00

856.25 0.00

General Reserve

General reserve represents appropriation of surplus in the profit and loss account and is available for distribution
to shareholders as dividend.

Retained Earnings

Surplus in profit or loss account (Retained Earnings) represents surplus/accumulated profit of the company and
is available for distribution to shareholders as dividend.

Consolidated Reserve

Consolidated reserve is the excess of net assets taken over cost of consideration paid.

Statutory Reserve

Reserve fund is created as per the terms of section 45-IC(1) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as a statutory
reserve as 20% of the profit after tax.

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

Foreign currency translation reserve is created out of Exchange differences in translating the financial
statements having functional currency different from Group functional currency.
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Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

28. Interest Income
On financial assets measured at amortised cost-
Interest on loans  444.80  333.53 
Interest on deposits with banks  2,704.61  1,852.00 
Interest on Margin deposit with exchange  -  58.97 
Interest on Margin funding and delayed payment  5,325.09  4,462.39 

Total  8,474.50  6,706.89 

29. Dividend Income
From Securities  39.65  45.99 

Total  39.65  45.99 

30. Fees and commission income
Commission Received (Net)  549.91  396.77 
Brokerage  12,481.33  10,765.70 
Depository Receipts  416.32  420.74 
Income from Education Fees  -  4.16 
Insurance Commission  14.86  33.15 
Fees From Merchant Banking  462.97  495.45 

Total  13,925.39  12,115.97 

31. Net Gain on fair value changes
(A) Net gain / (loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
      (i) Profit/(loss) on sale of derivatives held for trade (net)  (119.01)  1,279.52 
      (ii) Profit/(loss) on securities held for trade  1,956.19  2,932.16 

(B) Others
      - Profit/(loss) on sale of investments (net) at fair value through profit or loss  454.98  433.83 

Total  2,292.16  4,645.51 

Fair value changes
Realised gain  1,916.89  4,521.69 
Unrealised gain  375.28  123.82 

Total  2,292.17  4,645.51 

32. Other Income
Bad debts recovered  -  12.40 
Income from Rent  0.79  6.30 
Interest on Income tax refund  0.01  -
Miscellaneous income  68.58  27.51 

Total  69.38  46.21 

33. Finance Costs
On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost-
Interest on Borrowings  1,073.87  632.36 
Interest on NCD  341.86  174.41 
Interest paid on Deposit  571.98  441.06 
Other Interest expenses  3.43  9.06 

Total  1,991.14  1,256.89 
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Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

34. Fees and Commission Expense
Sub Brokerage/Referral Fees  6,293.41  5,651.53 
Depository charges  107.60  141.07 
Exchange Transaction Charges  1,044.32  963.05 
Merchant Banking Expenses  150.94  91.69 

Total  7,596.26  6,847.34 

35. Impairment on financial instruments
On Financial Assets measured at amortised cost-
Trade Receivables  -  -
Loans  3.59  (0.26)
Bad Debts written off  -  11.56 

Total  3.59  11.30 

36. Employee Benefits Expenses (Includes Managerial Remuneration)
Salaries, wages and bonus  3,944.96  3,094.69 
Contribution to provident and other fund (Refer Note No. 46)  49.53  39.99 
Gratuity expense (Refer Note No. 46)  40.13  28.72 
Staff welfare expenses  44.23  37.52 

Total  4,078.86  3,200.92 

37. Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation on Property, plant & equipment  250.20  186.28 
Amortisation on other intangible assets  53.34  54.28 
Total  303.54  240.56 

38. Other Expenses
Advertisement  21.15  11.20 
Auditors� Remuneration (Refer Note No. 39)  15.89  14.26 
Bank Charges  198.45  164.96 
Books & Periodicals  -  0.05 
Business Development  434.50  286.56 
Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer Note No. 63)  118.88  91.47 
Communication Costs  275.67  190.49 
Commission  -  15.91 
Diwali Expenses  -  0.03 
Electricity  63.69  59.61 
Exchange Charges  3.20  -
Foreign Exchange Loss (Net)  0.08  0.02 
Insurance  12.04  12.35 
Legal and Professional  890.89  779.28 
Membership Fee & Subscription  24.55  24.98 
Miscellaneous Expenses  129.25  112.42 
Office Expenses  49.89  47.69 
Professional Tax  0.03  0.03 
Rent  182.03  170.50 
Repairs & Maintenance  169.78  117.29 
Software Maintenance  974.32  677.39 
Stationery & Printing  26.51  31.80 
Travel & Conveyance  157.48  136.81 

Total  3,748.27  2,945.10 
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Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

39. Remuneration To Auditors (Exclusive of Taxes)
Statutory audit  12.85  10.52 
Tax audit  1.00  1.00 
Limited review  0.90  0.90 
Other services  1.14  1.84 

Total  15.89  14.26 

40. Exceptional Item
Share of Profit / (Loss) of Associates (Net of Tax)  319.33  210.28 
Gain on Disposal of Investments (Net) (Refer Note No. 48) 
- In Subsidiaries Carried at Cost  -  0.82 
Profit on sale of subsidiaries (Refer Note No. 48)  329.90 

Total  649.23  211.10 

41. Tax Expense
A. The major components of income tax expense for the year are as under

(A) Current tax expense
        Current tax for the year  1,723.53  2,291.63 
        Tax adjustment in respect of earlier years  50.32  (37.88)

Total current tax expense (A)  1,773.85  2,253.75 

(B) Deferred tax expense
        Change in deferred tax  84.52  (35.22)

Net deferred tax expense (B)  84.52  (35.22)

Total (A+B)  1,858.37  2,218.53 

B. Reconciliation of tax expenses and the accounting profit for the year is as under
Profit / (loss) before income tax expense  7,079.41  9,058.47 

Tax at the rate of 25.17%  1,781.75  2,279.84 
Difference due to :
Tax effect of expense allowed on payment basis  5.58  15.01 
Tax on expense not tax deductible  30.82  22.95 
Tax adjustment relating to fair valuation of equity instrument  (109.04)  (112.42)
Tax impact of Expense Deductible for tax purpose  -  -
Tax effect of Impairment Loss  -  -
Tax impact of Carried forward losses  0.71  (0.05)
Tax effect of different depreciation  (30.44)  (6.98)
Tax effect on chapter VI  (9.51)  (14.00)
Tax effect of Ind AS adjustment  0.44  (0.01)
Tax adjustment of previous years  50.32  (37.88)
Tax on income exempt from tax  -  -
Tax on income taxable at different rate  52.16  103.37 
Others  1.06  1.28 
Impairment on subsidiaries  -  0.04 
Associate Dividend  -  -

Current tax expense (A)  1,773.85  2,251.15 

Change in deferred tax liabilities  84.68  (34.86)
Change in deferred tax assets  (0.16)  (0.36)

Deferred tax expense (B)  84.52  (35.22)

Total Tax Expense (A+B)  1,858.37  2,215.93 

Effective Tax Rate 26.25% 24.46%
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Movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities (` in Lacs)

Particulars As at April 1, Credit/ Recognised Disposal of As at March
2024 (Charge) in in OCI Subsidiaries 31, 2025

Profit or Loss

Timing difference on Property, plant and
equipment as per books and Income Tax Act, 1961 111.56 (30.68) - 0.22 142.01
Processing Fee 0.69 0.44 - - 0.25
Fair valuation of Equity Instruments as per Ind AS 24.97 (64.24) - - 89.21
Expenses allowable u/s. 43B on payment basis

-Gratuity (66.41) 9.25 5.55 - (81.21)
-Bonus - - - - -

Loss carried forward (8.94) 0.71 - - (9.64)

Net deferred tax (asset) / liabilities 61.87 (84.52) 5.55 0.22 140.62

(` in Lacs)

Particulars As at April 1, Credit/ Recognised Disposal of As at March
2023 (Charge) in in OCI Subsidiaries 31, 2024

Profit or Loss

Timing difference on Property, plant and equipment
as per books and Income Tax Act, 1961 104.47 (7.09) - - 111.56
Fair valuation of Securities for trade as per Ind AS - - - - -
Processing Fee 0.68 (0.01) - - 0.69
Fair valuation of Equity Instruments as per Ind AS 66.09 41.12 - - 24.98
Expenses allowable u/s. 43B on payment basis

-Gratuity (49.25) 3.40 13.76 - (66.41)
-Bonus (2.14) (2.14) - - (0.01)

Loss carried forward (8.98) (0.05) - 0.01 (8.94)
Impairment of Trade Receivable - - - - -

Net deferred tax (asset) / liabilities 110.87 35.23 13.76 0.01 61.87

(` in Lacs)

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Net deferred tax (assets) / liabilities
Amounts presented in the consolidated balance sheet
Deferred tax assets (6.92) (6.54)
Deferred tax liabilities 147.56 68.43

42. Earnings Per Equity Share
A) Profit attributable to Equity holders of Company

Profit attributable to equity holders 5,870.28 7,051.04
B) Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Number of shares at the beginning of the year 10,41,12,800 10,41,12,800

Weighted average number of shares at the end of the year 10,41,12,800 10,41,12,800

C) Face value per share 1.00 1.00
D) Basic and Diluted earningsper share 5.64 6.77
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Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

43A.Contingent Liability and Commitment (to the extent not provided for)
Contingent liabilities:
Bank Guarantees given* 21,373.75 14,673.75
Demand in respect of income tax matters for which appeal is pending 101.15 101.15
Contingent Liabilities in respect of brokerage earned in relation to trade
in NSEL products. 77.57 77.57
Capital commitments:
There are no Capital commitment as at the year end.

* Bank Guarantees details
1. ICCL Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd

(under mandatory rules for membership) 148.75 148.75
2. ICCL Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd (towards additional margin) 21,175.00 14,450.00
3. National Securities Clearing Corporation Ltd (under mandatory
rules for membership)* 50.00 75.00

43B. Arihant Futures and Commodities Limited (AFCL) was a member of National Spot Exchange Limited (NSEL) till
2013. NSEL had defaulted in its settlement obligations to investors including pay-out of Rs. 4826.08 lacs to
AFCL�s Clients who traded on the Exchange Platform till July 2013. The matter has been under investigation by
EOW, ED, SEBI, SFIO as well as other investigating authorities/Courts and is currently pending before such
authorities/courts. Further Rs. 77.57 lacs towards brokerage earned in relation to trade in NSEL products has
been attached under PMLA Act 2002.

44. Due to Micro, Small, & Medium Enterprises
The Group has sent letters to vendors to confirm whether they are covered under Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprise Development Act 2006 as well as they have filed required memorandum with prescribed authority.
Based on and to the extent of the information received by the Group from the suppliers regarding their status under
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act), the relevant particulars as at the
year end are furnished below:

(` in Lacs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

The Principal amount remaining unpaid at the year end 61.13 164.89
The Interest amount remaining unpaid at the year end - -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006
along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond
the appointed day during each accounting year - -

The amount of interest due and payable for the year (where the principal
has been paid but interest under the MSMED Act, 2006 not paid) - -
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the year end - -
The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding
year, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually
paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section 23 - -

The balance of MSMED parties as at the year end 61.13 164.89
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45. Revenue from Contract with customers
The Group derives revenue primarily from the broking and related business. Its other major revenue sources is
Interest income.

A. Disaggregate revenue information
The table below presents disaggregate revenues from contracts with customers for the year ended March 31, 2025
and March 31, 2024. The Group believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by market and other economic factors.

(` in Lacs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Broking & Related Income 13,925.38 12,111.81
Interest Income 8,474.50 6,706.89
Gain on Fair Value Changes(AFCL) 62.87 247.42

Total 22,462.75 19,066.12

B. Nature and timing of satisfaction of the performance obligation
1. Broking & Related Income - Income from services rendered as a broker is recognised upon rendering of the

services. Commissions from distribution of financial products are recognised upon allotment of the securities to the
applicant or as the case may be, on issue of the insurance policy to the applicant. Fees for subscription based
services are received periodically but are recognised as earned on a pro-rata basis over the term of the contract,
and are over the period in nature. Income from services rendered on behalf of depository is recognised upon
rendering of the services, in accordance with the terms of contract.The Company provides underwriting the
issuance of securities services to companies to raise capital through the IPO and FPO process, from initial
planning to final listing on the stock exchange. Income is recognised as revenue upon rendering of the services, in
accordance with the terms of agreement with customer.

2. Interest Income - Interest is earned on delayed payments from clients and amounts funded to them as well as on
loans and term deposit with bank. Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the
amount outstanding from customers or on the financial instrument and the rate applicable.

3. Gain on fair value changes - The Company earns gain on fair value change through trading in shares and
derivatives. There is only one performance obligation of execution of the trade and settlement of the transaction
which is satisfied at a point in time. Gain loss on fair value changes is recognised as revenue on settlement date
basis.

46. Employee benefits
A. The Group contributes to the following post-employment defined benefit plans

(i) Defined Contribution Plans:
The Group makes contributions towards Provident Fund and Employees State Insurance Fund to a defined
contribution retirement benefit plan for qualifying employees. Under the plan, the Group is required to contribute
a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit plan to fund the benefits. The contributions payable
to these plans by the Group are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
The Company recognised ` 44.03 Lacs (Previous Year ` 34.57 Lacs) for provident fund contributions in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.
The Company recognised ` 5.49 Lacs (Previous Year: ` 5.41 Lacs) for Employees State Insurance Fund
contribution in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
(ii) Defined Benefit Plan:
Gratuity
In accordance with Payment of Gratuity Act, the Group provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan
covering all employees. The plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement or termination



of employment based on the respective employee�s salary and the years of employment with the Group subject to
maximum of `20 Lacs. (Previous Year ` 20 Lacs).

The gratuity benefit is provided through unfunded plan and annual contributions are charged to the statement of
profit and loss. Under the scheme, the settlement obligation remains with the Group. Group accounts for the
liability for future gratuity benefits based on an actuarial valuation. The net present value of the Group�s obligation
towards the same is actuarially determined based on the projected unit credit method as at the Balance Sheet
date.

B. Movement in Defined Benefit Liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit
(asset) liability and its components:

(` in Lacs)

Particulars Defined Benefit Obligation
AsatMarch31,2025 AsatMarch31,2024

Opening balance 263.85 195.68
Included in profit or loss -
Current service cost 21.45 14.79
Interest cost 18.68 13.93

Total (A) 303.98 224.40

Included in OCI -
Actuarial loss (gain) arising from:
Demographic assumptions - -
Financial assumptions 3.99 0.32
Experience adjustment 18.05 54.33

Total (B) 22.04 54.65

Other
Benefits paid (3.36) (15.20)
Liability transferred in for Employees joined - -

Total (C) (3.36) (15.20)

Closing balance (A+B+C) 322.66 263.85

C. Defined Benefit Obligations
(i) Actuarial assumptions: The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed

as weighted averages).

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Mortality Table IALM (2012-14) Urban IALM (2012-14) Urban
Retirement age 60,65,67,69,70 & 75 years 60,65,67,69,70 & 75 years
Attrition Rate 29.00% p.a. 29.00% p.a.
Discount rate 6.54% p.a. 7.14% p.a.
Salary escalation rate 5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a.

Consolidated Notes Forming Part Of Financial Statement 



Consolidated Notes Forming Part Of Financial Statement

(ii) Sensitivity analysis : Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial
assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the
amounts shown below.

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Discount rate (1% movement) 6.34 (6.57) (5.25) 5.55
Future salary growth (1% movement) (6.12) 6.96 5.01 (4.82)
Employee Turnover (1% movement) (0.27) 0.26 0.10 (0.12)

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.
The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated.

D. Expected Future Cash Flows
The table below shows the expected cash flow profile of the benefits to be paid to the current membership of the
plan based on past service of the employees as at the valuation date:

(` in Lacs)

Maturity profile As at March 31, 2025 As at March 3

Expected benefits for Year 1 94.12 76.28
Expected benefits for Year 2 72.53 60.59
Expected benefits for Year 3 52.73 47.44
Expected benefits for Year 4 41.33 32.92
Expected benefits for Year 5 39.77 25.72
Sum of Years 6 to 10 59.97 54.93
Sum of Years 11 and above 14.41 11.96

47. Related Party Disclosure
As per Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures, specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with
The Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, the name of related party where control exists / able to
exercise significant influence along with the transactions and year end balances with them as identified and
certified by the management are as follows:

List of related parties and their relationship
a) Key Management Personnel

Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain Managing Director
Mr. Arpit Jain Chief Executive Officer
Mrs. Anita S Gandhi Whole Time Director (cessation on August 05, 2023)
Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain Director
Mr. Akhilesh Rathi Independent Director (Till 31st, March 2024)
Mr. Parag R. Shah Independent Director (Till 31st, March 2024)
Mr. Ashish Maheshwari Independent Director
Mr. Jitendra Jain Independent Director
Ms. Swanubhuti A Jain Independent Director
Mr. Tarun Goyal Chief Financial Officer (Till 30th November, 2023)
Mr. Mahesh Pancholi Company Secretary
Mr. Uttam Maheshwari Chief Financial Officer ( From 01st December, 2023)
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b) Relatives of Key Management Personnel
Mr. Arpit Jain

Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain HUF

Mrs. Mohini Doshi

Mrs. Kiran Jain

Mrs. Shruti Jain

Mrs. Swati Jain

c) Associate

- Electrum Capital Private Limited

- Electrum Portfolio Managers Limited (Subsidiary of associate)

d) Enterprises over which Key Management Personnel are able to exercise significant influence

- Shyam Developers

- Savitt Universal Limited

- Get Prosper Capital Private Limited

f) Trust Incorporated

Arihant Alternate Capital Trust
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Transactions with related parties

Particulars Relationship March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Income

Rent

Electrum Capital Private Limited Associate 0.79 6.30

Commission

Electrum Portfolio Managers Limited Subsidiary of Associate 112.22 90.89

Expenses

Salary & Incentive

Ashok Kumar Jain KMP 361.13 236.00

Arpit Jain KMP 336.32 343.29

Anita Gandhi KMP - 14.75

Tarun Goyal KMP - 14.07

Mahesh Pancholi KMP 16.83 14.95

Kiran Jain Relative of KMP 4.80 4.80

Mohini Doshi Relative of KMP 6.20 5.88

Shruti Jain Relative of KMP 42.00 37.00

Uttam Maheshwari KMP 18.42 7.14

Rent

Ashok Kumar Jain KMP 18.00 15.00

Arpit Jain KMP 6.75 5.69

Kiran Jain Relative of KMP 55.93 38.53

Ashok Kumar Jain HUF Relative of KMP 6.75 5.59

Shyam Developers Enterprises over which KMP are

able to exercise significant influence 30.71 30.71

Sitting Fees

Sunil Kumar Jain KMP 4.20 2.50

Paragbhai Shah KMP - 2.00

Ashish Maheshwari KMP 4.20 2.00

Akhilesh Rathi KMP - 2.00

Jitendra Jain KMP 3.60 2.50

Swanubhuti Jain KMP 4.20 2.50

Legal & Professional Fees

Swati Jain Relative of KMP 14.40 14.40

Interest

Akhilesh Rathi KMP - 6.09

Sunil Kumar Jain KMP 93.95 48.46

Kamal Kumar Jain Relative of KMP 0.96 1.76
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Particulars Relationship March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Shanta Jain Relative of KMP 1.76 4.81

Swati Jain Relative of KMP 0.57 11.27

Meena Jain Relative of KMP 86.80 59.98

Sunil Kumar Jain HUF Relative of KMP 24.89 36.96

Electrum Capital Private Limited Associate 15.00 13.95

Electrum Portfolio Managers Limited Subsidiary of Associate 34.41 18.60

Get Prosper Capital Private Limited Enterprises over which KMP are

able to exercise significant influence 4.70 10.41

Savitt Universal Limited Enterprises over which KMP are able

to exercise significant influence 120.02 67.98

Ahinsa Investment Advisers Private Limited Enterprises over which KMP are able

to exercise significant influence 1.80 -

Anita Gandhi KMP - 1.18

Commission

Electrum Capital Private Limited Associate 2.04 0.75

Transactions with related parties

Assets

Rent Deposit

Ashok Kumar Jain KMP 3.50 3.50

Arpit Jain KMP 4.59 4.66

Kiran Jain Relative of KMP 22.69 22.81

Ashok Kumar Jain HUF Relative of KMP 4.59 4.66

Shyam Developers Enterprises over which KMP are able

to exercise significant influence 3.75 3.75

Trust Deposit

Arihant Alternate Capital Trust Trust Incorporated 2.54 1.36

Commission Receivable

Electrum Portfolio Managers Limited Subsidiary of Associate 31.95 33.80

Rent Recievable

Electrum Capital Private Limited Associate - 0.62

Liabilities

Rent Deposit Taken

Electrum Capital Private Limited Associate - 5.00

Loan Taken

Akhilesh Rathi KMP - -

Savitt Universal Limited Relative of KMP - 1,000.00
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Particulars Relationship March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024

Electrum Capital Private Limited Associate 150.00 150.00

Electrum Portfolio Managers Limited Subsidiary of Associate 400.00 200.00

Get Prosper Capital Private Limited Enterprises over which KMP are

able to exercise significant influence - 118.00

Savitt Universal Limited 1000.00 -

48. Disposal of Subsidiary
The Company has sold entire shareholding of its wholly owned subsidiary Arihant Insurance Broking Services

Limited ("AIBSL") on October 24, 2024 for a total consideration of ` 438.07 Lacs.The Company has recognized

gain of `329.90 lacs in exceptional item in the Standalone Financial Statements.

The Company has sold entire shareholding of its wholly owned subsidiaries Arihant Institute of Financial Education

Private Limited on July 31, 2023 for a total consideration of `58.75 Lacs.

48.1 Gain/(Loss) on disposal of wholly owned subsidiary Arihant Insurance Broking Services Limited

Particulars As at October 24, 2024

Sale Consideration 438.07

Less: Net Asset Disposed of (108.17)

Total 329.90

48.2 Gain/(Loss) on disposal of wholly owned subsidiary Arihant Institute of Financial Education Private
Limited

Particulars As at July 31, 2023

Sale Consideration 58.75

Less: Net Asset Disposed of (57.93)

Total 0.82
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49. Foreign Currency Transactions

(I) Expenditure in foreign currency

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Software Expenses 5.01 7.90
Membership Fees - 0.07
Business Development Expenses 17.32 18.56

Total 22.33 26.53

(ii) Income in foreign currency

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income from Royalty 21.3 15.27
Interest on Fixed Deposit 3.43 3.65

Total 24.73 18.92

50. Ageing Schedule for Trade Receivables
For the year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars                                                                          Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 6 months 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
6 months 1 year 3 years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables- considered good 9,463.59 15.56 23.32 2.76 9.62 9,514.85
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful 158.44 - - - - 158.44
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful - - - - - -

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total

Less than 6 months 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
6 months 1 year 3 years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables considered good 9,623.67 0.50 12.95 0.02 0.22 9,637.36
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful - - - - - -
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful - - - - - -

51. Ageing Schedule for Trade Payables

For the year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total

Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
1 year 3 years

(i) MSME 61.13 - - - 61.13
(ii) Others 26,784.67 33.61 0.06 0.06 26,818.41
(iii) Disputed dues- MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues- Others - - - - -
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For the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than

1 year 3 years

(i) MSME 164.89 - - - 164.89
(ii) Others 24,560.47 5,625.42 45.43 10.66 30,241.98
(iii) Disputed dues- MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues- Others - - - - -

52. Details of borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets
The quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions for the
working capital limit are in agreement with the books of accounts.

53. Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
The company has filed all the registration of charges, modification or satisfaction with ROC within the statutory
period as required by the Companies Act, 2013.

54. Additional Regulatory Information as per Companies Act, 2013

1. The Company has not granted loans or advances in nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties
(as defined under the Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person.

2. The title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties are held in the name of company and no immovable property is
jointly held with others.

3. There is no tangible assets(Capital-work-in progress) under development.
4. The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets.
5. No proceeding have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the

Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.
6. The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
7. The company is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.
8. The company has not entered into transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013

or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.
9. The company has not applied for any Scheme of Arrangements in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act,

2013.
10. Utilization of Borrowed funds and share premium:
(a) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources

or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (�Intermediaries�),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
(�Ultimate Beneficiaries�) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) No funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (�Funding
Parties�), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (�Ultimate Beneficiaries�) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries."

11. The Company has not used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the purpose other than for which it
was taken.

12. The Company has no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

55. Disclosure relating to various ratios

Additional regulatory information required under clause (xvi) of Division III of Schedule III amendment, disclosure of
ratios, is not applicable to the Company as it is in broking business and not an NBFC registered under Section 45-IA of
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
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56. Fair value measurement

I. Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amount and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including
their levels in the fair value hierarchy:

Particulars Carrying amount Fair value

March 31, 2025 FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

cost

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents  -  -  2,031.82  2,031.82  -  -  -  -

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents  -   38,424.22  38,424.22  -  -  -  -

Derivative financial instruments  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

Securities for trade  4,948.56  -  -  4,948.56  4,948.56  -  -  4,948.56 

Trade receivables  -  -  9,673.29  9,673.29  -  -  -  -

Loans 16,060.72  16,060.72  -  - 875.50 2,374.62

Investments  -  - - 2,374.62  1,499.12  - - -

Other financial assets 2,374.62  -  1,613.57  1,613.57  -  -  -  -

Total financial assets  7,323.18  -  67,803.62  75,126.80  6,447.68  -  875.50  7,323.18 

Financial liabilities

Derivative financial instruments  210.38  210.38 

Trade Payables

  Total outstanding dues of micro

  & small enterprises  -  -  61.13  61.13  -  -  -  -

  Total outstanding dues of creditors

  other than   micro & small enterprises  -  -  26,818.41  26,818.41  -  -  -  -

Debt Securities - -  2,393.00  2,393.00 - - - -

Borrowings  -  - 7,174.12  7,174.12  -  -  -  -

Other financial Liabilities  -  -  2,433.78  2,433.78  -  -  -  -

Total financial liabilities  -  -  38,880.44  39,090.82  -  -  -  -

Particulars      Carrying amount                          Fair value

March 31, 2024 FVTPL FVOCIA  mortised cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents  -  -  2,413.74  2,413.74  -  -  -  -

Bank balance other than cash

and cash equivalents  -  -  38,125.21  38,125.21  -  -  -  -

Derivative financial instruments  4.47 - -  4.47  4.47  -  -  4.47 

Securities for trade  3,105.16  -  -  3,105.16  3,105.16  -  -  3,105.16 

Trade receivables  -  -  9,637.37  9,637.37  -  -  -  -

Loans -  -  19,172.06  19,172.06  -  -  -  -

Investments 1,462.78  -  -  1,462.78  1,204.84  -  257.94  1,462.78 

Other financial assets  -  -  1,805.74  1,805.74  -  -  -  -

Total financial assets  4,572.41  -  71,154.12  75,726.53  4,314.47  -  257.94  4,572.41 
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Financial liabilities

Trade Payables

  Total outstanding dues of
  micro & small enterprises  -  -  164.89  164.89  -  -  -  -
  Total outstanding dues of creditors
   other than   micro & small enterprises  -  -  30,241.98  30,241.98  -  -  -  -
 Debt securities  -  -  4,325.00  4,325.00  -  -  -  -
Borrowings -  -  5,602.73  5,602.73  -  -  -  -
Other financial Liabilities  -  -  4,230.19  4,230.19  -  -  -  -

Total financial liabilities  -  -  44,564.79  44,564.79  -  -  -  - 

Level 1: Category include financial assets and liabilities that are measured in whole or significantly part by reference to
published quotes in an active market.

Level 2: Category include financial assets and liabilities that are measured using a valuation technique based on
assumptions that are supported by prices from observable current market transactions.

Level 3: Category include financial assets and liabilities that are measured using valuation technique based on non-
market observable inputs. This means that fair value are determined in whole or in part using a valuation model based
on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same
instrument nor are they based on available market data.

II. Financial instruments not measured at fair value
Financial assets not measured at fair value includes cash and cash equivalents, bank balance, trade receivables, loans
and other financial assets. These are financial assets whose carrying amounts approximate fair value, due to their
short-term nature and also fixed deposit with maturity more than 12 months (included in other financial assets) are
measured at amortized cost.
Additionally, financial liabilities such as trade payables and other financial liabilities are not measured at FVTPL, whose
carrying amounts approximate fair value, because of their short-term nature.

57. Financial risk management
The Group has a risk management framework, appropriate to the size of the Group and environment under which it
operates. The objective of its risk management framework is to ensure that various risks are identified, measured and
mitigated and also that policies, procedures and standards are established to address these risks and ensure a
systematic response in the case of crystallisation of such risks. The board of Directors reviews these policies and
processes regularly and is periodically informed about the risk assessment, impact of risk on the business and
mitigation plans. The Company is exposed to following risk -

A. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties fail to discharge their
contractual obligation. The Group manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing to
accept for individual counterparties, and by monitoring exposures in relations to such limits.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for each class of financial instruments is the carrying amount of that class of
financial instruments presented in the financial statements.

Deposits with banks are considered to have negligible risk or nil risk, as they are maintained with high rated banks / 
financial institutions as approved by the Board of directors.

The management has established accounts receivable policy under which customer accounts are regularly monitored.
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Expected Credit Loss (ECL):
The Group applies the Ind AS 109 Simplified approach for trade receivables which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised. For other assets , the Company uses 12 month ECL approach to measuring expected credit losses
(ECLs) where there is no significant increase in credit risk of borrower. If there is significant increase in credit risk full
lifetime ECL approach is used.

Inputs considered in the ECL model
In assessing the impairment of financial assets under Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Model, the assets have been
segmented into three stages. The three stages reflect the general pattern of credit deterioration of a financial
instrument. The differences in accounting between stages, relate to the recognition of expected credit losses.

Stage 1 : Financial assets for which credit risk has not increased significantly and that are also not credit impaired
Stage 2 : Financial assets for which credit risk has increased significantly but not credit impaired
Stage 3 : Financial assets for which credit risk has increased significantly and are credit impaired

Following table provides information about exposure to credit risk and ECL on Financial Assets

(` in Lacs)

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Gross Trade Receivables  9,673.29  -  -  9,637.37  -  -
Impairment loss  -  -  -  -  -  -

Net Trade Receivables  9,673.29  -  -  9,637.37  -  -

Gross Loans  16,070.46  -  -    19,178.22  -  -
Impairment loss  (9.74)  -  -  (6.16)  -  -

Net Loans  16,060.72  -  -    19,172.06  -  -

Movements in the allowances for impairment in respect is as follows:

(` in Lacs)

Particulars Carrying Amount Carrying Amount
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Opening Balance  6.16  -  -  6.16  6.42  -  -  6.42 
Impairment loss recognised
during the year  3.58  -  -  3.59  (0.26)  -  -  (0.26)

Closing Balance  9.74  -  -  9.75  6.16  -  -  6.16 

B. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the entity will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The entity�s approach to managing liquidity is to
ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the entity�s reputation.

Prudent liquidity risk management requires sufficient cash and marketable securities and availability of funds through
adequate committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out market positions.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, for the management of the Group�s
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by



maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The table below provide details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of
March 31, 2025

(` in Lacs)

Particulars Carrying Less than 1-3 year 3-5 year More than 
Amount 1 year 5 year

 Trade Payables  26,879.54  26,879.54  -  -  -
Debt securities  2,393.00  -  2,393.00 
 Borrowings  7,174.12  6,807.45  366.67  -  -
 Other financial Liabilities  2,433.78  2,433.78  -  -  -

The table below provide details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of
March 31, 2024

(` in Lacs)

Particulars Carrying Less than 1-3 year 3-5 year More than 
Amount 1 year 5 year

 Trade Payables  30,406.87  30,406.87  -  -  -
Debt securities  4,325.00  1,932.00  2,393 
 Borrowings  5,602.73  5,269.40  333.33  -  -
 Other financial Liabilities  4,230.19  4,230.19  -  -  -

C. Market risk
Market Risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in
market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, etc. The objective of market risk management is to
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while maximising the return.

(i) Currency risk
Currency Risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Group's majority transactions are denominated in Indian rupees only. Hence, the Group is not significantly exposed
to currency rate risk.

(ii) Interest rate risk
Interest Rate Risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flow of a financial instrument will fluctuate as result of
changes in market interest rates. The Group�s Loans are primarily in fixed interest rates. Hence, the Group is not
significantly exposed to interest rate risk.

(iii) Market price risks
The Group is exposed to market price risk, which arises from FVTPL investments. The management monitors the
proportion of these investments in its investment portfolio based on market indices. Material investments within the
portfolio are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are approved by the appropriate authority.

58. Capital Management
The Group�s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they
can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and maintain an optimal capital 
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

Consolidated Notes Forming Part Of Financial Statement
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The Group monitors its capital by using gearing ratio, which is net debt to total equity. Net debt includes borrowings net
of cash and bank balances and total equity comprises of Equity share capital, general reserve and retained earnings.

(` in Lacs)

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Debt Securities  2,393.00  4,325.00
Borrowings  7,174.12  5,602.73 
Less: Cash & bank balances  40,456.04  40,538.95

Net Debt (A)  (30,888.92)  (30,611.22)

Total Equity(B)  38,445.51  32,252.44

Gearing Ratio (A/B) (0.80)  (0.95)

59. Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities
The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be
recovered or settled

(` in Lacs)

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Within 12 After 12 Total Within 12 After 12 Total

month month
Assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,031.82 - 2,031.82 2,413.74 - 2,413.74
Bank balance other than cash
and cash equivalents 38,424.22 - 38,424.22 38,125.21 - 38,125.21
Derivative financial instruments - - - 4.47 4.47
Securities for trade 4,948.56 - 4,948.56 3,105.16 - 3,105.16
Trade receivables 9,673.29 - 9,673.29 9,637.37 - 9,637.37
Loans 16,060.72 - 16,060.72 19,172.06 - 19,172.06
Investments - 2,374.62 2,374.62 1,462.78 1,462.78
Other financial assets 1,331.63 281.94 1,613.57 1,749.81 55.93 1,805.74

72,470.24 2,656.56 75,126.80 74,207.82 1,518.71 75,726.53

Non-Financial assets
Current tax assets (net) 0.16 - 0.16 0.05 - 0.05
Deferred tax assets (net) - 6.92 6.92 - 6.54 6.54
Property, plant and equipment - 2,651.82 2,651.82 - 1,239.39 1,239.39
Other intangible assets - 214.04 214.04 - 248.34 248.34
Other non financial assets 571.35 119.78 691.12 701.33 126.27 827.60

571.51 2,992.55 3,564.06 701.38 1,620.54 2,321.92

Total Assets 73,041.75 5,649.11 78,690.86 74,909.20 3,139.25 78,048.45

Liabilities

Financial Liabilities
Derivatives Financial Instrument 210.38 - 210.38
Trade payables 26,879.54 - 26,879.54 30,406.87 - 30,406.87
Debt securities - 2,393.00 2,393.00 1,932.00 2,393.00 4,325.00
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Particulars                March 31, 2025                 March 31, 2024

Borrowings 6,807.45 366.67 7,174.12 5,236.06 366.67 5,602.73
Other financial Liabilities 2,433.78 - 2,433.78 4,230.19 - 4,230.19

36,331.16 2,759.67 39,090.82 41,805.12 2,759.67 44,564.79

Non-Financial Liabilities
Current Tax Liabilities (net) 81.27 - 81.27 206.19 - 206.19
Provisions 322.66 - 322.66 263.85 - 263.85
Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) - 147.56 147.56 - 68.43 68.43
Other non financial liabilities 603.04 - 603.04 692.75 - 692.75

1,006.97 147.56 1,154.53 1,162.79 68.43 1,231.22

Total Liabilities 37,338.13 2,907.23 40,245.35 42,967.91 2,828.10 45,796.01

60. Investments in associate (accounted for using the equity method)
The aggregate summarized financial information in respect of the Company�s associates that are accounted for using
the equity method is set forth below:

` in Lacs

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Carrying amount of the Company�s interest in
associates accounted for using the equity method 837.99 518.66

` in Lacs

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Company�s share of net profit/(loss)(Includes Exceptional
Gain) of associates accounted for using the equity method
in consolidated statement of profit and loss 319.33 210.28

The Company has 27.23% stake in Electrum Capital Private
Limited, making it an associate enterprise of
Arihant Capital Markets Limited.

61. Additional Disclosure pertaining to Subsidiaries as per division III of Companies Act, 2013

Name of the entity Net Assets (i.e. Share in Profit & (Loss) Share in other Share in Total

Total Assets - Comprehen- comprehensive

Total Liabilities) sive income income

As % of Amount As % of Amount As % of Amount As % of Amount
Consolidated ` in Lacs Consolida- ` in Lacs Consolida- ` in Lacs Total ` in Lacs

Net Assets ted Profit / ted OCI Consoli-
(Loss) dated

income

Parent

Arihant Capital Markets Limited 89.61% 34,834.26 89.83% 5,298.42 127.73% (16.49) 89.74% 5,281.93

Subsidiaries

Arihant Financial Services Limited 3.42% 1,328.46 3.98% 234.66 0.00% - 3.99% 234.66
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Name of the entity Net Assets (i.e. Share in Profit & (Loss) Share in other Share in Total
Total Assets - Comprehen- comprehensive

Total Liabilities) sive income income

As % of Amount As % of Amount As % of Amount As % of Amount
Consolidated ` in Lacs Consolida- ` in Lacs Consolida- ` in Lacs Total ` in Lacs

Net Assets ted Profit / ted OCI Consoli-
(Loss) dated

income
Arihant Futures & Commodities

Limited 4.44% 1,726.70 0.79% 46.86 0.00% - 0.80% 46.86
Arihant Insurance Broking
Services Limited 0.00% - 0.02% 1.13 0.00% - 0.02% 1.13
Arihant Institute of Financial
Education Private Limited* 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% -
Arihant Capital (IFSC) Limited 0.37% 143.85 (0.03%) (1.95) (27.73%) 3.58 0.03% 1.63

Sub Total 97.84% 38,033.27 94.59% 5,579.12 100.00% (12.91) 94.57% 5,566.21

Associate
Electrum Capital Private Limited 2.16% 837.99 5.41% 319.33 0.00% - 5.43% 319.33

Sub Total 837.99 5.41% 319.33 0.00% - 5.43% 319.33

Total 100.00% 38,871.26 100.00% 5,898.45 100.00% (12.91) 100.00% 5,885.54

Less-Intercompany Elimination
and Consolidation Adjustments (425.76)

Total 38,445.50

* The company has sold its entire shareholding in wholly owned subsidiary Arihant Institute of Financial
Education Private Limited during the year.

62. Principles and assumptions used for consolidated financial statements and proforma adjustments
The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by applying the principles laid in the Indian Accounting
Standard(Ind AS) - 110 �Consolidated Financial Statements� for the purposes of these Consolidated Balance Sheet and
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, together referred to in as �Consolidated Financial Statements.�

The list of subsidiaries in the consolidated financial statement are as under :-
Arihant Capital Markets Limited (�the Company� or �the holding company�) shareholding in the following companies as
on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 is as under:

Name of the Entities Country of incorporation                    Proportion of ownership interest
As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Name of the Subsidiary Companies
Arihant Financial Services Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Arihant Futures & Commodities Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Arihant Insurance Broking Services Limited* India 0.00% 100.00%
Arihant Institute of Financial Education Private Limited** India 0.00% 0.00%
Arihant Capital (IFSC) Limited India 100.00% 100.00%

Name of the Associate Company
Electrum Capital Private Limited India 27.23% 27.23%



Consolidated Notes Forming Part Of Financial Statement
* The company has sold its entire shareholding in wholly owned subsidiary Arihant Insurance Broking Services Limited
during the year.
** The company has sold its entire shareholding in wholly owned subsidiary Arihant Institute of Financial Education
Private Limited during the previous year
Arihant Capital Markets Limited
Consolidated Notes Forming Part Of Financial Statement

63. Corporate social responsibility
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 on Corporate Social
Responsibility with effect from 1 April 2014. As per the provisions of the said section, the Company has undertaken the
following CSR initiatives during the financial year 2024-25. CSR initiatives majorly includes supporting under privileged
in education, medical treatments, etc. and various other charitable and noble aids.
A) Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year ` 118.88 Lakhs (Previous year `91.22 Lakhs)
B) Amount spent during the year ended March 31, 2025 on:

(` in Lacs)

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2025 Year ended March 31, 2024
Amount Yet to be Total Amount Yet to be Total

Paid paid Paid paid
Construction/acquisition of any asset - - - - - -
On purposes other than (a) above 82.34 36.54 118.88 91.47 - 91.47

Total 82.34 36.54 118.88 91.47 - 91.47

In case of S. 135(5) unspent amount
` in Lacs

Opening Balance Amount deposited in Amount required to be Amount spent on Amount Closing
Specified Fund of Sch. spent during the CSR projects (both Unspent Balance

VII within 6 months year ongoing project (Transfarred
and other than to unspent)

ongoing project)

(0.25) - 118.88 82.34 36.54 (0.25)

64. Events after Reporting Date
There were no significant events after the end of the reporting period which require any adjustment or disclosure in the
financial statements other than as stated below:
The Board of Directors have recommended a final dividend of ` 0.50 per equity share for the financial year ended March
31, 2025. Payment of the final dividend is subject to its approval by the shareholders, in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting of the Company.
65. Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary.
66. Approval of Financial Statements
The consolidated financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of Directors of parent Company in their
meeting held on May 10, 2025.
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